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Safeguard is an operating company that seeks
to create long-term value by takmg controllmg
interest in and developing its compames through
superior cperat:eﬂs and management,

Safeguard has; acquired and operates businesses in|the time-to- voiume stage of development
that currenﬁly provide business decision and life science software-based product and |
service solutions. Safeguard's strategic subsidiaries focus on the following vertical markets:
financial services, healthcare and pharmaceutical, manufacturing, retail and distribution,

and te!ecommunlcahons Safeguard may acquire other time-to-volume technology companies
complementary to its existing companies and markets. |

Strategic Heriion'
Time- to volume

In the current enwronment market opportunity and our
experience and skills canverge at a crucial juncture in
a technology company's growth: the time-to-volume stage.

Time-to-volumeiis that stage of a company's
development cycle when it has already deployed
a commercially vnable product and/or service with !

substantive revenues and satisfied customers. . /

Once product is on the market, the company's tech-
nology risk has diminished. The challenge then lies

in building the corporate-infrastructure and processes
to open dlstnbunon channels to drive sales and
profitability. This is where Safeguard can make the
greatest impact and thie greatest returns —

in accelérating time-to-volume.

| < maturing
market !

In the time=to-market stage, entrepreneurial risk is'sig-

b . : > : ; | < cash flow positive
nificant as ideas are trahsformed into viable products. .

< commercial products/ -
initial sales

. < concept technology

decreasing risk >>>>

value >>>>




Opening actions

2002 saw the formulation and the start of the
implementation of a new strategy for Safeguard
Scientifics. As promised, we focused on two themes:
1) building our capacity to provide self-sustaining cash
flow for Safeguard from existing and to be acquired
companies offering business and IT services; and,

2) taking controlling interests in existing and acquired
software-based companies to provide opportunities
for growth and value generation.

As the implementation of our strategy progressed,
we have moved from companies in the time-to-market
phase of their evolution to those in the time-to-volume
phase where Safeguard’s operational, managerial
and financial acumen can make the greatest impact.
As a consequence of this shift, we have de-emphasized
the pursuit of minority investments in emerging
technology companies.

Setiing the base ~ "

To sustain the liquidity needed to e?té@te\}dﬁ Q,uf?
strategy and fund new acquisitions, we took'dedisive -~
actions to monetize assets, reduce commitments, secure
tax savings and complete our restructuring. We now
have a lean organization mapped to our new priorities,
with leaders who share an intense operational focus
and an extensive network of industry expertise.

In 2002, we made a key acquisition, Alliance
Consulting Group Associates, Inc. With its history of
outperforming its peers, Alliance Consulting signifi-
cantly improves our competitive profile and revenue
potential in the highly fragmented business and
IT services sector. While we did not acquire any new
software companies, we significantly increased
ownership in those companies that represent our
strategic sofiware initiatives.

We finished the year with much strength to
leverage - a strong balance sheet with no significant
short-term debt at the parent level, acknowledged
operational expertise, assets with high-performance
potential, a known brand and substantial liquidity.

We continue to refine a strategy aligned with both
market opportunities and proven capabilities.

And we continue to evolve.
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As we coniinue to refinc our sirategy, we seg our
companies falling into three categories. First, our
stretegic in'tigtive companies — in which we maintain
conirolling interest and are strategically and opera-
tionaily engaged ~ share certain characieristics. They
provide disgnostic and decision sclutions for business
and life sciences, These companies have proven
producis zod caiisfied customers. They are in, or are
ready for, the time-io-volurre stage of growth.

e centinue to targe: such companies that are cash
Tow positive or will be within twelve months.

"The scrond category comprises our legney compenies
i whicha we have less than 2 controlling interest or
which do rot curvenily fall within our sirategic infiiziives.
These include public and private companies as well
2 our inieresls in private cquity funds. We divested
several of these legacy companies during 2002,

We will coniinue to assess the remainder in 2003 for
retention based on fit with our strategic initiatives

or for bala:ace sheet strength and liquidity, with a view
towards supporting our initiatives. Zven if Safeguard
believes a company does not fit in its strategy and/or is
underperforming, Safeguard will consider continuing
to provide operational and management support and
possibly funding to achieve an appropriate value prior
to pursuing a monetization transaction.

With regard to our legeey private equity funds, we are
exammining our current commitments and participation
in boih on wd off-campus funds to evaluate their it with
our strategy. We have ruled out maldng new investments
in any privaie equity funds. Similarly we do not intend to
make any minority acquisitions or acquisitions of carly
sizge technology companies in 2003, other than acquisi-
tons that complement our straiegic initigtives.

CempuCom, 2 leading provider of IT ouisourcing,
technology procurement and systems integration
services is a significanly sized public company, and
in a third category by itscli.

Safeguard is moving from an early stage portfolio
company lewards a software and services based
solutions operating company. The turnaround initiztion
and strategy formulation phase is largely comnlete.
We new fecus on sirategy refinement and execution
winile actively supporting operational excellence in
our stavle base of corpanies, including providing the
necessary unding and developlog the righi measuye-
ments (o gawuge resulls,

We will arvive ai the third phase of Safeguard’s
transformation as these initiatives take root. We expect
t0 be evatuated and valued against iraditdonal operating
company parameters. I will ake time to evolve io the
point where we can specily and share the measuremenis
that drive our businesses, but that is where we are headed.

It takes time to compiete a transformeation; therefore
this is niot a static model. It will continue to evolve
as our businesses mature 2nd face market challenges.

Ve find that our past has positioned us well
for our future. This year is Safeguard’s soth anniver-
sary. Safeguard has excelled at understanding the
technology market and trends ear’y enough to produce
superior resulis.

We invite you to measure our progress against our
staied objectives along the way.

LOTHONY i CRAIS
S AT SN AAT A
JRET AN

March 31, 2003
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In initiating our strategy our asset base has
become more self-sustaining. We have used majority-
owned acquisitions to build operating and capital
leverage, focused on customer value, not just technology.
At the same time, we continue to target mid market
companies with proven technologies where their market
growth is in front of them and where we can catalyze
their time-to-volume stage of growth.

What we have done so far

In 2002, Safeguard’s accomplishments included
monetizing certain assets to receive significant
proceeds. We reduced our liabilities. We invested
to increase ownership in five majority-owned
companies. We reduced our number of minority-
owned holdings by a net of three companies.

We acquired 100% of Alliance Consulting for
approximately $56 million in cash.

Safeguard generated substantial cash in 2002
from monetization activities, including collecting a
$63 million tax refund. We also reduced other
potential tax liabilities by utilizing available capital
losses. We generated sizable cash proceeds,
notes receivable, preferred securities and reduced
substantial contingent liabilities and commitments of
various legacy companies. We disposed of certain
assets, including the sale of the Safeguard corporate
campus and we reduced our commitments to a
number of private equity funds.

We ended 2002 with substantial liquidity including
$125 million of parent company cash and short-term
investments. We maintain the strength and flexibility
to make additional investments when we identify
the right opportunities to complement and support
our strategic initiatives.

Year-over-year losses in 2002 declined dramatically
as a result of continuing management focus and 2002
ended with our seventh straight quarter of lowered
losses {excluding the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle recorded as of January 1, 2002
and a Q4 2002 loan impairment charge).
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Accoun?

Last year, we promised to exert more influence
over our future, with clear targets, clear objectives and
a clear path to continued success. We set a strategy
to transform our business, and we began executing
against it.

This year, Safeguard is well into the transition
to becoming an operating company. We are much
more focused and are operationally applying our
expertise to a smaller and more promising and
stable group of businesses.

Taking contrel, and

taking responsibility for control

We have implemented extensive internal procedures
to manage to outcomes for our strategic initiatives.
By the end of 2003, we expect to be measured as an
operating company with respect to revenue, growth
rates and income.

As part of our commitment for increased account-
ability, we will be adding additional insight in our
quarterly reports with respect to our strategic initiatives.

Growing value

Few companies in the technology sector can boast of
a fifty-year history. Safeguard can and its future is based
upon driving operational excellence at majority-owned
technology companies in the time-to-volume stage.

We see significant opportunities to grow value ata
superior rate. We have picked markets, companies and
executive personnel that hold tremendous promise.
We are building Safeguard’s future around software-
based initiatives in the business decision and life
science solutions arenas. We intend to manage these
strategic initiatives for revenue and profit growth. We
intend to manage our legacy companies to contribute
to our balance sheet strength and liquidity.

Shui down iMiedium
Shut down Life F/X

i oy, Sold USDATA
Make no commitments to new funds \ ’

Maintain a solid balance sheet,
asset base and financial footing

private equity funds

Made none

Obtained or increased ownership in five majority-owned subsidiaries
Reduced the number of private company holdings by a net of three

Shut down TechSpaceXchange

Shut down Wireless Online

Ended year with substantial cash on hand and other assets

Generated sizable cash proceeds, notes receivable, preferred
securities and reduced substantial contingent liabilities
and commitments related to various legacy companies and
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Mega trends in the economy are affecting oppor-
tunities for Safeguard. The economics of advanced
applications are enabled by a continuing free fall in the
pricing and margins associated with infrastructure
elements of technology, such as processing power, stor-
age and communication costs. Massive amounts
of data are being produced by enterprise transaction
systems and need to be synthesized and managed in
order to be useful to management. There is a growing
need for deep domain knowledge in vertical markets
in order to deliver information and solutions that matter.
There is a continuing evolution in infrastructure soft-
ware resulting in increasingly standardized software
components becoming mere commodities. Moreover,
the lines between software, services and business
process outsourcing companies continue to blur, driven
by an increasing preference among customers to
obtain comprehensive solutions to address their critical
pain points.

Bringing business decision

and life science solutions to market

Today and into the foreseeable future, the buying
propensity is for solutions rather than software,
hardware, communications and services components.
Businesses have a critical need for deep domain
knowledge, and they seek it from providers who can
address a comprehensive set of needs.

We see a growing market for companies that offer
diagnostic and decision solutions, both in business
and life sciences. These are complex, comprehensive
software, systems and services solutions that deliver
specialized information to be used as the basis
for decisions by domain experts addressing critical
business issues.

Create a lean organization mapped to our
new priorities, with leaders who share
an intense operationat focus

leadership at all levels
of Safeguard

Sustain the liquidity needed to fund

Added world class 6peratioﬁ;i

Collected $63 million tax refund

Reduced other potential tax liabilities through tax planning measures

Sold the corporate campus

Acquire additional business and IT Eliminated commitments and contingent liabilities related
services companies akle to generate “ to fegacy companies and private equity funds
strong cash flow in the near term o e R e

. Acquired 100% of Alliance Consulting and consolidated

aligne and Lever8 Solutions under it to form a wholly-owned,
highly competitive entity

Acquired Andersen's Philadelphia SAP practice

new acquisitions

Take controlling interests in software
companies with proven product in
time-io-volume stage
Increased Mantas ownership to 63%
Increased SOTAS ownership to 75%
- Increased Agari Mediaware ownership to 70%
S Increased ChromaVision ownership to 56%
(and then to 62% in February of 2003)
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Strategic initiative companies

Alliance Consulting, a wholly-owned acquisi-
tion into which we have merged aligne and Lever8
Solutions, has the scale and breadth of services
and domain expertise to drive improved profitability
and ultimately become a premier player in the
IT services market. Alliance’s digital intelligence
solutions position Safeguard to create higher value
in partnering with our software companies. In fact,
Alliance and Mantas have begun to work together.

Alliance has a proven track record in architect-
ing, building and delivering digital enterprise
solutions for the Fortune 2000 market, offering
business intelligence and data warehousing,
packaged enterprise solutions, application develop-
ment and integration, and managed services. Over
its nearly ten-year history, Alliance has developed
deep domain expertise in the pharmaceutical,
financial services, manufacturing, retail and dis-
tribution industries.

Alliance’s unique assemble-to-order delivery
model leverages its talent base efficiently while
being directly responsive to clients’ complex needs.
Allianice maintains a full-time core staff comple-
mented by a flexible combination of hourly and
salaried employees and independent contractors,
keeping overhead and utilization issues to a mini-
mum. Clients get highly specialized engagements
tailored to their specific business requirements.

Mantas provides behavior detection software
that banks, brokerage firms and other financial
services firms currently use to detect potentially
suspicious behavior in anti-money laundering
and compliance management. Its new Broker
Surveillance Monitor product will address “mutual
fund breakpoints” to help ensure clients are being
charged the correct amount for mutual fund
purchases. All Mantas products are based on its
Behavior Detection Platform that encompasses
proprietary techniques such as Link Analysis and
Sequence Matching to detect potentially troubling
actions. The Mantas platform can analyze billions
of accounts and transactions, all in context of one
another, in order to identify suspicious activities that
need further review. While the nature of Mantas’
solutions and its contracts precludes listing clients
by name, its current client base includes many
of the best-known brands in the financial services
industry. Safeguard has increased ownership in
Mantas to 63%.

SOTAS, a software technology company, provides
solutions to wireline and mobile Communications
Service Providers. SOTAS provides business real-time
solutions that optimize existing investments in
network and support systems and maximize the
bottom line. SOTAS customers process hundreds
of millions of records per day through a unifying
core technology platform that can affect operational
and business outcomes — allowing the customer to
take action and make the right decisions, right now!
SOTAS’ portfolio of Business Assurance Solutions
provides applications that support Operations
Management, such as Quality of Service, Traffic
Management and Best Value Routing; Revenue
Management, which includes Billing Verification,
Margin Analysis and Customer Management; and
Security Managerment, such as Fraud Management

and VPN Management. BellSouth, Verizon, TELUS
and WorldCom are just a few of the customers that
are using SOTAS’ business assurance solutions today.
Safeguard has increased ownership in SOTAS to 75%.

ChromaVision (NASDAQ:CVSN) provides a
patented software-based microscope imaging sys-
tem, ACIS® or automated cellular imaging system,
which aids pathologists in the analysis of various
diseases and conditions. ACIS® uses a proprietary
integrated, analytic software solution based
on complex algorithms. ChromaVision's Access
remote pathology program, in conjunction with
US LABS, has broadened the marketing reach of
both companies and allows community-based
pathologists to offer the features of image analysis
technology to patients and physicians. In addition,
ChromaVision has joined Ventana Medical Systems
in co-marketing a new automated staining and
imaging method for testing for the human papil-
loma virus (HPV), the primary cause of cervical
cancer. Safeguard has increased ownership in
ChromaVision to §6% (In February of 2003 we
increased ownership to 62%).

Agari Mediaware is a smaller initiative that
provides content application integration (CAI)
software to media and entertainment, broadcast,
publishing and government organizations helping
them leverage the use of their digitally encoded
rich media content investments. Agari has recently
signed a strategic partnership agreement with
IBM. Safeguard has increased ownership in Agari
Mediaware to 70%.

Transformation

Technology
infrastructure
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Gains or losses o sales of companies

Gairis or logses on companies primarily
consist of net realized gains and losses on
sales of companies, and gains and losses
on the mark-to-market of public holdings
accounted for as trading securities under
SFAS 115, ’

" Impairment charges

When we determine that a company,
private equity fund or an asset has experi-
enced an other than temporary decline
in value, we record the difference between

* the fair value and the carrying value as an
impairment charge. B

hare of consolidated companies

 fown >50%]

Consolidated company results of

| operations are reflected in our Consolidated
| Statements of Operations. “Minority

| interest” adjusts our consolidated net

| results of operations to refiect only

i our share of the earnings orlosses of the

| consolidated company.

. Goodwill amortization

Effective January 1, 2002, uponthe

| implementation of SFAS 142, goodwil!
¢ is no longer amortized. We will continue

to amortize other intangibles with finite

 lives. Prior to 2002, goodwill amortization

- reflected the excess of the cost of our

© interest in a company over our share of its

- net assets, amortized on a straight-line basis.

i Income taxes

Represents tax expense or benefit

. booked at our effective tax rate, adjusted
- for valuation allowances based on our

~ assessment of the realizability of our net
| deferred iax assets.

Share of equity method companies
fown 20-50%}

Equity method company resuits of
operations are not reflected in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

" Qur share of the earnings or losses
- of the company is reflected in the caplion
““equity loss” on the Consolidated

Statements of Operations.

Corporate general and administrative

expenses and interest

General and administrative expenses
consist primarily of compensation and
related expenses, insurance, rent, travel-
related expenses, professional fees and
other general corporate expenses, net.

Interest includes interest associated
with our convertible subordinated notes
due 2006, and fees related to our credit
facilities, partially offset by interest income
eamed on cash balances.
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7// Includes sales of publicly traded securities, private
L company and private equity fund interests, and mergers
L and acquisitions.

L T S L e T s
Represents operating cash flow provided by our
majority-owned subsidiaries.

Monatization activities

Operations Represents distributions received from our ownership
S ——— in private equity funds.
Fund distributions o - s s

B ' Can be a source or use of cash depending on our taxable
Income taxes income or loss for the year.

Aeguisitions and Inciudes o.mounts to fund new ecguisitions and
foliow-on fundings follow-on Tundings 19 our existing companmes and private
equity funds.

Net corporate. general and

na
admunstrative expenses Consists arimarily of compensation and related expenses.
insurance, rent, travel related expenses, protessional fees
interest and other general corporate expenses, net.

Congists primarily of interest paid on cur convertible
subordinated notes due 2006 and fees related to our
credit faciitics, partially offset by interest income earned
on our cash balances.
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Ttem 1. Business

Business Overview

Safeguard is an operating company that seeks to create long-term value by taking controlling interests in
and developing its companies through superior operations and management. Currently, Safeguard has
acquired and operates businesses that provide business decision and life science software-based product and
service solutions that have reached the “time-to-volume” stage of development. Time-to-volume is the
process of building an efficient company around a commercially viable product with distribution channels,
sales and marketing organization, and a corporate infrastructure that has the capability to grow rapidly and
achieve market success. Safeguard’s existing strategic subsidiaries focus on one or more of the following
vertical markets: financial services, healthcare and pharmaceutical, manufacturing, retail and distribution,
and telecommunications. Safeguard may acquire other time-to-volume technology companies complementary
to its existing companies and markets. Safeguard also owns a number of legacy companies. Safeguard was
incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1953. Safeguard’s business is subject to many risks. See “Factors That May
Affect Results” in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2002 Significant Activities

During 2002, Safeguard focused on acquiring and developing business and IT services companies, which
possess positive and recurring cash flow opportunities, as well as the potential for growth and operational
improvement. In December 2002, Safeguard acquired 100% of Alliance Consulting, an IT consulting firm that
architects and implements digital enterprise strategies for its clients by building and integrating information
technology across every line of business. Safeguard merged two of its existing wholly owned IT services firms,
aligne Strategy and Lever8 Solutions, into Alliance to create a business that generated, in the aggregate,
$109 million of revenues in 2002. Alliance has a unique “assemble-to-order” business model that leverages its
talent base efficiently while being directly responsive to its customers’ complex needs. Alliance’s high-value
digital intelligence capability complements and enhances our existing software companies and will comple-
ment and enhance software companies that will be acquired in the future.

During 2002, Safeguard also focused on acquiring additional equity interests in each of its operating
companies with compelling technology and growth potential in the time-to-volume stage of development.
Safeguard obtained majority ownership positions in ChromaVision and Mantas and increased its majority
positions in SOTAS and Agari Mediaware.

o ChromaVision provides a patented software-based microscope imaging system, ACIS® or automated
cellular imaging system, which aids pathologists in the analysis of various diseases and conditions.
ACIS® uses a proprietary integrated, analytic software solution based on complex algorithms. Many of
the top clinical laboratories, hospitals, university medical centers and biopharmaceutical companies in
the United States and Europe have adopted ChromaVision’s technology.

o Mantas provides behavior detection software that banks, brokerage firms and other financial services
firms currently use to detect potentially suspicious behavior in anti-money laundering and compliance
management. The Mantas platform can analyze billions of accounts and transactions, all in context of
one another, in order to identify suspicious activities that need further review.

o SOTAS provides solutions to wireline and mobile communications service providers. SOTAS com-
bines enabling core technology, that mines and offers universal access to proprietary data from
communications networks and other data sources, with applications in three product lines: (1) Opera-
tions Management, such as Quality of Service, Traffic Management and Best Value Routing;
(2) Revenue Management, which includes Billing Verification, Margin Analysis and Customer
Management; and (3) Security Management, such as Fraud Management and VPN Management.
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o Agari Mediaware provides content application integration (CAI) software that helps media and
entertainment, broadcast, publishing and government organizations leverage the use of their digitally
encoded rich media content investments. Agari has recently signed a strategic partnership agreement
with IBM. Agari’s Media Bus software integrates the legacy applications that create, manage, and
distribute content. Integration enables Agari’s customers to access and use content across departments,
divisions, or companies regardless of repository.

During 2002, Safeguard disposed of certain non-strategic or slow growth assets. These dispositions
included companies and private equity funds, as well as the real estate and improvements comprising the
Safeguard corporate campus. During 2002, Safeguard also reduced its commitments to certain private equity
funds.

2003 Anticipated Activities

In 2003, Safeguard intends to focus its resources on the operations of its majority owned strategic
subsidiaries, Alliance Consulting, ChromaVision, Mantas, Sotas and Agari, to pursue additional market
penetration, revenue growth, cash flow improvement, and long-term value growth. In addition, Safeguard will
continue to seek to acquire companies in their time-to-volume stage of development, particularly in the
diagnostic and decision solutions for business and life sciences, that focus on one or more of the vertical
markets served by Safeguard’s existing strategic subsidiaries (financial services, healthcare and pharmaceuti-
cal, manufacturing, retail and distribution, and telecommunications). Diagnostic and decision solutions can be
defined as complex software-based systems and services that deliver specialized information, which is the basis
for decisions by domain experts in addressing critical business issues. Safeguard anticipates that any new
acquisitions will involve majority interests in companies that are either in the business decision or life sciences
solutions sectors or are complementary to Safeguard’s existing strategic subsidiaries. Safeguard has no
intention of investing in additional private equity funds and may seek to reduce its ownership interest in, and
its commitments to, the funds it currently holds.

In general, Safeguard intends to own companies as long as it believes that it can leverage its resources to
create superior growth opportunities for the company and create value for Safeguard and its shareholders.
Safeguard will then consider divesting the company and redeploying the capital realized to fund its other
business activities or to pursue other acquisition and development opportunities. To the extent Safeguard
believes a company does not fit in its strategy and/or is under performing, Safeguard will consider continuing
to provide operation and management support and possibly funding to achieve an appropriate value prior to
pursuing a monetization transaction. Consistent with that strategy, during 2003, Safeguard will continue to
assess its companies, looking at the strategy of each company, its fit within Safeguard’s strategic focus and its
opportunity for growth and may during the course of the year dispose of additional companies and funds.

Safeguard sees a growing market for companies that offer diagnostic and decision solutions in business
and life sciences in a variety of vertical markets. Currently, Safeguard is strategically and operationally
engaged in growing the following businesses: Alliance Consulting, Agari Mediaware, ChromaVision, Mantas
and SOTAS. Alliance Consulting has a proven track record in architecting, building, and delivering solutions
for the Fortune 2000 market using an advanced project delivery methodology. Alliance has deep domain
expertise in the pharmaceutical, financial services and manufacturing, retail and distribution industries.
ChromaVision, Mantas and SOTAS all use complex algorithms to provide comprehensive, specialized
information yielding the basis of actionable decisions for domain experts. These companies are focused in the
healthcare and pharmaceutical, financial services, manufacturing, retail and distribution, and telecommunica-
tion industries. Safeguard believes focusing on diagnostic and decision solutions will provide value for our
sharcholders and during 2003, Safeguard intends to pursue other acquisition opportunities in this area.




Development of Time-to-Velume Companies

The Challenges

Once a company has a viable product, often as evidenced by initial sales to key customers, the investment
of capital, management and operational expertise will allow it to become a viable company capable of
achieving market success and significant value for Safeguard. Safeguard will make such investments in its
companies with the ultimate goal of making the company a market leader in its relevant industry sector by
assisting the company in addressing the following challenges.

Management Challenges

o The recruitment and retention of an experienced and effective senior management team capable of
providing strategic direction.

o The strategic assessment of technology market opportunities and trends, the design, development and
commercialization of proprietary technology solutions, and access to complementary technologies and
strategic partnerships.

< The development of appropriate corporate, legal and financial structures and the expertise to execute
transactions.

Operational Challenges

o The identification of the company’s strategic market position and the implementation of effective
branding, intellectual property protection, licensing, pricing, distribution, launch and marketing
strategies.

o The establishment of facilities and administrative and operational processes to support the growing
enterprise.

o The creation of relationships that provide customers, external marketing channels and growth through
strategic partnerships, joint ventures or acquisitions.

QOur Solution and Strategy

Safeguard provides the resources to address the challenges facing our companies and enables these
companies to capitalize on their potential opportunities. We provide capital, management and operational
expertise. We believe that our experience in developing and operating technology companies enables us to
identify and attract companies with the greatest potential for success and to assist these companies to become
market leaders and create value for Safeguard and its shareholders.

We provide a full range of operational and management services to each of our companies through
dedicated teams of Safeguard professionals. Each team has expertise in the areas of business and technology
strategy, sales and marketing, operations, finance and legal and transactional support and provides hands-on
assistance to the management of the company in support of its growth. Each team is responsible for all
elements of the acquisition and development of our companies, providing consistency to the relationship
between Safeguard and the company.

Our post-acquisition process for enhancing the value of our companies consists of planning, management
and operational support.

Planning. Once we acquire a company, we take an active role in its strategic direction, providing
management and operational support. Through our experience in developing and operating technology
companies, we have developed a methodology for accelerating our companies’ successes. Prior to closing an
acquisition, we begin to work with a prospective company to:

o define its near term strategic goals;

o identify the key milestones to reaching these goals;

4




» identify the challenges and operational improvements required to reach these goals;

o identify the business measurements that will be applied by Safeguard and the markets to measure its
success; and

e identify potential synergies with Safeguard’s network of companies.

We conduct a needs assessment to determine the nature and timing of the resources required to help the
company achieve its goals. We then either provide the company with appropriate services and support from
within Safeguard and its network or help them identify and negotiate to obtain these services from third-party
suppliers or strategic partners. We help our companies measure their progress and continually reassess their
objectives and requirements. By helping our companies’ management teams remain focused on their critical
objectives, we believe we are able to significantly accelerate their development and success.

We engage in an ongoing planning and assessment process. Through our involvement and engagement in
the developing activities of these companies, seasoned Safeguard executives provide mentoring, advice and
guidance to develop the management strength of our companies. Safeguard executives serve on the board of
directors of each of our companies and work with them to develop their annual strategic and operating plan.
Achievement of the annual plan is monitored through monthly reporting of performance measurements and
financial results.

Management and Operational Support

We provide management and operational support to our companies. These services provide our
companies with significant competitive advantages in competing in their individual markets. The resources our
companies draw upon to accelerate their development include the following:

Management. Safeguard senior management provides active guidance to companies. In addition,
through our network, we have access to entrepreneurial and operational talent that is frequently called upon to
serve on the board of directors or advisory boards of our companies, or in temporary executive capacities
during the development of a company. We also can assist a company to respond to temporary demands for
additional highly qualified personnel through our consulting and service companies.

Marketing. We provide our companies with strategic guidance regarding market positioning, product
launch and marketing and public relations. Insights concerning market position are obtained from our internal
research and trend analysis and the collective intelligence of the companies within our network.

Business Development. Qur business and professional partners offer assistance in identifying, evaluating,
structuring and negotiating joint ventures, strategic alliances, joint marketing agreements, distribution channel
arrangements, acquisitions and other corporate transactions. In addition, we offer our companies a variety of
services designed to reduce their operating costs, enable them to focus on product development and marketing
and accelerate their time-to-volume stage of development.

Emerging Technology. Qur history as a developer of technology companies provides us with ample
resources to support the technology development of a new company. We and our companies may call upon our
service providers to perform strategic and operational technology assessments and to provide support for the
commercialization of technology solutions. Through our network, we are also able to identify and provide
preferred access to complementary technologies and promote strategic partnerships with technology leaders.

Legal and Financial. In addition to the business partner responsible for the acquisition and overall
development of each partner company, we assign a financial and legal partner to each new company. These
professional partners are involved in the due diligence preceding the acquisition and are responsible for
assessing financial and legal issues, including the recommendation of best practices within their areas of
expertise. The expertise of dedicated professional partners remains available to our companies when they are
seeking to execute major corporate or other financial transactions.

5




Safeguard Companies

The following tables provide a summary of our companies in our three principal areas. Cur ownership
positions in the following tables have been calculated as of March 12, 2003 and reflect the percentage of the
vote that we are entitled to cast based on the issued and outstanding voting securities of each company,
excluding the effect of options, warrants and convertible debt. Our ownership percentage assumes the
purchase by Safeguard of equity securities upon satisfaction or waiver of all company funding conditions.
These ownership percentages may reflect the impact of special voting rights held by Safeguard. Where a
material difference exists between voting ownership positions and economic ownership positions as a result of
special voting rights, the table indicates such differences. Safeguard’s ownership position may be entitled to, or
may be subject to, preferential liquidation and dividend rights of outstanding preferential securities issued by
the companies. Safeguard continually assesses its companies looking at the strategy of a company, its fit in
Safeguard’s strategy and the opportunity for growth.

Strategic Initiative Companies

% Owned By
Company Description of Business Safeguard

Alliance Consulting Alliance Consulting architects and implements digital 100%
(www.alliance-consulting.com) enterprise strategies for its clients by integrating

Information Technology across every line of business.

Alliance’s Assemble-to-Order Engagement Team™

approach builds quality project teams that deliver

projects on time and within budget. The company

serves eight major markets across the United States.

Agari Mediaware Agari Mediaware, Inc. creates content application 70%

(www.agarimediaware.com) integration (CAI) software that helps companies
increase return on content investments by better
leveraging the investments they have made in digital
content. Agari’s distributed Media Bus software
integrates the legacy applications that create, manage,
and distribute content. Integration enables Agari’s
customers to access and use content across
departments, divisions, or companies regardless of
repository — digital asset management, content
management, post-production, etc. In addition, it
enables all employees to access departmental
applications such as content transformation or rights
databases. Media Bus integrates non-intrusively,
without requiring any changes to existing systems or
disrupting existing business processes.




Company

ChromaVision Medical Systems
(NASDAQ: CVSN)
(www.chromavision.com)

Mantas
{www.mantas.com)

% Owned By

Description of Business Safeguard
ChromaVision Medical Systems, Inc., develops 56%
innovative medical systems to improve anatomic
pathology diagnostics through accuracy, 62%**

standardization and quantitation. ChromaVision’s
ACIS® or automated cellular imaging system is a
unique patented technology that detects, counts and
classifies cells of clinical interest based on color, size
and shape to assist pathologists in making critical
medical decisions. Peer-reviewed clinical data and
publications have demonstrated that the ACIS digital
microscope and proprietary software can considerably
improve accuracy and consistency over other methods
of laboratory testing. ChromaVision’s mission is to
improve the quality and reduce the cost of patient
care, and speed drug discovery. Many of the top
clinical laboratories, hospitals, university medical
centers and biopharmaceutical companies in the
United States and Europe have adopted the
company’s technology.

Mantas provides behavior detection technology that 63%
banks, brokerage firms and other financial services
firms currently use to detect potentially suspicious
behavior in anti-money laundering and compliance
management. Its new Broker Surveillance Monitor
product will address “mutual fund breakpoints” to
help ensure clients are being charged the correct
amount for mutual fund purchases. All Mantas
products are based on its Behavior Detection Platform
that encompasses proprietary techniques such as Link
Analysis and Sequence Matching to detect potentially
troubling actions. The Mantas platform can analyze
billions of accounts and transactions, all in context of
one another, in order to identify suspicious activities
that need further review. While the nature of Mantas
solutions and its contracts preclude listing clients by
name, its current client base includes many of the
best-known brands in the financial services industry.



% Owned By
Company Description of Business Safeguard

SOTAS SOTAS is a software technology company, providing 75%

(www.sotas.com) solutions to wireline and mobile Communications
Service Providers. The company delivers business
real-time information that allows customers to take
immediate action with a portfolio of Business
Assurance Solutions. SOTAS combines enabling core
technology, that mines and offers universal access to
proprietary data from communications networks and
other data sources, with applications in three product
lines: (1) Operations Management, such as Quality of
Service, Traffic Management and Best Value Routing;
(2) Revenue Management, which includes Billing
Verification, Margin Analysis and Customer
Management; and (3) Security Management, such as
Fraud Management and VPN Management.
BellSouth, Verizon, TELUS and WorldCom are just
a few of the customers that are using SOTAS
business assurance solutions today.

Legacy

Public

% Owned By
Company Description of Business Safeguard

DocuCorp International DocuCorp is the authority in providing dynamic 21%

(NASDAQ:DOCC) solutions for acquiring, managing, personalizing and

{www.docucorp.com) presenting enterprise information. Servicing the entire
enterprise information lifecycle, DocuCorp’s
information application software, application service
provider (ASP) hosting and professional consulting
services enable companies to implement solutions in-
house or fully outsource to DocuCorp. The company
has an installed base of more than 1,200 customers,
including many of the largest insurance, utility and
financial services organizations.

eMerge Interactive eMerge Interactive, Inc. is a technology company 16%

(NASDAQ:EMRG) providing individual-animal tracking, food-safety and

(www.emergeinteractive.com) supply-procurement services to the beef production
industry. The company’s individual-animal tracking
technologies include CattleLog™, an exclusive data-
collection and reporting system that enables beef-
verification and branding. The company’s food-safety
technologies include VerifEYE™, a meat-inspection
system that was developed and patented by scientists
at lowa State University and the Agricultural
Research Service of the USDA for which eMerge
Interactive holds exclusive rights to its
commercialization.




Company

Internet Capital Group, Inc.
(NASDAQ: ICGE)
(www.internetcapital.com)

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc.
(NASDAQ: PACW)
{www.pacwest.com)

Sanchez Computer Associates
(NASDAQ:SCAI)
(www.sanchez.com)

Tangram
NASDAQ: TESI
(www.tangram.com)

Description of Business

Internet Capital Group, Inc. is an Internet company
actively engaged in business-to-business e-commerce
through a network of partner companies. The
company’s primary goal is to build companies that
can obtain number one or number two positions in
their respective markets by delivering software and
services to help businesses increase efficiency and
reduce costs. It provides operational assistance, capital
support, industry expertise, and a strategic network of
business relationships intended to maximize the long-
term market potential of its companies. Internct
Capital Group is headquartered in Wayne, PA.

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc. is a provider of integrated
communications services throughout the western
U.S. Pac-West supplies Internet infrastructure and
broadband services to Internet service providers
(ISPs), and integrated voice, data and Internct
services to small and medium-sized businesses. The
company currently has operations in California,
Nevada, Washington, Colorado, Arizona and Oregon.

Sanchez Computer Associates Inc. is a global leader
in developing and marketing scalable and integrated
software and services that provide banking, customer
integration, brokerage, wealth management and
outsourcing solutions to approximately 400 financial
institutions in 21 countries. Sanchez corporate
headquarters are located in Malvern, PA. The
company’s outsourcing data and operations service
center, Sanchez Data Systems Inc., is located in
Seven Fields, PA. On July 3, 2002, Sanchez
completed its acquisition of Spectra Securities
Software Inc., of Toronto, Canada, a leading provider
of comprehensive wealth management solutions.
Spectra and its products now carry the Sanchez brand
and operate as the company’s wealth management
division.

Tangram Enterprise Solutions, Inc. is a leading
provider of IT asset management solutions for large
and midsize organizations across all industries, in both
domestic and international markets. Tangram’s core
business strategy and operating philosophy center on
delivering world-class customer care, creating a more
personal and productive IT asset management
experience through a phased solution implementation,
providing tailored solutions that support evolving
customer needs, and maintaining a leading-edge
technical position. Today, Tangram’s solutions
manage more than 2 million workstations, servers, and
other related assets.

% Owned By
Safeguard

13%

7%

24%

58%




Private

Company

Kanbay
(www.kanbay.com)

NexTone
(www.nextone.com)

Pacific Title and Arts Studio
(www.pactitle.com)

Protura Wireless
(www.proturawireless.com)

Description of Business

Kanbay is a global business and technology integrator,
addressing complex business issues with customized
legacy-to-Web solutions. Most Kanbay clients are in
insurance, banking and lending, securities and
investments, or credit card services. Since 1989,
clients have benefited from Kanbay’s blend of local,
regional, and offshore resources, enjoying high-quality
deliverables, mitigated project risk, and significant
cost-effectiveness.

Powering the Virtual Central Office, NexTone
Communications is a leading provider of session
controllers for service providers and carriers.
NexTone’s Multiprotocol Signaling Switch and
Multiprotocol Session Controller allow service
providers and carriers to interconnect their voice
networks in the most simple and cost effective way.

Pacific Title and Arts Studio, Inc., founded in 1919,
is a leader in feature film post production services in
Hollywood, CA. Services provided to the major
studios include both digitally and opticaily prepared
main titles, credits, trailers, 2D and 3D special effects,
film scanning and recording, subtitling, film lab
services and title design.

Protura Wireless has developed patent-pending
technology that makes it possible for cellular
manufacturers to switch from cumbersome external
antennas to Protura internal antennas without losing
performance. Protura’s antennas also allow
manufacturers to operate on multiple bands while still
using one antenna. Protura’s technology allows
antennas to be close to the board components without
sacrificing performance so that manufacturers can
make smaller, sleeker phones.
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% Owned By

30%

23%*

30%

84%

56%




Company

REALTIME MEDIA
(www.realtimemedia.com)

QuestOne
(www.questone.com)

ZerOtoSive
(www.zerQtoSive.com)

% Owned By
Description of Business Safeguard

REALTIME MEDIA is a full-service online 9%
relationship marketing company that uses innovative
promotional techniques to deliver awareness,
acquisition, activation, and retention solutions for a
wide variety of clients including members of the
Fortune 100. REALTIME MEDIA was originally
formed to be an Internet promotional services
company and is recognized as an industry pioneer in
online promotions, instant-win, and sweepstakes
technologies. The company has evolved from a
product promotions company to a full solutions
provider for attracting and keeping customers for
leading brands and businesses. These solutions include
media, promotional tactic(s), and back end database
and reporting components that deliver measurable
business results specifically against the client’s
objectives.

QuestOne Decision Sciences Corporation is a decision 33%
sciences company whose technology enables complex
organizations to dramatically improve their ability to

predict financial outcomes of proposed product life-

cycle management (PLM) actions. Unlike all other

PLM methods, QuestOne’s breakthrough technology

quantifies the interrelationships of cash, capacity, and

time-the true drivers of product lifecycle performance.

ZerOtoSive is a marketing and communications firm 33%
that specializes in developing and executing brand and
market strategies for technology companies, products
and services. The core of the company’s offering is
the ZerOtoSive Roadmap — a research-based
methodology that identifies areas of market
opportunity and brand development, and translates
those findings into actionable marketing tactics.
Founded in 1999, ZerOtoSive has offices in

New York, Wayne, PA, Pittsburgh and

San Francisco, and has worked with over 50 public
and private companies to maximize their marketing
potential.




Private Equity Funds

Company

Following is a list of the private
equity funds, which we participate
in managing:

TL Ventures {5 funds)

SCP Private Equity Partners
(2 funds)

Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners
(2 funds)

EnerTech Capital Partners
(2 funds)

CompuCom

CompuCom Systems
(NASDAQ:CMPC)
{www.compucom.com)

% Owned By

Description of Business Safeguard

Safeguard continues to review its investing posture
with respect to private equity funds. During 2002,
Safeguard sold its interests in three off-campus
private equity funds. Safeguard continues to
participate in the management of 11 private equity
funds, which have total capital committed or invested
of more than $2.6 billion. Also, Safeguard is a limited
partner in three other private equity funds, which
have total capital committed of approximately

$0.4 billion. During 2002, Safeguard completed a total
of $16 million in follow-on funding of private equity
funds.

CompuCom Systems, Inc., headquartered in Dallas, 59%
Texas, is a leading provider of [T outsourcing,

technology procurement and systems integration 52%*
services. CompuCom’s clients include Fortune

1000 enterprises, vertical industry leaders, major

technology equipment providers, leading edge systems

integrators and wireless technology providers.

CompuCom leverages people, process and technology

to offer best-in-class solutions that enable, optimize

and operate the digital technology infrastructure.

* Reflects Safeguard’s ownership percentage excluding any super voting provisions or the exercise of

outstanding warrants and options.

** Includes the acquisition of 4,646,408 shares of ChromaVision common stock in February 2003.

Creation of Shareholder Value

COMPUCOM

Our principal mission is to create long-term shareholder value. In general, Safeguard intends to own
companies as long as it believes that the business of the company is within Safeguard’s strategic focus and
Safeguard can leverage its resources to achieve superior revenue, cash-flow and value growth from the
company’s activities. If Safeguard believes that a company fits Safeguard’s strategic focus and is capable of
generating significant cash flow, Safeguard may seek to acquire at least 80% of the equity interests in the
company to allow Safeguard efficient access to the cash flow. When a company no longer meets Safeguard’s
criteria for value creation, Safeguard will consider divesting the company and redeploying the capital realized
in other acquisition and development opportunities. Safeguard may achieve liquidity events from its
companies through a number of means, including sales of the entire company, sales of Safeguard’s interest in
the company, which in the case of Safeguard’s public companies may include sales in the open market or in
privately negotiated sales, and public offerings of the company’s securities.

CompuCom Systems, Inc. (Nasdag: CMPC) is a leading provider of full life-cycle information
technology (“IT”) solutions to large and medium-sized organizations throughout the United States.
CompuCom offers its clients a single-source for procuring, deploying, managing and supporting complex
computing environments. Through its comprehensive portfolio of service and products offerings, CompuCom
helps clients reduce the costs, complexities, obstacles and risks associated with new technology adoption and
acquisition, operational transition and on-going management of their information systems.
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These services include: platform, system, and application design, development and integration; desktop,
help desk, application, and network operations outsourcing; and other IT solutions such as mobile and wireless
services, enterprise and network security, enterprise storage, engineering services, and event technical
management. Combining these services with CompuCom’s ability to provide technology products, including
complex imaging and configuration, and product acquisition services, CompuCom simplifies the selection,
acquisition, deployment, implementation and ongoing management processes of clients’ information systems.

In 2002 CompuCom completed its 16th consecutive profitable year. Revenue declined when compared to
2001, primarily as a result of economic conditions and competitive pressure in CompuCom’s product business.
However, CompuCom achieved revenue growth in its services business and service gross margin dollars
accounted for approximately half of total gross margin dollars, the highest level in CompuCom’s history.
CompuCom also continued its ongoing focus on streamlining its operations and processes, reducing its
operating and financing expense by almost $57 million when compared to 2001 and further strengthening its
balance sheet, ending the year with $128 million in cash.

CompuCom’s strategy incorporates an emphasis on four key components: increasing IT services
revenues; improving service delivery quality; strengthening balance sheet performance; and improving
operating expense management. CompuCom’s strategy to increase 1T services revenues is to focus on the
growth of its services business internally as well as through strategic acquisitions and alliances. CompuCom
expects to experience continued pressure in its product business, as major manufacturers expand their plans to
market and distribute products directly to CompuCom’s clients and as direct marketers’ efforts to sell to the
Fortune 1000 companies intensify. In addition, general economic conditions remain soft. CompuCom believes
these factors may result in lower product revenue and product gross margin dollars in the future. CompuCom
believes that future profitability will depend on a number of factors, including CompuCom’s ability to: focus
on and grow its service business profitably; attract and retain quality services personnel while effectively
managing the utilization of those personnel; respond to increased competition from its suppliers’ direct selling
initiatives; and control operating expense. In addition, future profitability will also depend on overall
improvement in the economy, CompuCom’s ability to effectively manage inventory levels in response to
changes in major suppliers’ price protection and return programs, product demand, competition, manufacturer
product availability and pricing strategies, and effective utilization of vendor programs.

CompuCom defines its operations as two distinct businesses — 1) sales of technology products, which
primarily consist of desktop, networking, storage, and mobile computing products, as well as peripherals and
software-related products and licenses and 2) services, which is primarily derived from application design,
development and maintenance; all aspects of desktop outsourcing, including field engineering, as well as help
desk and LAN/WAN network outsourcing; and other IT services such as configuration, asset tracking,
software management, mobile computing services, IT consulting, training, staff augmentation, and services
provided to support certain manufacturers’ direct fulfillment initiatives.

CompuCom’s product sales accounted for 75% of Safeguard’s total net sales in 2002, compared to 80% in
2001 and 88% in 2000. CompuCom’s services sales accounted for 18% of Safeguard’s total net sales in 2002,
compared to 15% in 2001 and 10% in 2000. Backlog is not considered to be a meaningful indicator of
CompuCom’s future business prospects due to the short order fulfillment cycle, Large corporate businesses
accounted for the majority of CompuCom’s net sales in 2002. However, no one customer accounted for more
than 10% sales in either products or services. Sales of HP and IBM products accounted for approximately 38%
and 21%, respectively, of CompuCom’s 2002 product revenues compared to 45% and 20%, respectively, in
2001 and 50% and 26%, respectively, in 2000. Sales of HP products include sales of Compang, whose
acquisition by HP was completed in May 2002.

CompuCom’s business depends on its relationship with key vendors. A substantial portion of Com-
puCom’s revenues is derived from sales of hardware and software, including HP and IBM personal computer
products. During 2002, sales of products from these two suppliers represented 59% of CompuCom’s total
revenues. In addition, a portion of the services CompuCom provides is directly related to the sales of these
products. CompuCom’s agreements with these vendors contain provisions that provide for periodic renewals
and permit termination by the vendor without cause, generally upon 30 to 90 days notice. In addition,
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CompuCom’s product business is dependent upon pricing and related terms, product availability and dealer
authorizations, including the ability to provide warranty service, offered by its major vendors. A material
adverse effect on CompuCom’s business would occur if a supply agreement with a key vendor was materially
revised, not renewed or terminated, if the supply of products was insufficient or interrupted, or if CompuCom
was no longer allowed to provide warranty service for the vendor.

CompuCom’s industry is characterized by intense competition, primarily in the areas of price, product
availability and breadth of services and product line. Many established original equipment manufacturers
(including some of CompuCom’s vendors), direct marketers, distributors, systems integrators and resellers of
desktop or networking products compete with CompuCom in the configuration and distribution of computer
systems and equipment. Some of these competitors have a pricing advantage over companies such as
CompuCom. In response to this increased competition, some of CompuCom’s competitors have sought to
increase market share through acquisitions. CompuCom expects this consolidation will continue in 2003.
CompuCom also expects the major manufacturers of the products CompuCom sells will continue to pursue a
more direct selling model. In the highly fragmented IT services business, CompuCom competes with several
larger IT service providers (including some of CompuCom’s vendors) in addition to other smaller computer
services companies. Some of these competitors have financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources
that are substantially greater than CompuCom’s. As a result of these factors, CompuCom may face fewer but
larger and better-financed competitors, possibly resulting in a reduction of both revenue and gross margin
dollars.

If CompuCom uses its stock for acquisitions or if some other dilutive event were to occur, Safeguard’s
voting interest in CompuCom could be diluted below 50%, in which event Safeguard would no longer
consolidate CompuCom’s financial results under current generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States. See “‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tion — General.”

CompuCom employed approximately 3,437 full-time employees as of December 31, 2002.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information on net sales, net income and assets employed for each operating segment of Safeguard’s
business for the three-year period ended December 31, 2002 is contained in Note 19 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

Export sales in each segment for the three-year period ended December 31, 2002 were less than 5% of the
segment’s total sales in each of those years. Backlog is not considered to be a meaningful indication of future
business prospects for any of the Company’s operating segments.

The operations of Safeguard and its companies are subject to environmental laws and regulations.
Safeguard does not believe that expenditures relating to those laws and regulations will have a material
adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations of Safeguard.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2002, Safeguard and its consolidated subsidiaries have approximately 4,614 employees,
of which CompuCom employs approximately 74%. Safeguard believes relations with employees are good.

EXECUTIVE GFFICERS

Information about Safeguard’s executive officers can be found in Part III of this report under “Item 10.
Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant.”
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

All periodic and current reports, registration statements, and other filings that the Company is required to
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), including the Company’s annual report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, are available through the Company’s
Internet website at http://www.safeguard.com. Such documents are available as soon as reasonably practica-
ble after electronic filing of the material with the SEC. The Company’s Form 10-Q for the third quarter of
2002 and its Form 8-K filed in November 2002 were timely filed with the SEC and posted to the Company’s
website on December 6, 2002. The Company’s Internet website and the information contained therein or
connected thereto are not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The public may also read and copy any materials filed by the Company with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an
Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC; the address of that site is Atzp://www.sec.gov.

Item 2. Properties

Safeguard’s corporate headquarters and administrative offices in Wayne, Pennsylvania contain approxi-
mately 31,000 square feet of office space in one building. In October 2002, Safeguard sold this facility along
with the office park in which our corporate headquarters and administrative offices are located. Safeguard
leased back its corporate headquarters for a seven-year term with one five-year renewal option. Additionally,
we lease approximately 3,300 square feet of office space in Boston, Massachusetts. The lease expires in June
2005 with two six-month renewal options. In June 2002, we closed our office facility in Palo Alto, California.
Our companies have various facilities throughout the United States, and they believe they can readily obtain
additional facilities as needed to support their anticipated needs.

CompuCom’s executive and administrative facility in Dallas, Texas contains approximately
250,000 square feet of office space in two buildings on 20 acres. In 1999, CompuCom sold this facility and
leased it back for a 20-year term with two five-year renewal options. CompuCom leases two floors totaling
42,500 square feet of office space in Mason, Ohio, which houses one of its two client assistance centers. The
lease expires July 2005 with a five-year renewal option. As part of the first quarter 2000 restructuring plan,
CompuCom consolidated operations to one floor. CompuCom leases distribution, integration and configura-
tion services in New Jersey. Effective August 1, 2001 CompuCom exercised its option to extend the term of
the lease for an additional three years, until July 31, 2004. In September 2002, CompuCom terminated its
lease for its second facility in New Jersey and in July 2001, CompuCom closed its warehouse space in North
Carolina and exercised its early termination right effective March 2003.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Litigation Avising Ouz Of The Initial Public Offering of Opus360 Corporation

Beginning in April 2001, the Company, CompuCom Systems, Inc., a Company affiliate, and a former
officer of Safeguard who served as a Director of Opus360 Corporation, were named in putative class actions
filed in federal court in New York. The plaintiffs alleged material misrepresentations and/or omissions in
connection with the initial public offering of Opus360 Corporation stock on April 7, 2000.

On October 2, 2002, the court granted the motion to dismiss filed by Safeguard and CompuCom with
respect to the claims under Section 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933. The court also granted the motion
to dismiss filed by all defendants due to the absence of any material misstatement or omission in the
prospectus and registration statement (without prejudice to repleading within 30 days). On October 30, 2002,
plaintiffs served their second amended consolidated class action complaint. The amended complaint does not
name Safeguard or CompuCom as defendants and thus there are no pending actions against Safeguard or
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CompuCom. It remains unclear whether plaintiffs will seek to appeal the dismissal of their claims against
Safeguard and CompuCom at the conclusion of the still-pending action against the remaining defendants.

Safeguard Scientifics Securities Litigation

On June 26, 2001, the Company and Warren V. Musser, the Company’s former Chairman, were named
as defendants in a putative class action filed in federal court in Philadelphia. Plaintiffs allege that defendants
failed to disclose that Mr. Musser had pledged some or all of his Safeguard stock as collateral to secure margin
trading in his personal brokerage accounts. Plaintiffs allege that defendants’ failure to disclose the pledge,
along with their failure to disclose several margin calls, a loan to Mr. Musser, the guarantee of certain margin
debt and the consequences thereof on Safeguard’s stock price, violated the federal securities laws. Plaintiffs
allege claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

On August 17, 2001, a second putative class action was filed against the Company and Mr. Musser
asserting claims similar to those brought in the first proceeding. In addition, plaintiffs in the second case allege
that the defendants failed to disclose possible or actual manipulative aftermarket trading in the securities of
Safeguard’s companies, the impact of competition on prospects for one or more of Safeguard’s companies and
the Company’s lack of a superior business plan.

These two cases have been consolidated for further proceedings under the name “In Re: Safeguard
Scientifics Securities Litigation” and the Court has approved the designation of a lead plaintiff and the
retention of lead plaintiffs’ counsel. The plaintiffs have filed a consolidated and amended complaint. On
May 23, 2002, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss the consolidated and amended complaint for failure to
state claim upon which relief may be granted. On October 24, 2002, the Court denied the defendants’ motions
to dismiss, holding that, based on the allegations of plaintiffs’ consolidated and amended complaint, dismissal
would be inappropriate at this juncture. While the outcome of this litigation is uncertain, the Company
believes that it has valid defenses to plaintiffs’ claims and intends to defend the lawsuit vigorously.

General

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote Of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise,
during the fourth quarter of 2002.
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PART IL

Item 5. Mavrket for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Symbol: SFE). The high and
low sale prices reported within each quarter of 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

_High  Low

Fiscal year 2002:
First quarter .. ... $ 447  $2.60
Second qUATIET . . ...t 3.29 1.59
Third QUarteT .. ... 2.01 1.11
Fourth quarter . ... .. 2.35 0.86

Fiscal year 2001:
First QUATEET .ottt e e e $12.81 $4.60
Second QUATTET . .. .ot e 7.23 3.35
Third qUarter .. ... .o 5.00 1.55
Fourth quarter . ... ... 4.65 1.71

The high and low sale prices reported in 2003 through March 12 were $1.80 and $1.16, respectively, and
the last sale price reported on March 12, 2003, was $1.21. No cash dividends have been declared in any of the
years presented, and the Company has no present intention to declare cash dividends.

As of March 12, 2003 there were approximately 77,400 beneficial holders of the Company’s common
stock.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

NONE

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following table sets forth our selected consolidated financial information for the five years in the
period ended December 31, 2002. The selected consolidated financial data presented below should be read in
conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in this report. The historical results
presented herein may not be indicative of future results.

December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ......... $254779 $ 298,095 § 133201 $ 49813 § 6,257
Short-term investments ........... 9,986 — 51,230 — —_—
Restricted cash .................. 3,634 8,033 35,000 — —
Working capital . .............. ... 242,146 349,444 313,825 133,839 251,991
Total assets ...............oun.. 868,666 1,192,263 1,648,259 1,499,879 1,068,650
Long-term debt .................. 932 19,599 13,422 13,944 204,271
Capital leases.................... 1,066 539 71 588 773
Other long-term liabilities ......... 14,032 11,579 164,765 175,611 1,317
Convertible subordinated notes .. ... 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 71,345

Total shareholders’ equity ......... 272,273 418,676 904,437 574,701 342,859
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Consolidated Statements of
Operations Data:

Revenue
Productsales...................

Operating Expenses
Cost of sales — product..........
Cost of sales — service
Selling and service ..............
General and administrative . ... ...
Depreciation and amortization . . . .
Restructuring

Total operating expenses .......

Gains on issuance of stock by affiliates
Other income (loss), net...........
Impairment — related party (Note 1)
Interest income. ..................
Interest and financing expense ... ...

Income (loss) before income taxes,
minority interest, equity loss and
change in accounting principle . . ..

Income taxes (expense) benefit.. ...

Minority interest..................

Equity loss

Net income (loss) before change in
accounting principle . ............

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . ........ ...

Net Income (Loss) ...............

Basic Income (Loss) Per Share:
Prior to cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . .......

Diluted Income (Loss) Per Share:
Prior to cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . .......

Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding
Basic ...l

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2061 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands except per share amounts)

$1,289,353  §$1,552,999  $2,457,572 $2,661,498  $2,022,131
372,132 345,606 291,355 318,834 280,178
24,069 27,063 22,299 13,912 11,949
1,685,554 1,925,668 2,771,226 2,994,244 2,314,258
1,168,948 1,392,845 2,257,624 2,434,068 1,813,282
241,150 224,556 184,218 207,208 185,561
131,308 144,047 150,351 165,036 167,715
141,501 171,006 200,051 152,047 102,535
32,882 40,748 33,462 30,528 21,738
— — 5,417 387 16,437
1,715,789 1,973,202 2,831,123 2,989,274 2,307,268
(30,235) (47,534) (59,897) 4,970 6,990
—_ —_ — 175,662 3,782
(11,724) (41,332) 93,105 128,404 208,697
(11,434) — — — —
8,260 12,339 18,097 4,839 2,742
(24,085) (30,134) (41,897) (41,807) (29,720)
(69,218) (106,661} 9,408 272,068 192,491
(7,418) 6,842 100,323 (66,514)  (61,424)
(1,453) (3,334) (2,213) (8,936) (47)
(51,004)  (395947)  (319.922)  (73,092)  (20,897)
(129,093)  (499,100)  (212,404) 123,526 110,123
(21,390) — — — _
$ (150,483) $(499,100) §$ (212,404) $ 123,526 $ 110,123
$ (1.10) $ (426) $ (1.86) $ 122 $ 115
(0.18) — — — —
$ (1.28) $  (426) $ (1.86) $§ 122 $ 115
$ (1.12) $ (421) $ (187) $ 116 $  1.07
(0.18) — — — —
$ (130) $ (427) $  (187) $ 116 $ 107
117,736 117,290 114,068 101,134 95,499
117,736 117,290 114,068 110,910 104,742

No cash dividends have been declared in any of the years presented, and we have no present intention to

declare cash dividends.

18




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The statements contained in this Annual Report that are not historical facts are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These statements
involve certain risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to be materially different
from those contemplated by these statements. These risks and uncertainties include the factors described
elsewhere in this report and in our filings with the SEC. We do not assume any obligation to update any
forward-looking statements or other information contained in this Annual Report.

Certain amounts for prior periods in the Consolidated Financial Statements, and in the discussion below,
have been reclassified to conform with current period presentations.

General

We are an operating company that seeks to create long-term value by taking controlling interests in and
developing our companies through superior operations and management. Currently, we have acquired and
operate businesses that provide business decision and life science software-based product and service solutions
that have reached the “time-to-volume” stage of development. Time-to-volume is the process of building an
efficient company around a commercially viable product with distribution channels, sales and marketing
organization, and a corporate infrastructure that has the capability to grow rapidly and achieve market success.
We provide the resources to address the challenges facing our companies and enable these companies to
capitalize on their potential opportunities. These resources include capital, management and operational
expertise. We believe that our experience in developing and operating technology companies enables us to
identify and attract companies with the greatest potential for success and to assist these companies to become
market leaders and create value for us and our shareholders. Our existing strategic subsidiaries focus on one or
more of the following vertical markets: financial services, healthcare and pharmaceutical, manufacturing,
retail and distribution, and telecommunications. We may acquire other time-to-volume technology companies
complementary to our companies and markets. We also own a number of legacy companies.

Many of our companies that we account for under the equity method or consolidation method are
technology-related companies with limited operating histories that have not generated significant revenues and
have incurred substantial losses in prior periods. We expect these losses to continue in 2003. In addition, we
expect to continue to acquire interests in more technology-related companies that may have operating losses
when we acquire them. Additionally, we expect certain of our existing companies to continue to invest in their
products and services and to recognize operating losses related to those activities. As a result, Safeguard’s
operating losses attributable to its corporate operations, its equity accounted subsidiaries and its consolidated
subsidiaries could continue to be significant. It is reasonably possible that the impairment factors evaluated by
management will change in subsequent periods, given that we operate in a volatile business environment. This
could result in additional material impairment charges in future periods. Our financial results are also affected
by acquisitions or dispositions of our subsidiaries or equity or debt interests in our subsidiaries. These
transactions have resulted in significant volatility in our financial results which we expect will continue during
2003.

Our operations are classified into four operating segments: 1) Strategic Private Companies; ii) Public
Companies (excluding CompuCom); iii) CompuCom Operations; and (iv) Other Private Companies and
Funds.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements are discussed in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The following is a
listing of our critical accounting policies and a brief discussion of each:

 Principles of accounting for ownership interests in affiliates

« Recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets, net
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o Recoverability of ownership interests in and advances to affiliates

= Recoverability of notes receivable — related party
o Income taxes

e Revenue recognition

o Allowance for doubtful accounts

o Commitments and contingencies

Principles of Accounting for Ownership Interests in Affiliates

The various interests that we acquire in our companies and private equity funds are accounted for under
three methods: consolidation, equity and cost. The applicable accounting method is generally determined
based on our voting interest in the entity.

QOur Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries in
which we directly or indirectly own more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities. If this majority voting
ownership is likely to be temporary, we account for the company under the equity method. Under the
consolidation method, a company’s results of operations are included within our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Participation of minority shareholders of entities which we consolidate in our income or loss is
reflected in Minority Interest in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Minority interest adjusts our
consolidated net income (loss) to reflect only our share of the earnings or losses of the consolidated company.

Companies and private equity funds, in which we own equity interests and whose results we do not
consolidate, but over whom we exercise significant influence, or for whom majority voting ownership is likely
to be temporary, are generally accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Whether or not we
exercise significant influence with respect to companies in which we invest depends on an evaluation of several
factors including, among others, our representation on the company’s board of directors and ownership level,
which is generally a 20% to 50% interest in the voting securities of the company, including voting rights
associated with our holdings in common, preferred and other convertible instruments in the company. We also
account for our interests in some private equity funds under the equity method of accounting, based on our
respective general and limited interests. Under the equity method of accounting, a company’s results of
operations are not reflected within our Consolidated Statements of Operations; however, our share of the
income or losses of the company is reflected in Equity Income (Loss) in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. We are required to recognize our share of losses to the extent we have a cost basis in the investee
or outstanding commitments or guarantees. The share of income or losses is generally based upon our voting
ownership of the company’s securities, which may be different from the percentage of the economic ownership
of the company held by us.

The effect of an affiliate’s net results of operations on our results of operations is the same under either
the consolidation method of accounting or the equity method of accounting, because under each of these
methods only our share of the income or losses of an affiliate is reflected in our net results of operations in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Companies and private equity funds, in which we own equity interests and that we do not account for
under either the consolidation or the equity method of accounting are accounted for under the cost method of
accounting. Under the cost method, the Company’s share of the income or losses of such entities is not
included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. However, the effect of the change in market value of
cost method holdings classified as trading securities is reflected in our results of operations during each
reporting period.

Recoverability of Goodwill, net

We periodically assess the impairment of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that we consider important which could trigger an
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impairment review include significant underperformace relative to historical or expected future operating
results, significant changes in the manner or use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business,
significant negative industry or economic trends or a decline in its stock price for a sustained period.

If we determine that the carrying value of identifiable goodwill may not be recoverable based upon the
existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, we assess the recoverability of the intangibles.

We test goodwill for impairment at a level referred to as a reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount, the goodwill is considered potentially impaired and a loss is recognized if
its carrying value exceeds its implied fair value. To determine fair value, we may use a number of valuation
methods including quoted market prices, discounted cash flows and revenue multiples. As an overall check on
the reasonableness of the fair values attributed to our reporting units, we will consider comparing and
contrasting the aggregate fair values for all reporting units with our average total market capitalization for a
reasonable period of time. However, SFAS 142 states that the fair value may exceed market capitalization due
to factors such as control premiums and synergies. In accordance with SFAS 142, approximately $1.3 million
of negative goodwill associated with a CompuCom acquisition was written off as of January 1, 2002. The
Company’s share of this adjustment, net of income taxes, was $0.4 million. Additionally, under SFAS No. 142
the Company was required to test all existing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives for
impairment as of January 1, 2002. The Company completed the required testing during the second quarter of
2002. As a result, the Company reported a $21.8 million goodwill impairment loss in the Business and IT
services reporting unit (a component of the Company’s Strategic Private Companies segment). In accordance
with SFAS 142, this loss was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle effective January 1, 2002. For periods prior to 2002, the Company recorded
goodwill amortization of $12.6 million in 2001 and $8.5 miltion in 2000 relating to consolidated companies.

Recoverability of Other Intangible Assets, Net

In accordance with SFAS 142, management conducts a review for impairment at least annually on all
intangible assets. We periodically assess the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that we consider important
which could trigger an impairment review include significant underperformace relative to historical or
expected future operating results, significant changes in the manner or use of the acquired assets or the
strategy for the overall business, significant negative industry or economic trends or a decline in its stock price
for a sustained period.

If we determine that the carrying value of identifiable intangible assets may not be recoverable based
upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, we assess the recoverability of the
intangibles.

We test other intangible assets for impairment at a level referred to as a reporting unit. If the fair value of
the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the other intangible asset is considered potentially impaired
and a loss is recognized if its carrying value exceeds its implied fair value. To determine fair value, we may use
a number of valuation methods including quoted market prices, discounted cash flows and revenue multiples.
As an overall check on the reasonableness of the fair values attributed to our reporting units, we will consider
comparing and contrasting the aggregate fair values for all reporting units with our average total market
capitalization for a reasonable period of time. However, SFAS 142 states that the fair value may exceed
market capitalization due to factors such as control premiums and synergies. Purchased in-process research
and development (“IPR&D”) represents the value assigned in a purchase business combination to research
and development projects of the acquired business that had commenced but had not yet been completed at the
date of acquisition and which have no alternative future use. In accordance with SFAS No. 2, “Accounting for
Research and Development Costs”, as clarified by FASB Interpretation No. 4, amounts assigned to IPR&D
meeting the above criteria must be charged to expense as part of the allocation of the purchase price of the
business combination. Total expense related to IPR&D for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
$1.1 million.
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Recoverability of Ownership Intevests In and Advances to Affiliates

On a continuous basis, but no less frequently than at the end of each quarterly reporting period, we
evaluate the carrying value of our ownership interests in and advances to each of our affiliates for possible
impairment based on achievement of business plan objectives and milestones, the fair value of each ownership
interest in and advances to each affiliate relative to its carrying value, the financial condition and prospects of
the affiliate and other relevant factors. The business plan objectives and milestones we consider include,
among others, those related to financial performance such as achievement of planned financial results or
completion of capital raising activities, and those that are not primarily financial in nature, such as the hiring
of key employees or the establishment of strategic relationships. We then determine whether there has been an
other than temporary decline in the carrying value of the affiliate. Impairment charges are determined by
comparing the estimated fair value of our company with the carrying value. The fair value of our ownership
interests in and advances to our privately held companies is generally determined based on the value at which
independent third parties have invested or have committed to invest in these companies, or the value
negotiated with the company’s founders. The fair value of our ownership interests in private equity funds is
generally determined based on the value of our pro rata portion of the funds’ net assets.

We operate in an industry which is rapidly evolving and extremely competitive. It is reasonably possible
that our accounting estimates with respect to the useful life and ultimate recoverability of the carrying value,
including goodwill, could change in the near term and that the effect of such changes on our Consolidated
Financial Statements could be material. While we believe that the current recorded carrying values of our
affiliates are not impaired, there can be no assurance that our future results will confirm this assessment or that
a significant write-down or write-off of the carrying value will not be required in the future. Total impairment
charges for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $42.7 million, $135.9 million and
$148.7 million.

Recoverability of Related Party Notes Receivable

In May 2001, we consummated a definitive agreement with our former Chairman and CEQO, Mr. Musser,
under which we loaned him $26.5 million. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of 7% and became payable
on a limited basis on January 1, 2003. Safeguard sent Mr. Musser a demand notice and, when no payment was
received, a default notice. In conjunction with the original loan, Mr. Musser granted us security interests in
securities and real estate as collateral. As of December 31, 2002, the value of the collateral pledged by
Mr. Musser to secure the loan had an approximate value of $14.5 million compared to the loan’s carrying
value of $25.9 million and we concluded that the decline in the collateral was other than temporary. Based on
the information available to us, we also concluded that Mr. Musser may not have sufficient personal assets to
satisfy the outstanding balance due under the loan when the loan becomes full recourse against Mr. Musser on
April 30, 2006. At December 31, 2002 we have impaired the loan by $11.4 million to the estimated value of
the collateral that we hold. The Company does not accrue interest when a note is considered impaired. When
ultimate collectibility of the principal balance of the impaired note is in doubt, all cash receipts on impaired
notes are applied to reduce the principal amount of such note until the principal has been recovered and is
recognized as interest income, thereafter. We will continue to evaluate the value of the collateral to the
carrying value of the note on a quarterly basis.

Income Taxes

We must assess the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income
and to the extent that we believe recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. To the extent
we establish a valuation allowance in a period, we must include an expense within the tax provision in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. We have recorded a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax
asset to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized in future years.
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Revenue Recognition

Our revenues are the combination of the revenues of all of our consolidated affiliates. We derive revenue
from two primary sources: (i) sale of products, both merchandise and software licenses; and (ii) services,
which includes consulting services, including the implementation of software license products, and software
maintenance. As described below, significant management judgments and estimates must be made and used
in connection with the revenue recognized in any accounting period. Material differences may result in the
amount and timing of our revenue for any period if management made different judgments or utilized different
estimates.

Of our total product revenue, 98% is derived from our majority-owned subsidiary, CompuCom. Product
revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales
price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. Generally for product sales, these criteria are met
at the time of delivery to 2 common carrier. Provision is made at the time the related revenue is recognized for
estimated product returns, which historically have been immaterial. When evaluating the adequacy of
provisions for sales returns, historical returns, current economic trends and changes in customer demand are
analyzed. Determination of whether the sales price is fixed and determinable is based on the payment terms
associated with the transaction. Collectibility is assessed based on a number of factors, including past
transaction history with the customer and the credit-worthiness of the customer. Revenue is deferred if
collection is not reasonably assured; revenue is then recognized at the time collection becomes reasonably
assured, which is generally upon receipt of cash. For all sales, a binding purchase order or signed sales
agreement as evidence of an arrangement is used.

Certain subsidiaries recognize revenue from software licenses, post contract customer support (PCS) and
related consulting services. Revenue from software license agreements and product sales are recognized upon
delivery, provided that all of the following conditions are met: a non-cancelable license agreement has been
signed; the software has been delivered; no significant production, modification or customization of the
software is required; the vendor’s fee is fixed or determinable; and collection of the resulting receivable is
deemed probable. In software arrangements that include rights to software products, specified upgrades or
gateways, PCS and/or other services, the companies allocate the total arrangement fee among each
deliverable based on vendor-specific objective evidence. Revenue from maintenance agreements is recognized
ratably over the term of the maintenance period, generally one year. Consulting and training services
(classified as service revenue), which are not considered essential to the functionality of the software products,
are recognized as the respective services are performed. Consulting fee revenue is recognized in the period in
which services are performed and include all amounts that are billed or billable to clients.

Services revenue is primarily billed based on hourly rates and recognized as services are performed or
ratably over the contract term. Certain services are performed under fixed-price service contracts. Revenue
from these contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method based on the percentage that
incurred costs-to-date bear to the estimated total costs after giving effect to the most recent estimates of total
cost. Losses expected to be incurred on jobs in process are charged to income in the period such losses become
known. Amounts received from customers in excess of revenues recognized are classified as current liabilities.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our allowance for doubtful accounts relate to trade and vendor accounts receivable, primarily at
CompuCom. CompuCom represents 81% of our accounts receivable balance before allowances for doubtful
accounts. Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements summarizes the activity in these
accounts. CompuCom generates trade receivables from product and service sales to its clients. CompuCom
generates vendor rebate receivables from its participation in certain manufacturers’; customer specific rebate
programs. Under these programs, CompuCom is required to pay a higher initial amount for the product and
then claim a rebate from the manufacturer to reduce the final cost. These rebates are then passed on to the
customer in the form of a reduced sales price. The collection of these rebates can take an extended period of
time. Due to these vendor rebate programs, CompuCom’s initial cost of the product is often higher than the
sales price CompuCom can obtain from its clients. The amounts due from manufacturers under such
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customer specific rebate programs are recorded as a reduction to Accounts payable on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estimate prepared by management based on
identification of the collectibility of specific accounts and the overall condition of the receivable portfolios. We
specifically analyze trade and vendor rebate receivables, historical bad debts, customer credits, customer
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends, changes in customer payment terms and
the complexities of vendor-mandated program requirements, when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance
for doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of customers or vendors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Likewise, should we
determine that we would be able to realize more of our receivables in the future than previously estimated, an
adjustment tc the allowance would increase income in the period such determination was made. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed on a quarterly basis and adjustments are recorded as deemed
necessary.

Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, we are a defendant or plaintiff in various legal actions, which arise in the normal
course of business. We are also a guarantor of various third-party obligations and commitments, and subject to
the possibility of various loss contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business. We are required to assess
the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters as well as potential ranges of probable
losses. A determination of the amount of provision required for these contingencies, if any, which would be
charged to earnings, is made after careful analysis of each individual issue. The required provision may change
in the future due to new developments in each matter or changes in circumstances, such as a change in
settlement strategy. Changes in required provision could increase or decrease our earnings in the period the
changes are made.

Effect of Various Accounting Methods on the Presentation of our Consolidated Financial Statements

The presentation of our financial statements may differ from period to period primarily due to the
applicable accounting method used for recognizing our equity interests in the operating results of an affiliate.
For example, the presentation of our financial statements is significantly influenced by the consolidated results
of operations of CompuCom, which we consolidate based on our 59% voting interest.

To understand our net results of operations and financial position without the effect of consolidating our
consolidated companies, please refer to Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, which summarizes
our parent company statements of operations and balance sheets and presents our consolidated companies as if
they were accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Our share of the income or losses of the
consolidated companies is included in Equity Income (Loss) in the Parent Company Statements of
Operations. The carrying value of these companies is included in Ownership Interests In and Advances to
Affiliates on the Parent Company Balance Sheets.

Although the parent company statements of operations and balance sheets presented in Note 17 reflect
our historical results, they are not necessarily indicative of future parent company balance sheets and
statements of operations.

Net Results of Operations

Our reportable segments include i) Strategic Private Companies, which includes those companies that we
focus on with the goal of accelerating value creation; ii) Public Companies (excluding CompuCom), which
includes the results of operations of our publicly-traded companies (excluding CompuCom); iii) CompuCom,
which represents the results of our subsidiary, CompuCom; and iv) Other Private Companies and Funds,
which represents other private companies and private equity funds in which we hold an equity interest.
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At December 31, 2002, we had ownership in 21 companies, which were classified into the following

segments:

Strategic Private Cther Private Companies Public Companies
Companies and Funds (excluding CompuCom) CompuCom
Consolidated Agari Mediaware(70%)  Pacific Title and Arts Tangram (58%) CompuCom (59%)
Alliance Studio(84%) ChromaVision
Consulting (100%) Medical Systems(56%)

aligne (100%)
Lever8 Solutions (100%)

Mantas (63%)
Protura(56%)
SOTAS(75%)
Equity Kanbay(30%) DocuCorp(21%)
Nextone (30%) eMerge
Interactive (16%)
QuestOne (33%) Internet Capital
Group(13%)
Zer0toSive (33%) Sanchez{24%)
Cost RealTime Media(9%) Pac-West
Telecomm (7%)

The percentages above reflect our voting ownership at December 31, 2002. Although we own less than
20% of the voting stock of some of these companies, we accounted for these companies on the equity method
as we believe we have the ability to exercise significant influence based on our representation on each
company’s board of directors and other factors.

In periods prior to 2002, our reportable segments were General Safeguard Operations, Partner Company
Operations and CompuCom Operations. All prior periods have been restated to conform to the current-year
presentation. The development of the current segments corresponds to the implementation of our shift in
strategic focus announced in early 2002, and represents management’s view of our operations.

Each segment includes the results of the consolidated companies and records our share of income or
losses for entities accounted for under the equity method. Segment results also include impairment charges,
gains or losses related to the disposition of our companies and the mark to market of trading securities. All
significant intersegment activity has been eliminated. Accordingly, segment results reported exclude the effect
of transactions between us and our subsidiaries.

Other items, which include corporate expenses, results of operations of disposed companies, goodwill
amortization, prior to January 1, 2002, and income taxes, are reviewed by management independent of
segment results. Corporate expenses include the costs of providing operations and management support to our
companies. Results of operations — dispositions includes the results for companies which were disposed of
prior to the new segments being developed. Goodwill is no longer amortized as a result of the adoption of
SFAS 142 effective January 2002.

25



The Company’s operating results by segment are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000

(In thousands)
$ (11,112) $ (4,197)

(138,758) 87,103
(192,672) (98,576)
7,668 7,165

(334,874) (8,505)
(60,624)  (80,174)
(77,818)  (190,963)
(32,626)  (33,085)

6,842 100,323

2002

Strategic private COMPANIES . . v ovvvv e e v iveiiiinens $ (24,984)
QOther private companies and funds.................... (38,880)
Public companies (excluding CompuCom) ............. (26,782)
CompuCom . ... i e 19,002
Total segments ......... it (71,644)
Corporate operations. . ..........coerirnenrernnenn.. (50,031)
Results of operations — dispositions . .................. —
Goodwill amortization not included in segments above ... —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ... (21,390)
Income tax (expenses) benefit ....................... (7,418)

$(150,483)

$(499,100) $(212,404)

Strategic Private Companies

The strategic private company segment includes the results of operation of the following companies:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001

2000

Consolidated Agari

Agari (since October 2001) aligne

aligne . aligne SOTAS
Alliance (since December Palarco
2002) SOTAS

Lever8 Solutions

Mantas (since April 2002)
Protura

SOTAS

Equity 0 1 0
(Number of

companies

as of the

end of the

period

reported )
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Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Revenue ... o $ 50,296 § 54,862 $24,693
Total operating expenses ........c...oovvvieieinnian... 74,034 63,376 29,139

(23,738) (8,514)  (4,446)
Otherloss, net. ... ... i i (4,377) — —
Interest income (expense), net .......... ... ... ..., (411) 47 (724)
Minority Interest ... ..ttt e 5,499 745 973
Equity 1oss . ..o (1,957) (3,390) —
Net loss before change in accounting principle . ............. (24,984)  (11,112)  (4,197)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ......... (21,815) — —
Nt 0SS ettt e $(46,799) S$(11,112) $(4,197)

Revenue. Revenue decreased $4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the prior
year period. Of this decrease, $17.6 million relates to a decline in consulting revenue at aligne and Lever8 for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the prior year period. The decrease is due to reduced demand
for IT services and continued market softness. The decrease was partially offset by an increase in revenue at
SOTAS of $2.6 million and $10.4 million due to the inclusion of revenue for Mantas, Protura and Alliance
Consulting in 2002 subsequent to consolidating their results. Revenue increased $30.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the prior year period. Of this increase, $31.8 million relates to an
increase in consulting revenue at our wholly owned subsidiaries aligne, K Consultants and Palarco. The
increase is mainly attributable to the inclusion of revenue for Palarco subsequent to consolidating its results in
January 2001. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in revenue at SOTAS of $1.7 million.

Operating Expenses. Qperating expenses increased $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to the prior year periods. Of the increase, $28.8 million of operating expenses primarily relates to
Mantas, Protura and Alliance subsequent to consolidating their results in 2002. Excluding these companies,
total operating expenses decreased $18.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the prior
year period. This is due to a $4.3 million decrease in costs at SOTAS and a $13.8 million decrease in costs at
aligne and Lever8 Solutions for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the prior year period. During
the second half of 2001 and the first half of 2002, these companies took steps to reduce their costs to better
align their overall cost structure and organization with anticipated demand for their products and services.
These steps, including a reduction in the number of consultants and functional support personnel, were taken
as a result of the continued decline in demand for technology services. Operating expenses increased
$34.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the prior year period. Of this increase,
$28.8 million relates to our wholly owned subsidiaries aligne, K Consultants and Palarco. The increase is
mainly attributable to the inclusion of operating expenses for Palarco subsequent to consolidating its results in
January 2001. SOTAS attributed $3.4 million of the increase and $2.0 million is the resuit of including Agari’s
operating expenses subsequent to its consolidation in 2001.

Other Loss. Other loss reflects impairment charges for our companies judged to have experienced an
other than temporary decline in value.

Equity Loss. Equity loss in 2002 includes our share of Mantas’ results of operations. We acquired a
controlling interest in Mantas in April 2002. As a result, we consolidated Mantas’ results in the second quarter
of 2002. Prior to the second quarter of 2002, we accounted for Mantas under the equity method of accounting.
Equity loss in 2001 includes our share of Mantas and Agari’s results of operations. We acquired a controlling
interest in Agari in October 2001. As a result, we consolidated Agari’s results in the fourth quarter of 2001.
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Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle. In connection with the transitional impairment
test performed upon the adoption of SFAS 142, we reported a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle (sece Note 6).

Other Private Companies and Funds

The other private companies and funds segment includes the results of operations of the following
companies:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Consolidated Pacific Title Pacific Title (since August 2001) None
Aptas (through March 2002) Aptas (since October 2001)
Equity 5 6 6

{Number of companies as of the
end of the period reported)

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

REVENUE .« . oot $ 46,960 $ 40,088  $22,207
Operating eXPenses . . .o vttt et 49,610 40,272 17,955

(2,650) (184) 4,252
Other income (loss), net ...... ...t 7,319 (18,874) 58,548
Interest and financing expense, net ....................... (767) (89) 160
MInority Interest .. ... o v 262 (188) —
Equity income (loss) ......... .. i (43,044)  (119,423) 24,143

$(38,880) $(138,758) $87,103

Revenue. Revenue increased $6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 and $17.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the prior year period. The increase for the year ended
December 31, 2002 is due to the inclusion for the full year of revenue at Pacific Title subsequent to
consolidating their results in August 2001, partially offset by a decrease in management fees charged to private
equity funds. The increase for the year ended December 31, 2001 is due to the inclusion of revenue related to
the operations of Pacific Title and Aptas subsequent to consolidating their results in the third and fourth
quarter of 2001, respectively, partially offset by reduced management fees.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses increased $9.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
and $22.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the prior year periods. The increase
for the year ended December 31, 2002 is due to increased operating expenses at Pacific Title, partially offset
by reduced costs to manage certain private equity funds. The increase for the year ended December 31, 2001 is
due the inclusion of expenses related to the operations of Pacific Title and Aptas subsequent to consolidating
their results, partially offset by reduced costs to manage certain private equity funds.
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Other Income (Loss), Net.

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Gain on sale of our private companies ...................... $14,325  $ 20,714  $56,932
Distribution from private equity funds ...................... 486 — —
Impairment charges .......... ... ... i (7,733)  (39,588)  (3,192)
OtheT oo 241 — 4,808

$ 7,319 $(18,874) §$58,548

During 2002, we sold or liquidated our interest in certain private companies and funds including
Puralube, Aptas, iMedium and the Greenhill Fund for aggregate net cash proceeds of $7.8 million and
recorded gains of $5.3 million. Also included in gain on sale of our private companies is $9.0 million related to
the release of escrowed proceeds from the sale of a private company in 2000. During 2001, the Company
exchanged all of its holdings in ThinAirApps and Atlas Commerce for shares of Palm and VerticalNet,
respectively. The Company received shares of Palm valued at $12.1 million and shares of VerticalNet valued
at $15.3 million and a $1.8 million note receivable, which was paid in January 2002. The Company recorded
aggregate gains of $17.9 million on these transactions. The Company also sold or liquidated several of their
other companies, including AgWeb, Buystream, fob, Mi8 and TechSpace Ventures and sold all or a portion of
its interests in two private equity funds. The aggregate net proceeds of these transactions were $48.6 million
and the Company recorded gains of $2.8 million. During 2000, the Company sold several of its private
companies, including Arista Learning Systems, Extant Communications and Multigen. The aggregate net
proceeds, including proceeds from subsequent sales of stock received in the transactions, totaled $66.8 million,
including $6.0 million held in escrow. The Company recorded net gains of $56.9 million on the sale of their
private companies in 2000.

We recorded impairment charges for certain holdings accounted for under the cost method determined to
have experienced an other than temporary decline in value in accordance with our existing policy regarding
impairment of long-lived assets (see “Recoverability of Ownership Interests In and Advances to Affiliates”
under the “Critical Accounting Policies™).

Equity Income (Loss). Equity loss fluctuates with the number of companies accounted for under the
equity method, our voting ownership percentage in these companies and the net results of operations of these
companies.

Equity income (loss) consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Share of our private companies results of operations ....... $ (1,948) §$ (25,191) $(10,562)
Share of private equity funds results of operations ......... (21,090) (42,588) 66,888
Share of our private companies with zero carrying value. . . . — (7,119)  (32,183)
Impairment charges .......... ... i (20,006) (44,525) —

$(43,044) $(119,423) $ 24,143

Equity loss decreased $76.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the prior year
period. Of the total decrease, $21.5 million relates to our share of losses of private equity funds. For the year
ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the prior year period, there was a decrease of $24.5 million relating
to impairment charges on affiliates accounted for under the equity method. A total of $7.1 million of the
decrease is due to discontinuing the recording of equity losses of companies whose carrying value was reduced
to $0 during 2001. We recognize our share of losses to the extent we have a cost basis in the equity investee, or
we have outstanding commitments or guarantees. The remaining decline is due to reduced operating losses at
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certain companies. Equity loss increased $143.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to
the prior year period. Of the total increase, $109.5 million relates to our share of losses of private equity funds.
A total of $44.5 million relates to impairment charges on affiliates accounted for under the equity method.
Partially offsetting the increase is a decline of $25.1 million relating to discontinuing the recording of equity
losses of our companies whose carrying value was reduced to zero in 2001. The remaining increase is due to
increased operating losses at certain companies.

Certain amounts recorded to reflect our share of the income or losses of our companies accounted for
under the equity method are based on estimates and on unaudited results of operations of those companies and
may require adjustments in the future when audits of these entities are made final.

Public Companies (excluding CompuCom)

The public companies (excluding CompuCom) segment includes the results of operations of the
following companies:
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Consolidated Tangram Tangram Tangram
ChromaVision (since June 2002)
Equity 4 7 1

{Number of companies as of the end of
the period reported)

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

REVENUE ..ot e e $ 17,140 $ 14938 $ 13,597
Operating eXpenses .. .....vvvee e e 24,275 17,025 17,225

(7,135) (2,087) (3,628)
Other income (loss), net ... ... (15,096) (22,458) 33,567
Interest and financing expense, net..................... (3,379) (212) (199)
Minority Iterest .. ...oouere e 4411 — —
Equity 10ss ... .. (5,583) (167,915)  (128,316)

$(26,782) $(192,672) $ (98,576)

Revenue. Revenue increased $2.2 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2001 as compared to the prior year periods. Of the total increase in 2002, $5.6 million relates to
ChromaVision, which was consolidated effective June 2002, partially offset by a $3.4 million decrease related
to the operations of Tangram as compared to the prior year period. The $1.3 million increase in revenue for the
vear ended December 31, 2001 was attributable to operations of Tangram as compared to the prior year
period, which is a result of the implementation of a direct sales force in reaction to a decline of revenues in the
prior year attributable to a decline in reseller revenues.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses increased $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
as compared to the prior year period and decreased $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 as
compared to the prior year period. Of the total increase in 2002, $10.2 million relates to ChromaVision
subsequent to consolidating their results in June 2002, partially offset by a $3.0 million decrease related to the
operations of Tangram as compared to the prior year period. During 2002, Tangram has taken steps to reduce
its cost structure to better align their expenses and organization with their revenue projections. These steps
were taken as a result of the continued decline in demand for software and services. The decrease of
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 was attributable to the operations at Tangram as compared
to the prior year period.
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Other Income (Loss), Net

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2601 2000
(In thousands)
Gain (loss) on sale of companies . ....................... $ (925) § 49 § 59,341
Unrealized gain (loss) on Tellabs and related forward sale
CONtracts, MeL ... ..ttt it e ii e 1,509 (11,674) _
Unrealized loss on other trading securities. ................ (14,572) (149) (5,025)
Impairment charges ......... ... ... ... .. .. .. (1,108) (10,684) (20,749)

$(15,096) $(22,458) §$ 33,567

During 2002, we sold shares of public holdings, primarily Palm, for aggregate net cash proceeds of
$13.6 million, and recorded losses of $0.9 million. During 2001, the Company sold shares of public holdings
primarily Novell, (received as a result of Novell’s acquisition of Cambridge Technology Partners), CAO
Technology Solutions and Brandywine Realty Trust for aggregate net cash proceeds of $63.1 million . During
2000, the Company sold shares of public holdings, primarily Diamond Technology Partners and eMerge
Interactive (in its IPO), for aggregate net proceeds of $91.3 million and recorded gains of $59.3 million.

We recognized a net unrealized gain of $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 related to our
holdings in Tellabs. This amount reflects a $23.3 million gain on the fair value of the hedging contract,
reduced by a $21.8 million loss on the fair value of the Tellabs holdings for the year ended December 31, 2002.
We recorded a loss of $11.7 million relating to our holdings in Tellabs for the year ended December 31, 2001.
This amount reflects a $128.5 million gain on the change in the fair value of the hedging contract, reduced by
a $140.2 million loss on the change in fair value of the Tellabs holdings. Pursuant to SFAS 133, we transferred
our Tellabs holdings into the trading category from the available-for-sale category effective January 1, 2001.

Unrealized loss on other trading securities in 2002 reflects the decline in value of our shares of
VerticalNet. The unrealized loss in 2001 was mainly attributable to a decline in value of our shares of Surefire
Commerce partially offset by an increase in value of our shares of Palm. The unrealized loss in 2000 reflects
the decline in value of our shares of Surefire Commerce and Meta.

Impairment charges reflect certain equity holdings judged to have experienced an other than temporary
decline in value.

Equity Loss. Equity loss for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes $136.5 million related to
Internet Capital Group. As of December 31, 2001, as a result of recording our share of Internet Capital
Group’s losses, our carrying value was reduced to $0. As a result, we no longer record our share of Internet
Capital Group’s operating results in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Equity loss was $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, and $31.4 million excluding equity
loss attributable to Internet Capital Group for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily
due to discontinuing the recording of equity losses of our companies whose carrying value was reduced to $0
during 2002. Equity loss was $128.3 for the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in 2001 was mainly
attributable to Internet Capital Group.

Certain amounts recorded to reflect our share of the income or losses of our companies accounted for

under the equity method are based on estimates and on unaudited results of operations of those companies and
may require adjustments in the future when audits of these entities are made final.
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CompuCom

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2060
(In thousands)
ReVENUE ... i $1,571,089 $1,815489  $2,710,637
Costofsales ........... i, 1,364,687 1,571,507 2,425,496
206,402 243,982 285,141
Other operating eXpenses ..............c.ovvvneeennnn. 175,298 229,115 260,502
31,104 14,867 24,639
Other income, net ... .. — — 990
Interest and financing expense, net .................. (477) (3,308) (15,278)
Minority interest. . ........ ... (11,625) (3,891) (3,186)
19,002 7,668 7.165
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. 425 — —

§ 19427 § 7668 $§ 7,165

In November 2001, CompuCom purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities associated with
ClientLink, which provides high-end technical consulting, development, deployment and maintenance
services. In November 2001, CompuCom acquired Northern NEF, Inc. (NNEF), a federal systems
integrator and solutions provider, whose services include systems engineering, equipment procurement,
software development, integration, test and training as well as related program management support services
to various defense and civilian agencies of the federal and state governments and commercial accounts. In July
2001, CompuCom purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Excell Data Corporation. The
net assets acquired were used by Excell primarily in its business of high-end technical applications
development, network infrastructure design and deployment and worldwide event technical planning and
support.

Revenue. Revenue, which consists of product revenue and service revenue, decreased $244.4 million or
13.5% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the same period in 2001 and decreased
$895.1 million or 33.0% for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the same period in 2000. Of the
total decrease for the year ended December 31, 2002, $264.5 million was attributable to product revenue
which was partially offset by an increase in service revenue of $20.1 million as compared to the same period in
2001. Of the total decrease for the year ended December 31, 2001, $905.5 million was attributable to product
revenue which was partially offset by an increase in service revenue of $10.4 million as compared to the same
period in 2000. CompuCom believes general economic conditions continue to hamper demand for the
products it sells, mainly from their Fortune 1000 client base. Product revenue was negatively impacted by
certain clients electing to purchase product directly from manufacturers, as well as by increased competition
from other direct marketers. The increase in service revenue was primarily due to services directly related to
the 2001 acquisitions, partially offset by a decline in field engineering and product-related services.

Cost of Sales/Gross Margin. Product gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2002 was 8.2%
compared to 9.4% and 7.6% for the same period in 2001 and 2000. CompuCom believes this decrease is
primarily due to an increase in the proportion of lower margin software revenue relative to total product
revenue as well as more aggressive pricing in certain circumstances. CompuCom attributes the increase in
2001 as compared to 2000 was primarily due to the decline in revenue generated by higher volume, lower
margin clients. Also contributing was an increase, as a percentage of product revenue, in the amount of vendor
volume incentives earned in 2001 as compared to 2000. Service gross margin decreased for the year ended
December 31, 2002 to 33.7% from 35.4% and 36.5% for the same period in 2001 and 2000. CompuCom
attributes this decline primarily to pricing pressure on their service offerings.
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Due to economic competitive conditions, CompuCom expects to experience continued pressure on both
revenue and gross margin, the result of which may be lower revenue and related gross margin when compared
to the comparable prior year period or previous quarter.

Other Operating Expenses. Other operating expenses decreased 23.5% for the year ended December 31,
2002 as compared to the same period in 2001. Other operating expense decreased 12.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2001 as compared to the same period in 2000. CompuCom attributes this decrease to its own
cost management efforts related to selling and service expenses and general administrative expenses, including
personnel related costs and infrastructure costs.

Interest and Financing Expense, Net. Interest and financing expense decreased for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to the prior year periods. The decrease is primarily due to CompuCom’s
continued improvement in working capital management, lower financing requirements due primarily to the
decline in product revenues and the effect of lower effective interest rates.

Reconciling Items

Corporate Operations
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
General and administrative costs, net . .................... $20,448 $ 41316 § 60,524
Stock-based compensation . ............ .. ... .. ... 3,421 673 13,197
Depreciation and amortization. .. ............. ... .. ...... 3,947 9,627 6,993
Interest expense, net. ...ttt 10,791 14,233 7,759
Income taxes . ... e 7,418 (6,842) (100,323)
Other ... 11,424 105,219 215,749

$57,449  $164,226  $ 203,899

Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee compensation, outside services
such as legal, accounting and consulting, and travel-related costs. General and administrative expenses
decreased $20.9 million and $19.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 when compared to 2001 and
the year ended December 31, 2001 when compared to 2000. The decrease is due to certain cost reduction
efforts undertaken during 2001, including reduced compensation and travel-related costs as a result of a
reduction in headcount and the reduction in the use of outside consulting services.

As discussed in Note 12, we issued shares of restricted stock to employees in 2001 and 2002. The value of
these shares is recorded as deferred compensation and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period.

Interest expense, net. Interest expense decreased $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to 2001. The decrease is due to the elimination of accretion of the obligation and amortization of the
cost of our initial Tellabs forward sale contracts which were settled in March and August 2002, and costs
incurred in 2001 associated with our line of credit, partially offset by lower interest rates earned on invested
balances. Interest expense, net increased $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to
2000. Included in the net increase was a decline in interest and dividend income of $6.0 million. This decrease
is mainly attributable to lower interest rates earned on invested balances. Also included in the net increase was
a $0.5 million increase in interest expense mainly attributable to costs associated with our line of credit in
2001.

Income Taxes. Our consolidated income tax expense recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002,
was $7.4 million, net of recorded valuation allowance of $47.7 million. We have recorded a valuation
allowance to reduce our deferred tax asset to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized in future
years. For the year ended December 31, 2002 our consolidated effective tax rate before valuation allowance
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increased to 34.8% compared to 34.1% for the prior year period. This rate differs from the federal statutory rate
due to miscellaneous non-deductible expenses.

Liquidity And Capital Resources

We funded our operations with proceeds from sales of and distributions from affiliates, sales of available-
for-sale and trading securities, sales of non-strategic assets and, in 2002, a tax refund. Other sources of
liquidity which have been utilized by Safeguard in prior periods include sales of Safeguard equity, issuance of
Safeguard debt or operating cash flow from our wholly owned business and IT service companies. Our ability
to generate liquidity from sales of affiliates and Safeguard equity issuances has been adversely affected by the
decline in the US markets and other factors.

Proceeds from sales of and distributions from affiliates were $25 million in 2002, $102 million in 2001 and
$77 million in 2000 (excluding CompuCom’s sale of equity securities which generated proceeds of
$3 million). Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale and trading securities were $13 million in 2002,
$19 million in 2001 and $99 million in 2000.

In October 2002, the Company sold its corporate campus, which included its corporate headquarters
building, for approximately $6 million in net cash proceeds. The Company entered into a seven year operating
lease on the headquarters building. The gain on the headquarters transaction was deferred and is being
amortized over the term of the lease agreement.

In May 2002, we entered into a credit agreement providing for borrowings, issuances of letters of credit
and guarantees of up to $25 million. We occasionally use letters of credit to provide transactional support to
our companies. This credit facility matures in May 2003 and bears interest at the prime rate for outstanding
borrowings. The credit facility is subject to an unused commitment fee of 0.125% which is subject to reduction
based on deposits maintained at the bank. The facility requires cash collateral equal to two times any
outstanding amounts under the facility. This facility provides us additional flexibility to implement our strategy
and support our companies. At December 31, 2002, a standby letter of credit of $0.1 million was outstanding.
As of December 31, 2002, a guarantee totaling $5 million related to a company credit facility was outstanding,
In February 2003, the Company issued a guarantee totaling $3 million related to a company credit facility,
reducing availability under the $25 million credit facility.

In August 1999, in order to mitigate our market exposure and generate cash, we entered into a forward
sale contract related to 3.4 million shares of our holdings in Tellabs common stock. We pledged these shares of
Tellabs under a contract that expired in August 2002 and, in return, received cash. In March and August 2002,
we settled $91 million and $87 million of the Habilities entered into in connection with the hedges of our
Tellabs holdings by delivering 2.0 million and 1.4 million shares of Tellabs. These settlements had no impact
on our cash balances.

The transactions we enter into in pursuit of our strategy could impact our liquidity at any point in time.
As we seek to acquire technology-related companies, we may be required to expend our cash or incur debt
which will decrease our liquidity. Conversely, as we dispose of our interests in companies that are no longer
strategic, we may receive proceeds from such sales which could increase our liquidity. From time to time we
are engaged in discussions concerning acquisitions and dispositions which, if consummated, could impact our
liquidity, perhaps significantly.

Our cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2002 and other internal sources of cash flow are expected
to be sufficient to fund our cash requirements for the next twelve months, including commitments to our
existing affiliates, our current operating plan to acquire interests in new affiliates and our general corporate
requirements.

In May 2001, we consummated a definitive agreement with our former Chairman and CEC, Mr. Musser,
under which we loaned him $26.5 million. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of 7% and became payable
on a limited basis on January 1, 2003. Safeguard sent Mr. Musser a demand notice and, when no payment was
received, a default notice. In conjunction with the original loan, Mr. Musser granted us security interests in
securities and real estate as collateral. As of December 31, 2002, the value of the collateral pledged by
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Mr. Musser to secure the loan had an approximate value of $14.5 million compared to the loan’s carrying
value of $25.9 million and we concluded that the decline in the collateral was other than temporary. Based on
the information available to us, we also concluded that Mr. Musser may not have sufficient personal assets to
satisfy the outstanding balance due under the loan when the loan becomes full recourse against Mr. Musser on
April 30, 2006. At December 31, 2002 we have impaired the loan by $11.4 million to the estimated value of
the collateral that we hold. We will continue to evaluate the value of the collateral to the carrying value of the
note on a quarterly basis.

In connection with our ownership interests in certain affiliates, we have guarantees associated with
various forms of debt including lines of credit, term loans, performance bonds, equipment leases and
mortgages. Of our total guarantees of $21 million at December 31, 2002, $17 million relates to guarantees of
our consolidated companies. A total of $8 million of debt associated with our guarantees have been recorded
on the consolidated companies’ Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002. Additionally, we have committed
capital of approximately $38 million, including commitments made in prior years to various affiliates, to be
funded over the next several years, including approximately $11 million which is expected to be funded in the
next year. In February 2003, the Company issued a guarantee totaling $3 million related to a company credit
facility, reducing availability under the $25 million credit facility. Any borrowings by the company will be
refiected on the Company’s consolidated Balance Sheet.

We have received distributions as both a general partner and a limited partner from certain private equity
funds. Under certain circumstances, we may be required to return a portion or all the distributions it received
as a general partner to the fund for further distribution to the fund’s limited partners (the “clawback”).
Assuming the Funds in which we are a general partner are liquidated or dissolved on December 31, 2002 and
assuming for these purposes the only distributions from the funds is equal to the carrying value of the funds on
the December 31, 2002 financial statements, the maximum clawback we would be required to return for our
general partner interest is $5.9 million. Management estimates its liability to be approximately $5.5 million.
This amount is reflected in “Other Long-Term Liabilities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Our ownership in the general partner of the funds which-have potential clawback liabilities range from
19-30%. The clawback liability is joint and several, such that we may be required to fund the clawback for
other general partners should they default. The Funds have taken several steps to reduce the potential
liabilities should other general partners default, including withholding all general partner distributions in
escrow and adding rights of set-off among certain funds. We believe our liability under the default of other
general partners is remote.

CompuCom maintains separate, independent financing arrangements, which are non-recourse to us and
are secured by certain assets of CompuCom. During recent years, CompuCom has utilized bank financing
arrangements and internally generated funds to fund its cash requirements.

At December 31, 2002, CompuCom has a $25 million working capital facility and a $100 million
receivables securitization facility. Consistent with its financing requirements, during 2002 CompuCom
reduced the receivables securitization facility from $125 million to $100 million and reduced the working
capital facility from $50 million to $25 million. The working capital facility, which initially had a May 2002
maturity date but has been extended to a March 2003 maturity date, bears interest at LIBOR plus an agreed
upon spread and is secured by a lien on CompuCom’s assets. CompuCom expects to renew the working capital
facility no later than its expiration in March 2003. Availability under the facility is subject to a borrowing base
calculation. As of December 31, 2002, availability under the working capital facility was $25 million with no
outstanding amounts. The securitization facility’s pricing is based on a designated short-term interest rate plus
an agreed upon spread. The securitization allows CompuCoin to sell, on an ongoing basis, its trade accounts
receivable to a consolidated, wholly owned special purpose subsidiary (SPS). The SPS has sold and, subject
to certain conditions, may from time to time sell an undivided ownership interest in the pool of purchased
receivables to financial institutions. As collections reduce receivables balances sold, CompuCom may sell
interests in new receivables to bring the amount available up to the maximum allowed. CompuCom records
these transactions as sales of accounts receivable. These sales are reflected as reductions of accounts
receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are included in net cash provided by operating activities on
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the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Amounts outstanding as sold receivables as of December 31,
2002 consisted of two certificates totaling $60 million. Within the context of the securitization, each certificate
is issued from separate facility, each facility set at $50 million. Cne $50 million facility, with an October 2003
maturity date, has one certificate issued for $50 million. The other $50 million facility, which initially had an
April 2002 maturity date, was renewed in October 2002 to a revised October 2005 maturity date and has one
certificate issued for $10 million. The amount outstanding as sold receivables as of December 31, 2001
consisted of two certificates totaling $74 million, one certificate for $24 million with an April 2002 maturity
date and one certificate for $50 million with an October 2003 maturity date. Both facilities are subject to
CompuCom’s compliance with selected financial covenants and ratios. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
CompuCom was in compliance with their covenants.

CompuCom’s liquidity is impacted by the dollar volume of certain manufacturers’ customer specific
rebate programs. Under these programs, CompuCom is required to pay a higher initial amount for product and
then claim a rebate from the manufacturer to reduce the final cost. The rebates are then passed on to the
customer in the form of reduced sales price. The collection of these rebates can take an extended period of
time. Due to these programs, CompuCom’s initial cost for the product is often higher than the sales price
CompuCom can obtain from its clients. These programs have been at times a material factor in CompuCom’s
financing needs. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CompuCom was owed approximately $18.5 million and
$14.1 million, respectively, under these vendor rebate programs. These outstanding amounts are included as a
reduction to Accounts Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In addition, CompuCom participates in certain programs provided by various suppliers that enable it to
earn volume incentive dollars. These incentives are generally earned by achieving quarterly sales targets. The
amounts earned under these programs are recorded as a reduction to cost of goods sold and are recorded as
Accounts Receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, CompuCom
was owed approximately $3.3 million and $6.2 million, respectively, under these supplier incentive programs.

CompuCom’s ability to make distributions to its shareholders is limited by restrictions in CompuCom’s
financing agreements and CompuCom’s working capital needs. We do not consider CompuCom’s liquidity to
be a source of liquidity to us.

Consolidated Working Capital

Consolidated working capital decreased to $242 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $349 million
at December 31, 2001. This decrease is due to a $38 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and restricted cash, primarily due to our acquisition of Alliance Consulting during the fourth
quarter of 2002. This decrease is also attributable to a decrease in trading securities resulting from the
settlement of the hedges associated with our Tellabs holdings, the sale of our shares of Palm and Surefire and
a decline in the market value of VerticalNet. Included in the decrease is a reduction of our income tax
receivable by $63 million due to the receipt of a cash refund during 2002. These decreases were partially offset
by an increase of $22 million in receivables primarily at CompuCom, relating to a reduction in the amount of
receivables utilized under CompuCom’s securitization facility.

Analysis of Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities decreased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to a) a significant decrease
in accounts receivable and inventories in 2002 when compared with 2001 primarily associated with
CompuCom due to declining sales activity in late 2001, b) collection of an income tax receivable in 2002 with
no corresponding collection in 2001 and ¢} increased operating losses associated with certain entities.

Cash used in investing activities primarily reflects the acquisition of ownership interests in and advances
to affiliates and acquisitions by our subsidiaries, partially offset by proceeds from sales of affiliates and changes
in restricted cash and short-term investments. The decrease in cash used in investing activities in 2002 reflects
the a decrease in acquisitions by subsidiaries offset by an increase in acquisitions of affiliates and subsidiaries
(primarily Alliance Consulting), a decrease in the proceeds from sales and distributions by affiliates and
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advances to related parties. These decreases were offset by proceeds generated from the sale of the
headquarters facility and an increase in short term investments.

From January 1, 2003 through March 12, 2003 we funded $2 million of commitments made prior to

December 31, 2002. Additionally, from January 1, 2003 through March 12, 2003 we committed $11 million
and funded $10 million to acquire ownership interests in or make advances to affiliates.

In 2002, related to the filing of our 2001 consolidated tax return, we received a federal tax refund of

approximately $63 million.

Our general operations are not capital intensive, and capital expenditures in any year normally will not be

significant in relation to our overall financial position. There were no material capital asset purchase
commitments at December 31, 2002.

Contractual Cash Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of

December 31, 2002, by period due or expiration of the commitment.

(a)

Payments Due by Period

2004 and 2006 and Due after
Total 2003 2005 2007 2007

(In miilions)

Contractual Cash Cbligations
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations § 13.5  $11.5 $19 $ 0.1 $ —

Convertible subordinated notes(a)......... 200.0 — — 200.0 —
Operating leases .. ......... ..o an.. 97.8 14.6 18.9 13.0 51.3
Funding commitments(b) ................ 38.2 11.3 16.0 6.6 4.3
Potential ¢lawback liabilities(c) . .......... 5.5 — — _ 5.5
Other long-term obligations(d) ........... 6.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 3.0
Total Contractual Cash Obligations.......... $361.0 $38.3 $37.8 $220.8 $64.1

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

2004 and 2006 and Due after
Committed 2003 2005 2007 2007

(In millions)

Other Commitments
Guarantees and standby letters of credit(e) 13.6

o
o

3.7

The notes are due on June 15, 2006 and are redeemable in whole or in part at our option on or after
June 18, 2002, for a maximum of 102.5% of face value depending on the date of redemption and subject
to certain restrictions. We have no current intention to redeem the notes. At the note holder’s option, the
notes are convertible into our common stock subject to adjustment under certain conditions. The
conversion rate of the notes at December 31, 2002 was $24.1135 of principal amount per share. The
closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2002 was $1.36. The note holder’s may also require
repurchase of the notes upon certain events, including sales of all or substantially all of our common stock
or assets, liquidation, dissolution or a change in control.

(b) These amounts include funding commitments to our companies ($1.7 million) and private equity funds

(c)

($36.5 million). The amounts have been included in the respective years based on estimated timing of
capital calls provided to us by the funds’ management.

We have received distributions as both a general partner and a limited partner from certain private equity
funds. Under certain circumstances, we may be required to return a portion or all the distributions it
received as a general partner to the fund for a further distribution to the fund’s limited partners (the
“clawback™). Assuming the Funds in which we are a general partner are liquidated or dissolved on
December 31, 2002 and the only value provided by the Funds is the carrying values represented on the
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December 31, 2002 financial statements, the maximum clawback we would be required to return for our
general partner interests is $5.9 million. Management estimates its liability to be approximately
$5.5 million. This amount is reflected in “Other Long-Term Liabilities” on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

(d) Primarily reflects the amount payable to our former Chairman and CEQ under a consulting contract.

(¢) In connection with its ownership interests in certain affiliates, we have guaranteed $13.5 million of bank
loan and other commitments that are not included in contractual cash obligations in the above schedule
and are not reflected in Long Term Debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Also included is a
$0.1 million standby letter of credit.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred. The Company will adopt SFAS 143 in fiscal year
2003. The Company does not expect the provisions of SFAS 143 to have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which supercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”. The Company has adopted
SFAS 144 in fiscal year 2002. The adoption of SFAS 144 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Recission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. Generally, SFAS 145 is effective for
transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”. Under SFAS 146, companies will record exit or disposal costs when they are “incurred” and can
be measured at fair value, and they will subsequently adjust the recorded liability for changes in estimated
cash flow. SFAS 146 is effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 146 to have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others an
Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34”. The
Interpretation expands on the disclosure requirements to be made in interim and annual financial statements.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of both interim and annual periods that end
after December 15, 2002. The Interpretation also requires that a liability measured at fair value be recognized
for guarantees even if the probability of payment on the guarantee is remote. The provision for initial
recognition and measurement should be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The Company will adopt the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 in the first quarter
of 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption will have a material impact on its financial
statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This issue addresses the appropriate
accounting by vendors for arrangements that will result in the delivery of multiple products, services and/or
rights to assets that may occur over a period of time. The Issue is effective for revenue arrangements entered
into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption will
have a material impact on its financials.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS 148 also amends the
disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of
the method used on reported results. The Company may elect to adopt the recognition provisions of SFAS 148
for stock-based compensation in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. The interim disclosure
provisions are effective for financial reports containing financial statements for interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 at December 31,
2002.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, which addresses the consolidation by business
enterprises of variable interest entities as defined in the Interpretation. The Interpretation applies immediately
to variable interests in variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest in
variable interest entities obtained after January 31, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
the adoption of this consensus on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on Issue No. 02-16,
“Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor.”
EITF Issue No. 02-16 provides guidance regarding how a reseller of a vendor’s products should account for
cash consideration received from a vendor. The provisions of EITF Issue No. 02-16 will apply to vendor
arrangements entered into after December 31, 2002, including modifications of existing arrangements. The
Company does not expect EITF 02-16 to have a material effect on its financial statements.

Factors That May Affect Results

Forward-looking statements made with respect to our financial condition and results of operations and
business in this document and those made from time to time by us through our senior management are made
pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from results anticipated in forward-looking statements include,
but are not limited to, factors discussed elsewhere in this report and include among other things:

RISKS RELATED TO US —

QOur business depends upon the performance of our companies, which is uncertain

If our companies do not succeed, the value of our assets, our results of operations and the price of our
common stock could decline. The material risks relating to our companies include:

« intensifying competition affecting the products and services our companies offer, which could lead to
the failure of some of our companies;

» market penetration and inability to adapt to the rapidly changing marketplace;

e many of our companies have a history of operating losses or limited operating history, littie revenue and
substantial losses and limited capital resources;

 funding sources, unless Safeguard funds its companies, the companies may not have alternative
funding sources;

* inability to manage growth;

« weakness in the public and private capital markets for technology companies may affect our ability to
realize value for our companies through mergers and acquisitions or initial public offerings; and

o inability to protect their proprietary rights

These risks are discussed in greater detail under the caption “— Risks Related to Our Companies™ below.
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Fluctuations in the price of the common stock of our publicly traded companies may affect the price of
our common stock

The aggregate market value of our equity interests in our publicly traded companies is $182 million as of
March 12, 2003. Fluctuations in the market price of the common stock of our publicly traded companies are
likely to affect the price of our common stock. The market price of many of our public companies’ common
stock has been highly volatile and subject to fluctuations unrelated or disproportionate to its operating
performance.

Our success is dependent on our executive management

Our success is dependent on our executive management team’s ability to execute our strategy. If one or
more of the members of our executive management were unable or unwilling to continue in their present
position, our business could be disrupted.

Intense competition from other acquirers of interests in technology companies could result in lower
returns or losses on acquisitions

We face intense competition from companies with business strategies similar to our own and capital
providers as we develop and acquire interests in technology companies. Some of our competitors have more
experience identifying and acquiring technology companies and have greater financial and management
resources, brand name recognition or industry contacts than we do. Although most of our acquisitions will be
made at a stage when our companies are not publicly traded, we may pay higher prices for those equity
interests because of higher trading prices for securities of similar public technology companies and
competition from other acquirers and capital providers which would result in lower returns or losses on our
equity investments. In addition, our strategy of actively operating and integrating our companies generally
requires us to acquire majority or controlling interests in companies. This may place us at a competitive
disadvantage to some of our competitors because they have more flexibility than we do in structuring
acquisitions.

We may be unable to obtain maximum value for our company interests

We have significant positions in our companies. If we were to divest all or part of our interest in a
company, we may not receive maximum value for this position. The realizable value of our interests in our
companies may ultimately prove to be lower than the carrying value currently reflected in our consolidated
financial statements. For companies with publicly traded stock, we may be unable to sell our interest at then-
quoted market prices. The trading volume and public float in the common stock of many of our publicly traded
companies are small relative to our holdings of common shares of the company. As a result, any significant
divestiture by us of our holdings in these companies would likely have a material adverse effect on the market
price of the company’s common stock and on our proceeds from such a divestiture. For other companies the
absolute size of our holdings may affect our ability to realize their market value. In addition, registration and
other requirements of applicable securities laws may adversely affect our ability to dispose of our interest in
companies on a timely basis.

QOur business strategy may not be successful if valuations in the market sectors in which our companies
participate decline

Our strategy involves creating value for our shareholders and the owners of our companies by helping our
companies grow and, if appropriate, accessing the public and private capital markets. Therefore, our success is
dependent on acceptance by the public and private capital markets of our companies. Reduced market interest
may cause the market value of our publicly traded companies to decline. Additionally, we may not be able to
take our companies public as a means of creating shareholder value.
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We may have to buy, sell or retain assets when we would otherwise not wish to in order to avoid
registration under the Investment Company Act

We are an operating company that conducts its business operations principally through subsidiaries. We
believe that we are not engaged primarily in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. We
also believe that our investment securities do not have a value exceeding 40% of our total assets (exclusive of
cash and government securities). Consequently, we do not believe that Safeguard is an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”). If we do not
meet the 40% test, we may be required to register as an investment company if more than 45% of our total
assets consists of, or more than 45% of our income/loss over the last four quarters is derived from, securities of
companies we do not control or companies which are themselves considered investment companies. Under the
Investment Company Act, a company is presumed to control another company if it owns more than 25% of
that company’s voting securities and is the largest voting shareholder. We monitor our compliance with the
40% test and the 45% tests and seek to conduct our business activities to comply with one or the other of these
tests. Because some of our companies are not majority-owned subsidiaries, and because we own or may in the
future own 25% or less of the voting securities of a number of our companies, changes in the value of our
interests in our companies and the income/loss attributable to our companies could subject us to regulation
under the Investment Company Act unless we take precautionary steps. For example, in order to avoid having
excessive income from “non-controlled” interests, we may choose not to sell minority interests we would
otherwise want to sell or we may have to generate non-investment income by selling interests in companies
that we are considered to control. We may also need to ensure that we retain majority interests or at least 25%
ownership interests in our companies after any issuance by our companies of additional equity in offerings,
acquisitions or other dilutive transactions. In addition, we may have to acquire additional income or loss
generating majority-owned or controlled interests that we might not otherwise have chosen to acquire or may
not be able to acquire “non-controlling” interests in companies that we would otherwise want to acquire. We
cannot be certain that we will be able to preserve our percentage ownership at or near current levels. Qur
ownership levels may aiso be affected if these companies or our other companies are acquired by third parties.
It is not feasible for us to be regulated as an investment company because the Investment Company Act rules
are inconsistent with our strategy of actively managing, operating and promoting collaboration by and among
our companies.

Accounting conventions may require us to change the presentation of our financial statements

We consolidate the results of operations of 11 companies, CompuCom, Tangram Enterprise Solutions,
SOTAS, Agari Mediaware, Alliance, aligne Strategy, Lever8 Solutions, Pacific Title and Arts Studio, Mantas,
Protura Wireless and ChromaVision, because we own more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities.

At December 31, 2002, we owned approximately 59% of the aggregate voting interests of CompuCom. If
our voting ownership of CompuCom were to decrease below 50% as a result of the issuance of stock in an
acquisition or other transaction, we may no longer be able to consolidate the results of operations of
CompuCom with our results of operations that would cause our revenues to decline significantly. CompuCom
had revenue of $1.6 billion during 2002,

Our companies could make business decisions that are not in our best intevests or with which we do not
agree, which could impair the value of our company interests

Although we generally seek a controlling equity interest and participation in the management of our
companies, we may not be able to control significant business decisions of our companies. We may have
shared control or no control over some of our companies. In addition, although we currently own a controlling
interest in many of our companies, we may not maintain this controlling interest. Acquisitions of interests in
companies in which we share control or have no control or the dilution of our interests in, and control over,

41




companies will involve additional risks that could cause the performance of our interests and our operating
results to suffer, including:

o the management of a company having economic or business interests or objectives that are different
than ours; and

o companies not taking our advice with respect to the financial or operating difficulties that they may
encounter.

Our inability to prevent dilution of our ownership interests in our companies or our inability to otherwise
have a controlling influence over the management and operations of our companies could have an adverse
impact on our status under the Investment Company Act. Qur inability to adequately control our companies
also could prevent us from assisting them, financially or otherwise, or could prevent us from liquidating our
interests in them at a time or at a price that is favorable to us. Additionally, our companies may not collaborate
with each other or act in ways that are consistent with our business strategy. These factors could hamper our
ability to maximize returns on our interests and cause us to recognize losses on our interests in companies.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANIES

Our companies face intense competition, which could adversely affect their business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects of growth

There is intense competition in the technology marketplace, and we expect competition to intensify in the
future. Cur cempanies compete against companies outside our network of companies. Additionally, the
intense competition within the technology marketplace may cause our companies to compete among
themselves. Qur business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects for growth will be materially
adversely affected if our companies are not able to compete successfully with companies outside our family of
companies or compete among themselves. Many of the present and potential competitors may have greater
financial, technical, marketing and other resources than those of our companies. This may place our
companies at & disadvantage in responding to the offerings of their competitors, technological changes or
changes in client requirements. Also, our companies may be at a competitive disadvantage because many of
their competitors have greater name recognition, more extensive client bases and a broader range of product
offerings.

Our companies may fail if they do not adapt to the rapidly changing technology marketplace

If our companies fail to adapt to rapid changes in technology and customer and supplier demands, they
may not become or remain profitable. There is no assurance that the products and services of our companies
will achieve or maintain market penetration or commercial success, or that the businesses of our companies
will be successful.

The technology marketplace is characterized by:
o rapidly changing technology;

o evolving industry standards;

» frequent new products and services;

o shifting distribution channels; and

o changing customer demands.

Our future success will depend on our companies’ ability to adapt to this rapidly evolving marketplace.
They may not be able to adequately or economically adapt their products and services, develop new products
and services or establish and maintain effective distribution channels for their products and services. If our
companies are unable to offer competitive products and services or maintain effective distribution channels,
they will sell fewer products and services and forego potential revenue, possibly causing them to lose money. In
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addition, we and our companies may not be able to respond to the rapid technology changes in an
economically efficient manner, and our companies may become or remain unprofitable.

Certain of our companies have a history of operating losses or limited operating history and may never
be profitable

Certain of our companies have a history of operating losses or limited operating history, have significant
historical losses and may never be profitable. Certain of these companies have incurred substantial costs to
develop and market their products, have incurred net losses and cannot fund their cash needs from operations.
We expect that the operating expenses of these companies will increase substantially in the foreseeable future
as they continue to develop products, increase sales and marketing efforts and expand operations.

Many of our companies may grow rapidly and may be unable to manage their growth

We expect many of our companies to grow rapidly. Rapid growth often places considerable operational,
managerial and financial strain on a business. To successfully manage rapid growth, our companies must,
among other things:

e rapidly improve, upgrade and expand their business infrastructures;
o scale-up manufacturing operations;

¢ attract and maintain qualified personnel; and

= maintain adequate levels of liquidity.

If our companies are unable to manage their growth successfully, their ability to respond effectively to
competition and to achieve or maintain profitability will be adversely affected.

Some of our companies may be unable to protect their proprietary rights and may infringe on the
proprietary vights of others

Our companies assert various forms of intellectual property protection. This intellectual property may
constitute an important part of our companies’ assets and competitive strengths. Federal law, most typically,
copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret, generally protects intellectual property rights. Although we
expect the companies will take reasonable efforts to protect the rights to this intellectual property, the
complexity of international trade secret, copyright, trademark and patent law, coupled with the limited
resources of these companies and the demands of quick delivery of products and services to market, create a
risk that their efforts will prove inadequate. Some of our companies also license intellectual property from
third parties and it is possible that they could become subject to infringement actions based upon the
intellectual property licensed from those third parties. Qur companies generally obtain representations as to
the origin and ownership of such licensed intellectual property; however, this may not adequately protect
them. Any claims against our companies’ proprietary rights, with or without merit, could subject our
companies to costly litigation and the diversion of their technical and management personnel. If our
companies incur costly litigation and their personnel are not effectively deployed, the expenses and losses
incurred by our companies will increase and their profits, if any, will decrease.

Certain of our companies could face legal liabilities from claims made against their products ov work

The manufacture and sale of certain of our company products entails an inherent risk of product liability
arising from an inaccurate or allegedly inaccurate test or diagnosis. Certain of our companies maintain product
liability insurance. Although none of our companies to date have experienced any material losses, there can be
no assurance that they will be able to maintain or acquire adequate product liability insurance in the future
and any product liability claim could have a material adverse effect on our companies’ revenues and income.
In addition, many of the engagements of our companies involve projects that are critical to the operation of
their clients’ businesses. If our companies fail to meet their contractual obligations, they could be subject to
legal liability, which could adversely affect their business, operating results and financial condition. The
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provisions our companies typically include in their contracts, which are designed to limit their exposure to
legal claims relating to their services, and the applications they develop may not protect our companies or may
not be enforceable. Also, as consultants, our companies depend on their relationships with their clients and
their reputation for high caliber professional services and integrity to retain and attract clients. As a result
claims made against their work may be even more damaging.

The current significant econemic downturn could impact the results of operations of our service
companies

The results of operations of our service companies are affected by the level of business activity of their
clients, which in turn is affected by the levels of economic activity in the industries and markets that they
serve. In addition, the business of our service companies tends to lag behind economic cycles in an industry.
As a result of the continuing difficult economic environment, some clients have reduced or deferred
expenditures for consulting services and our service companies have also experienced increasing pricing
pressure over the last year, which has eroded revenues of our service companies.

Our companies’ success depends on their ability to attract and retain qualified personnel

Our companies are dependent upon their ability to attract and retain senior management and key
personnel, including trained technical and marketing personnel. OQur companies will also need to continue to
hire additional personnel as they expand. A shortage in the availability of the requisite qualified personnel
would limit the ability of our partner companies to grow, to increase sales of their existing products and
services and to launch new products and services.

Government vegulations and legal uncertainties may place financial burdens on the businesses of our
companies

Failure to comply with applicable requirements of the FDA or comparable regulation in foreign countries
can result in fines, recall or seizure of products, total or partial suspension of production, withdrawal of existing
product approvals or clearances, refusal to approve or clear new applications or notices and criminal
prosecution. Manufacturers of medical diagnostic devices are subject to strict federal regulation regarding
validation and the quality of manufacturing facilities. Failure to comply with these quality regulation systems
requirements could result in civil or criminal penalties or enforcement proceedings, including the recall of a
product or a “cease distribution™ order requiring our company to stop placing its products in service or selling.
The enactment of any additional laws or regulations that affect healthcare insurance policy and reimburse-
ment could negatively affect our companies.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to equity price risks on the marketable portion of our securities. These securities include
equity positions in companies in the technology industries, many of which have experienced significant
volatility in their stock prices. Historically, we have not attempted to reduce or eliminate our market exposure
on securities (except the Tellabs transactions, which were completed in August 2002). Based on closing
market prices at December 31, 2002, the fair market value of our holdings in public securities was
approximately $236 million. A 20% decrease in equity prices would result in an approximate $47 million
decrease in the fair value of our publicly traded securities. At December 31, 2002 the value of the collateral
securing the Musser loan was $14.5 million. A 20% decline in the fair value of the underlying collateral would
result in a charge of approximately $2.9 million.

CompuCom is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its receivables securitization and working
capital facilities. CompuCom utilizes borrowings on these facilities to meet its working capital needs and other
financing needs. At December 31, 2002, the securitization facility had borrowings of approximatety $60 mil-
lion, and there were no borrowings on the working capital facility. If CompuCom’s effective interest rate were
to increase by 100 basis points, or 1.00%, CompuCom’s annual financing expense would increase by
approximately $0.6 million based on CompuCom’s average balances utilized under its facilities during 2002.
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Our share of this increase would be approximately $0.4 million after deduction for minority interest but before

income taxes.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following Consolidated Financial Statements, and the related Notes thereto, of Safeguard Scien-
tifics, Inc. and the Report of Independent Auditors as filed as a part of this Form 10-K.
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INDEPENBENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. (the
“Company”) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related Consolidated Statements of
COperations, Shareholders’ Equity, Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Cash Flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS 142,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002 and adopted SFAS 133 “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended on January 1, 2001.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 12, 2003, except for Note 22, which is as of March 12, 2003

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Management has prepared and is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial
statements and related financial information in this Annual Report. The statements are prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The financial statements reflect manage-
ment’s informed judgment and estimation as to the effect of events and transactions that are accounted for or
disclosed.

Management maintains a system of internal control at each business unit. This system, which undergoes
continual evaluation, is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are protected and records are
adequate for the preparation of reliable financial data. In determining the extent of the system of internal
control, management recognizes that the cost should not exceed the benefits derived. The evaluation of these
factors requires estimates and judgment by management.

KPMG LLP is engaged to render an opinion as to whether management’s financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.’s financial condition and operating results in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The scope of their
engagement included a review of the internal control system, tests of the accounting records, and other
auditing procedures to the extent deemed necessary to render their opinion on the financial statements. Their
report is presented above.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets with the independent auditors and management to
satisfy itself that they are properly discharging their responsibilities. The auditors have direct access to the
Audit Committee.

/s/ Christopher J. Davis
Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.
Christopher J. Davis, Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ....... ... ... .. .
Restricted cash . ... ... ...
Short-term INVestments .. ... ...ttt et et et
Trading SECUTTtIES .. ..ottt et e e e
Accounts receivable, less allowances ($3,523-2002; $3,266-2001) ...........
INVEDtOTIES . o e

Total current @ssets. .. ... ..ot e
Property and equipment, NEt .. ... . ot
Ownership interests in and advances to affiliates. ...........................
Available-for-sale securities . .. ... ... e
Intangible assets, NEt .. ... .. ...t
GoodWill, Net . ..ot
Deferred taxes .. ... oo
Note receivable —related party ... oo
Oher .o e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt . ......... . ... ... ... L
Accounts payable .. ...
Accrued expenses and deferred revenue. ....... ... .. oo
Other current liabilities ....... ... ... ... . .

Total current liabilities .. ......... ... .. ... ..
Long-term debt .. ..o
MINOrity INTETESt . . ..\ vttt e
Other long-term liabilities ........ ... .. .. .
Convertible subordinated notes ............ ...
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred stock, $10.00 par value; 1,000 shares authorized .................
Common stock, $0.10 par value; 500,000 shares authorized; 119,450 and
118,154 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2001, respectively. .. ...
Additional paid-in capital........ ... .. .
Accumulated deficit ... ... .
Accumulated other comprehensive income ............... ... .. ... ..
Treasury stock, at cost (33 shares-2002; 381 shares-2001) .................
Unamortized deferred compensation. .............. .. ...,

Total shareholders’ equity ........ ... . i
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity.............. ... ... ....

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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As of December 31,

2002

2001

(In thousands except per
share data)

$ 254,779 § 298,095
3,634 8,033
9,986 —

832 205,553
179,668 157,661
30,181 32,084

— 62,346
13,045 14,796
492,125 778,568
38,610 59,320
74,859 132,940

4,548 4,822
18,580 11,670
206,815 159,540
1,210 3,240
14,482 25,046
17,437 17,117

$ 868,666 $1,192,263

$ 11,517 $ 7,761

121,793 125,121
116,669 124,438
— 171,804
249,979 429,124
1,998 20,138
130,384 112,746
14,032 11,579
200,000 200,000
11,945 11,815
738,282 743,885
(476,867)  (326,384)
2,522 1,968

(129)  (11,528)
(3,480) (1,080)
272,273 418,676

$ 868,666  $1,192,263




SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands except per share data)

Revenue
Product sales. ... $1,289,353  $1,552,999  $2,457,572
Service Sales . .. .o 372,132 345,606 291,355
Other . .o 24,069 27,063 22,299
Total revenue ... ... .. ... 1,685,554 1,925,668 2,771,226
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales —product. . ..... ... ... i 1,168,948 1,392,845 2,257,624
Cost of sales — SEIVICE ... ...ttt e 241,150 224,556 184,218
Selling and service .. ... it 131,308 144,047 150,351
General and administrative . .. ... ... . . 141,501 171,006 200,051
Depreciation and amortization . ............. ... ... ....... 32,882 40,748 33,462
Restructuring . ... e — — 5,417
Total operating EXPenses . . ... v vt teeee e 1,715,789 1,973,202 2,831,123
(30,235) (47,534) (59,897)
Other income (loss), net......... .. ...oovn.. e (11,724) (41,332) 93,105
Impairment — related party (Note 1).............. ... .... (11,434) — —
Interest iNCOME. . . .. ..t v i e et 8,260 12,339 18,097
Interest and financing €Xpense . ... ... ..o, (24,085) (30,134) (41,897)
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interest, equity loss
and change in accounting principle ............... ... ..... (69,218) (106,661) 9,408
Income taxes (expense) benmefit............................. (7,418) 6,842 100,323
Minority ieTest. . . ..ottt e (1,453) (3,334) (2,213)
Bquity 0SS ..ot e (51,004) (395,947) (319,922)
Net loss before change in accounting principle ................ (129,093) (499,100) (212,404)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ........... (21,390) — —
Nt LSS . oottt $ (150,483) $(499,100) § (212,404)
Basic Loss Per Share:
Prior to cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ... $ (1.10) $§ (426) $ (1.86)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ........... (0.13) — —

$  (1.28) $ (426) $§ (1.86)

Diluted Loss Per Share:

Prior to cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . .. $  (1.12) $  (427) $ (1.87)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ........... (0.18) — —

$§ (130 $ @27y § (187
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding — Basic and Diluted. . . .. 117,736 117,290 114,068

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Net Loss oo $(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Taxes:

Unrealized holding losses in available-for-sale securities ... ... .. (964) (8,404) (33,120)

Reclassification adjustments ........... ... .. i, 1,817 12,528 (37,416)
Related Tax (Expense) Benefit:

Unrealized holding losses in available-for-sale securities .. ... ... 337 2,941 11,591

Reclassification adjustments ........... ... .. .. i, (636) (4,385) 13,096
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) ...........covvivi.n. 554 2,680 (45,849)
Comprehensive LosS . ...t $(149,929) $(496,420) $(258,253)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
CONSOLIBATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Retained Gther
Additionat Earnings Comprehensive Unameortized
M Paid-In (Accumulated Income M Deferred
Shares Amount  Capital Deficit) (Loss) Shares Amount Compensation Total
(In thousands)

Balance — December 31, 1999 .. 104,749 $10,475 $133,969  § 385,120 $ 45,137 — $ -— 8 — $574,701
Net 1085 . . veereeennenn. (212,404) — — — —  (212,404)
Issuance of common stock, net .. 12,807 1,280 611,460 — — — — — 612,740
Stock options exercised, net .. ... 363 36 (3,320) — — (174) 5,515 — 2,231
Tax benefit of stock option

EXErciSes .........iiiii... — — 4,099 — — — — —_ 4,099
Issuance of common stock for

acquisitions . ................ 160 16 6,874 — — (87) 2,643 — 9,533
Repurchase of common stock ... — — — — — 1,528 (46,486) — (46,486)
Other................coonl. 75 8 5,864 — — — — — 5,872
Other comprehensive loss . ...... — — — — (45,849) - — — (45,849)
Balance — December 31, 2000 .. 118,154 11,815 758,946 172,716 (712) 1,267  (38,328) — 904,437
Net 1088, .o - — —  (499,100) — - — — (499,100)
Stock options exercised, net . . ... — — (5,367) — — (186) 5,636 — 269
Tax benefit of stock option

CXEICISeS . ... vttt — — 88 — — - — - 88
Issuance of common stock for

acquisitions . . ............... — — (6,652) — — 317) 9,579 — 2927
Issuance of restricted stock, net. . — — (9,634) — — (383) 11,585 (1,951) —_
Amortization of deferred

compensation ............... — — - - — — — 871 871
Acceleration of vesting of stock

Options. ... i — —_ 6,149 — — — — — 6,149
Issuance of common stock to

non-employees . ............. — — 355 — — — — — 355
Other comprehensive income . .. . —_ — — — 2,680 — — — 2,680
Balance — December 31, 2001 .. 118,154 11,815 743,885 (326,384) 1,968 381 (11,528) (1,080) 418,676
Netloss.......ccoovevninnn, - — — (150,483) - — — — (150,483)
Issuance of restricted stock, net. . 1,296 130 (5,723) — — (348) 11,399 (5,806) —
Acceleration of vesting of stock

Options. . ... — — 120 — — — — — 120
Amortization of deferred

compensation ............... — — — — — — — 3,406 3,406
Other comprehensive income .. .. — — — — 554 — — — 554
Balance — December 31, 2002 .. 119,450 $11,945 $738,282  $(476,867) $ 2,522 33§ (129)  $(3,480)  $272,273

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Operating Activities

Nt 0SS o ottt

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..ot
Deferred inCOME tAXES . ..o\t v ettt
BQUity 1088, . oo
Other (income) loss, MEt. ... ..ot e
Impairment — related party ....... ... o
Non-cash compensation charges. ........ ... e,
Tax benefit of stock option exercises . ............ .o,
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ...................
MINOMty INEETESt . . ..\ttt e
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions and dispositions:
Accounts receivable, Net . ... ... e
INVERtOTIES . « . v vttt e
Income tax receivable .......... ..
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other................. ... ...
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ..................
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale and trading securities .............

Proceeds from sales of and distributions from affiliates....................
Advances to affiliates . . ... ..

Repayment of advances to affiliates ....................................
Acquisitions of ownership interests in affiliates and subsidiaries, net of cash

BCQUITEA . .+ o et e
Acquisitions by subsidiaries, net of cash acquired ............... ... ...
Advances torelated party .. ... ...
Repayments of advances to related party ............... ...l
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments and restricted cash ..........
Proceeds from sale of building ............... ... ...
Capital expenditires. . ...ttt

Other, DBt .o e

Net cash used in investing activities .................. ...,
Financing Activities

Borrowings on revolving credit facilities .......... ... ... ...
Repayments on revolving credit facilities .................. ... ...
Borrowings on long~term debt.................. .. o
Repayments on long-termdebt.......... ... .. ...
Repurchase of Company common stock ............. ...l
Issuance of Company common stock, net...............oooiat
Issuance of subsidiary common stock, net................. ... ..ol

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...................

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ..................
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period .......................

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period ................. ... ... ...
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2002 20601 2000
(In thousands)
$(150,483) $(499,100) $ (212,404)
32,882 40,748 33,462
674 36,182 (128,191)
51,004 395,947 319,922
11,724 41,332 (93,105)
11,434 — —
3,406 1,227 12,603
- (88) (4,099)
21,390 — —
(3,139) 2,000 1,328
(2,773) 176,952 (1,960)
1,632 60,426 51,639
63,473 (47,872) —
(18,273) 8,858 (46,016)
22,951 216,612 (66,821)
13,273 19,365 08,649
24,738 101,638 77,079
(4,397) (17,019) (32,293)
— 406 15,550 -
(79,254)  (68,984)  (478,729)
— (122,150 (750)
(618)  (26,630) —
1,556 2,694 —
(5587) 81,695 (86,230)
17,672 — 617
(11,524)  (23,328) (15,511)
(1,874) (3,152) 1,044
(46015)  (55,465)  (420,574)
8,562 28,026 1,301,001
(13,713)  (26,299)  (1,301,857)
919 4,447 2,981
(18,347) (3,600) (2,726)
— — (46,486)
— 269 614,971
2,327 904 2,899
(20,252) 3,747 570,783
(43,316) 164,894 83,388
298,095 133,201 49,813
$ 254,779 $ 298,095 § 133,201

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies
Description of the Company

Safeguard is an operating company that seeks to create long-term value by taking controlling interests in
and developing our companies through superior operations and management. Currently, Safeguard has
acquired and operates businesses that provide business decision and life science software based solutions
products and services that have reached the “time-to-volume” stage of development. Time-to-volume is the
process of building an efficient company around a commercially viable product with distribution channels,
sales and marketing organization, and a corporate infrastructure that has the capability to grow rapidly and
achieve market success. Safeguard provides the resources to address the challenges facing our companies and
enable these companies to capitalize on their potential opportunities. These resources include capital,
management and operational expertise. Safeguard believes that its experience in developing and operating
technology cornpanies enables it to identify and attract companies with the greatest potential for success and
to assist these companies to become market leaders and create value for Safeguard and its shareholders.
Safeguard’s existing strategic subsidiaries focus on one or more of the following vertical markets: financial
services, healthcare and pharmaceutical, manufacturing, retail and distribution, and telecommunications.
Safeguard may acquire other time-to-volume technology companies complementary to its existing companies
and markets. Safeguard also owns a number of legacy companies.

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries in
which it directly or indirectly owns more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities. The Company’s wholly
owned subsidiaries include aligne, Lever8 Solutions (formerly K Consultants and Palarco) and Alliance
Consulting (acquired December 13, 2002). aligne and Lever8 merged into Alliance on January 1, 2003. The
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Loss and Cash Flows also include the
following majority-owned subsidiaries:

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Agari Mediaware Pacific Title and Arts Studio
Aptas (through March 2002) Protura Wireless
ChromaVision Medical Systems SOTAS

(since June 2002) Tangram Enterprise Solutions

CompuCom Systems
Mantas (since April 2002)

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Agari Mediaware Pacific Title and Arts Studio
(since October 2001) (since August 2001)
Aptas (since October 2001) SCTAS
CompuCom Systems Tangram Enterprise Solutions
Year Ended December 31, 2040 |
CompuCom Systems Tangram Enterprise Solutions |
SOTAS Arista Knowledge Systems

(through July 2000)
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets also include the following majority-owned subsidiaries:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Agari Mediaware Agari Mediaware
ChromaVision Medical Systems Aptas
CompuCom Systems CompuCom Systems
Mantas Pacific Title and Arts Studio
Pacific Title and Arts Studio SOTAS
Protura Wireless Tangram Enterprise Solutions

SOTAS
Tangram Enterprise Solutions

Principles of Accounting for Ownership Interests in Affiliates

The Company’s ownership interests in its affiliates are accounted for under three methods: consolidation,
equity and cost. The applicable accounting method is generally determined based on the Company’s voting
interest in the entity.

Consolidation Method. The companies in which the Company directly or indirectly owns more than
50% of the outstanding voting securities are accounted for under the consolidation method of accounting. If
this majority ownership is likely to be temporary, the Company accounts for the company under the equity
method. Under the consolidation method, our company’s results of operations are included within the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated. Participation of our other company shareholders in the income or losses of our
consolidated company is reflected in Minority Interest in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Equity Method. The companies whose results are not consolidated, but over whom the Company
exercises significant influence, or for whom majority voting ownership is likely to be temporary, are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. Whether or not the Company exercises significant influence with
respect to the company depends on an evaluation of several factors including, among others, representation on
the company’s Board of Directors and ownership level, which is generally a 20% to 50% interest in the voting
securities of the company, including voting rights associated with the Company’s holdings in common,
preferred and other convertible instruments in the company. Under the equity method of accounting, the
company’s results of operations are not reflected within the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations; however, the Company’s share of the income or loss of the company is reflected in Equity Loss in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company recognizes its share of losses to the extent it has a
cost basis in the investee or outstanding commitments or guarantees. Prior to January 1, 2002, Equity Loss in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations included the amortization of the excess of the cost of the
Company’s interest in the company over its equity in the underlying net assets determined at the date of
acquisition. This excess was generally amortized over a 3 to 10 year period. The Company has adopted
SFAS 142 “Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets”, which required that this excess no longer be amortized
but instead tested for impairment at least annually. The Company also accounts for its interests in some
private equity funds under the equity method of accounting, based on its respective general and limited partner
interests.

Cost Method. Affiliates not consolidated or accounted for under the equity method are accounted for
under the cost method of accounting. Under the cost method, the Company’s share of the income or losses of
such entities is not included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. However, the effect of
the change in market value of cost method holdings classified as trading securities is reflected in the
Company’s results of operations each reporting period.

Impairment. On a continuous basis, but no less frequently than at the end of each quarterly period, the
Company evaluates the carrying value of its ownership interests in and advances to each affiliate for possible
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

impairment based on achievement of business plan objectives and milestones, the fair value of each ownership
interest in and advances to the affiliate relative to its carrying value, the financial condition and prospects of
the affiliate arnd other relevant factors. The business plan objectives and milestones the Company considers
include, among others, those related to financial performance, such as achievement of planned financial results
or completion of capital raising activities, and those that are not primarily financial in nature, such as hiring of
key employees or the establishment of strategic relationships. Management then determines whether there has
been an other than temporary decline in the carrying value of its ownership interest in the affiliate. Impairment
to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value
of the assets. The fair value of our ownership interests in and advances to our privately held companies is
generally determined based on the value at which independent third parties have invested or have committed
to invest in these companies, or the value negotiated with the company’s founders. The fair value of our
ownership interests in private equity funds is generally determined based on the value of our pro rata portion of
the funds’ net assets. Impairment charges associated with equity method companies are included in Equity
Loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Impairment charges related to consolidated and cost
method companies are included in Other Income (Loss), Net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The new cost basis of an affiliate is not written-up if circumstances suggest the value of the company has
subsequently recovered.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-Term Investments and Restricied Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of 90 days or less at the
time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits that are readily
convertible into cash. Short-term investments consists of certificates of deposits at December 31, 2002.
Restricted cash is primarily invested in money market instruments.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of common stock held in publicly traded companies. Marketable securities
are stated at market value as determined by the most recently traded price of each security at the balance
sheet date. All marketable securities are defined as trading securities or available-for-sale securities under the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities” (SFAS 115).

Management determines the appropriate classification of its holdings in marketable securities at the time
of purchase and reevaluates such determination at each balance sheet date. Available-for-sale securities are
carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported
as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Trading securities are carried at fair value, based on quoted
market prices, with the unrealized net gain or loss included in Other Income (Loss), Net in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Receivables Securitization

CompuCom sells trade receivables without recourse through a wholly owned subsidiary. The subsidiary
then sells the receivables to a securitization company under an accounts receivable financing facility on an
ongoing basis. These transactions result in reductions of accounts receivable. Net discounts recognized on
sales of receivables are included in Interest and Financing Expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. The Company accounts for the sales of receivables in accordance with the requirements of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities” (SFAS 140).
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), as amended on January 1, 2001. Derivative
financial instruments are recognized at fair value in the statement of financial position, and the corresponding
gains or losses be reported either in the statements of operations or as a component of comprehensive income,
depending on the type of hedging relationship that exists. If the derivative is determined to be a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are offset against the change
in the fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through the statement of operations or
recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedge item is recognized in the statements of operations.
The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings. The
Company has no derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2002,

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments, principally cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments,
restricted cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current
liabilities are carried at cost which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these
instruments. The Company’s long-term debt is carried at cost which approximates fair value as the debt bears
interest at rates approximating current market rates. At December 31, 2002, the market value of the
Company’s convertible subordinated notes was approximately $124 million based on quoted market prices.

The Company may selectively enter into agreements to reduce the impact of stock market volatility on its
ownership in publicly traded companies. These may include agreements to protect against a possible decline in
the market value of the particular company. The Company does not enter into agreements for trading or
speculative purposes. The counter parties to these agreements are major financial institutions.

Inventories

Inventory consists primarily of product inventory held by CompuCom. Inventory is stated at the lower of
average cost or market. The Company continually assesses the appropriateness of the inventory valuations
considering obsolete, slow-moving and non-saleable inventory.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Provision for
depreciation and amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of the assets (buildings and leasehold
improvements, 3 to 30 years; machinery and equipment, 3 to 10 years) and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Goodwill, net

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142) on January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill no longer be amortized
but instead tested for impairment at least annually. The adoption resulted in a $21.8 million goodwill
impairment loss in the Business and IT services reporting unit (a component of the Company’s Strategic
Private Companies segment) at January 1, 2002. Also, as a result of the adoption of SFAS 142, approximately
$1.3 million of negative goodwill associated with a CompuCom acquisition was written off as of January 1,
2002. The Company’s share of this adjustment, net of income taxes, was $0.4 million. The net cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle of $21.4 million is reflected on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
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Intangible Assets, net

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142) on January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires that intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives no longer be amortized but instead tested for impairment at least annually. SFAS 142 also requires
that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual value. Purchased in-process research and development (“IPR&D”) represents the value
assigned in a purchase business combination to research and development projects of the acquired business
that had commenced but had not yet been completed at the date of acquisition and which have no alternative
future use. In accordance with SFAS No. 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs”, as clarified
by FASB Interpretation No. 4, amounts assigned to [PR&D meeting the above criteria must be charged to
expense as part of the allocation of the purchase price of the business combination.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of

The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
forecasted undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Recoverability of Notes Receivabie — Related Party

In May 2001, the Company consummated a definitive agreement with our former Chairman and CEQ,
Mr. Musser, under which the Company loaned him $26.5 million. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of
7% and became payable on a limited basis on January 1, 2003. Safeguard sent Mr. Musser a demand notice
and, when no payment was received, a default notice. In conjunction with the original loan, Mr. Musser
granted the Company security interests in securities and real estate as collateral. As of December 31, 2002, the
value of the collateral pledged by Mr. Musser to secure the loan had an approximate value of $14.5 million
compared to the loan’s carrying value of $25.9 million and the Company concluded that the decline in the
collateral was other than temporary. Based on the information available to us, the Company also concluded
that Mr. Musser may not have sufficient personal assets to satisfy the outstanding balance due under the loan
when the loan becomes full recourse against Mr. Musser on April 30, 2006. At December 31, 2002 the
Company has impaired the loan by $11.4 million to the estimated value of the collateral that we hold. The
Company does not accrue interest when a note is considered impaired. When the ultimate collectibility of the
principal balance of the impaired note is in doubt, all cash receipts from impaired notes are applied to reduce
the principal amount of such note until the principal has been fully recovered and is recognized as interest
income, thereafter. The Company will continue to evaluate the value of the collateral to the carrying value of
the note on a quarterly basis.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue from two primary sources: (i) sale of products, both merchandise and
software licenses; and (ii) services, which includes consulting services, including the implementation of
software license products, and software maintenance. Product revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is
probable. Generally, these criteria are met at the time of shipment. Provision is made at the time the related
revenue is recognized for estimated product returns, which historically have been immaterial. Shipping and
handling revenues are included in product revenues and costs are included in product costs. Revenue earned
from services is recognized ratably over the contractual period or as services are performed. Certain services
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are performed under fixed-price service contracts. Revenue from these contracts are recognized on the
percentage-of-completion method based on the percentage that incurred costs-to-date bear to the estimated
total costs after giving effect to the most recent estimates of total cost. Losses expected to be incurred on jobs
in process are charged to income in the period such losses become known. Amounts received from customers
in excess of revenues recognized are classified as current liabilities. Deferred revenue represents contractual
billings or collections on contracts in advance of performance of services and is recognized as revenue as the
related service is performed based upon the applicable revenue recognition methodology.

Certain subsidiaries recognize revenue from software licenses, post contract customer support (PCS) and
related consulting services. Revenue from software license agreements and product sales are recognized upon
delivery, provided that all of the following conditions are met: a non-cancelable license agreement has been
signed; the software has been delivered; no significant production, modification or customization of the
software is required; the vendor’s fee is fixed or determinable; and collection of the resulting receivable is
deemed probable. In software arrangements that include rights to software products, specified upgrades or
gateways, PCS and/or other services, the companies allocate the total arrangement fee among each
deliverable based on vendor-specific objective evidence. Revenue from maintenance agreements is recognized
ratably over the term of the maintenance period, generally one year. Consulting and training services
(classified as service revenue), which are not considered essential to the functionality of the software products,
are recognized as the respective services are performed. Consulting fee revenue is recognized in the peried in
which services are performed and include all amounts that are billed or billable to clients.

Vendor Programs

CompuCom participates in certain manufacturers’ customer specific rebate programs. Under these
programs, CompuCom is required to pay a higher initial amount for the product and then claim a rebate from
the manufacturer to reduce the final cost. These rebates are then passed on to the customer in the form of a
reduced sales price. The amounts due from manufacturers under such customer specific rebate programs are
recorded as a reduction to Accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

CompuCom participates in certain programs provided by various suppliers that enable it to earn volume
incentives. These incentives are generally earned by achieving quarterly sales targets. The amounts earned
under these programs are recorded as a reduction of cost of sales when earned. CompuCom also receives
vendor reimbursements that offset certain training, promotional and marketing costs incurred by CompuCom.
These amounts are recorded as Accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and any amounts
received in excess of the actual amounts incurred is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales.

Interest and Financing Expense

Interest and financing expense consist of interest incurred on borrowings by the Company and its
subsidiaries, and discounts on the sale of receivables by CompuCom.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations for stock options and other stock-based awards while
disclosing pro forma net income and net income per share as if the fair value method had been applied in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS 123).

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS 148 also amends the
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disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of
the method used on reported results. The Company may elect to adopt the recognition provisions of SFAS 148
for stock-based compensation in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. The interim disclosure
provisions are effective for financial reports containing financial statements for interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS 148 at December 31, 2002.

The Company, its subsidiaries and its companies accounted for under the equity method apply APB 25
and related interpretations in accounting for stock option plans, which are described more fuily in Note 12.
Had compensation cost been recognized consistent with SFAS 123, the Company’s consolidated net income
(loss) and income (loss) per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

{In thousands except per
share ameounts)

Consolidated net income (loss).................. As reported  $(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)

Deduct: Total stock based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax
effects ... ... (5,613) (28,407) (36,942)

Pro forma $(156,096) $(527,507) §(249,346)

Income (loss) per share

Basic. ... ... As reported $(1.28) $(4.26) $(1.86)
Pro forma $(1.33) $(4.50) $(2.19)
Diluted ...t As reported $(1.30) $(4.27) $(1.87)
Pro forma $(1.35) $(4.51) $(2.19)

Per share weighted average fair value of stock
options issued on date of grant ................ $1.56 $2.69 $12.08

Defined Co}ztribmion Plans

Defined contribution plans are contributory and cover eligible employees of the Company and certain
subsidiaries. The Company and certain subsidiaries generally match from 50% to 100% of the first 3% to 6% of
employee contributions to these plans. Additionally, the Company may make annual discretionary contribu-
tions to a defined contribution pension plan based on a participant’s eligible compensation. Amounts expensed
relating to these plans were $3.6 million in 2002 and $3.7 million in 2001 and 2000.

Before 1989, the Company offered certain directors and officers a deferred compensation plan. All
contributions to the plan were completed by the end of 1988. Upon retirement (or an earlier date in certain
cases) or upon termination of service as a director, each participant is entitled to receive, as a level payment
over 15 years or as a lump sum, an amount equal to the total credits to his account plus an investment growth
factor (10.5% at December 31, 2002). The liability under this plan at December 31, 2002 of $0.8 million is
included in Other Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002. As of
January 1, 2003, this plan has been terminated.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method whereby deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
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financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Management provides
valuation allowances against the deferred tax asset for amounts which are not considered more likely than not
to be realized.

Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share (EPS) is computed on net loss using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each year. Diluted EPS includes common stock equivalents (unless anti-dilutive) which
would arise from the exercise of stock options and conversion of other convertible securities and is adjusted, if
applicable, for the effect on net income of such transactions. Diluted EPS calculations adjust net loss for the
dilutive effect of common stock equivalents and convertible securities issued by the Company’s public
subsidiaries or equity affiliates.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and judgments
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company bases its
estimates on historical experience and on other relevant assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Excluding net income (loss), the
Company’s source of other comprehensive income (loss) is from net unrealized appreciation (deprecia-
tion) on its holdings of marketable securities classified as available-for-sale. Reclassification adjustments
result from the recognition in net income (loss) of unrealized gains or losses that were included in
comprehensive income (loss) in prior periods.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. In
accordance with EITF No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for
“Qut of Pocket’ Expenses Incurred”, the Company reclassified out-of-pocket expenses reimbursed by clients
as revenue and reported related costs in general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. This reclassification had no effect on net income or loss. In addition, in accordance with
SFAS 141, “Business Combinations”, identifiable intangible assets have been presented apart from goodwill.

Segment Information
The Company reports segment data based on the management approach which designates the internal
reporting which is used by management for making operating decisions and assessing performance as the

source of the company’s reportable operating segments.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred. The Company will adopt SFAS 143 in fiscal year
2003. The Company does not expect the provisions of SFAS 143 to have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which supercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of’. The Company has adopted
SFAS 144 in fiscal year 2002. The adoption of SFAS 144 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Recission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. Generally, SFAS 145 is effective for
transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”. Under SFAS 146, companies will record exit or disposal costs when they are “incurred” and can
be measured at fair value, and they will subsequently adjust the recorded liability for changes in estimated
cash flow. SFAS 146 is effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an
Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34”. The
Interpretation expands on the disclosure requirements to be made in interim and annual financial statements.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of both interim and annual periods that end
after December 15, 2002. The Interpretation also requires that a liability measured at fair value be recognized
for guarantees even if the probability of payment on the guarantee is remote. The provision for initial
recognition and measurement should be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The Company will adopt the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 in the first quarter
of 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption will have a material impact on its financial
statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This issue addresses the appropriate
accounting by vendors for arrangements that will result in the delivery of multiple products, services and/or
rights to assets that may occur over a period of time. The Issue is effective for revenue arrangements entered
into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption will
have a material impact on its financials.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, which addresses the consolidation by business
enterprises of variable interest entities as defined in the Interpretation. The Interpretation applies immediately
to variable interests in variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest in
variable interest entities obtained after January 31, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
the adoption of this consensus on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. Business Combinations
Acquisitions by the Company

In December 2002, the Company acquired 100% of Alliance Consulting for $54.5 million in cash paid to
the selling shareholders and $1.2 million in transaction related costs. Alliance is an IT consulting firm that
architects and implements digital enterprise strategies for its clients by building and integrating information
technology across every line of business. The Company has not completed the allocation of the purchase price
of the acquisition of Alliance Consulting. Therefore, the allocation of the purchase price could be adjusted
once the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is completed.

In June 2002, the Company acquired a majority ownership interest in ChromaVision Medical Systems
for $16.2 million in cash, including $9.8 million used to purchase shares of preferred stock from existing
shareholders. In July and August 2002, the Company acquired additional shares of ChromaVision for
$1.2 million. ChromaVision’s product, Automated Cellular Imaging Systems, substantially improves the
accuracy, sensitivity and reproducibility of cell imaging. The Company’s allocation of aggregate purchase price
for the acquisition is summarized in the table below:

FiXed ASSelS . ..ottt e $ 1.7
Identifiable Intangibles ... ... i 5.3
Acquired In-Process Research and Development ......... ... ... ... i, 1.1
Goodwill. ... 9.3
Total Purchase Price. . ... ... i $17.4

The total identifiable intangible assets of $5.3 million will be amortized over their weighted average useful
lives (4 years) and the total fixed assets will be depreciated over their weighted average useful lives (4 years).
The acquired in-process research and development costs were charged to earnings in the fourth quarter of
2002. The amount was determined by identifying research projects for which technological feasibility has not
been established and for which there is no alternative future use. In-Process R&D represented five projects in
process at ChromaVision relating to software and hardware improvements and related applications develop-
ment which, by definition, may not have an alternative future use.

In April 2002, the Company acquired a majority ownership interest in Mantas for $14.5 million in cash.
Mantas provides comprehensive monitoring and analysis of financial transactions to detect and discover
behaviors of interest through its software products. The Company’s allocation of the aggregate purchase price
for the acquisition was $4.9 million to identifiable intangible assets, which are being amortized over a four year
period and $9.6 million to goodwill.

In January 2002, the Company acquired a majority ownership interest in Protura Wireless for $4 million
in cash. Protura has developed patent-pending technology that makes it possible for cellular manufacturers to
switch from cumbersome external antennas to Protura internal antennas without losing performance. The
Company has not completed the allocation of purchase price of the acquisition of Protura Wireless due to the
reduction of carrying value to zero within the first year of majority ownership.

In October 2001, the Company acquired a majority ownership interest in Agari Mediaware for $5 million
in cash. Agari provides middleware software that makes it possible to quickly integrate disparate applications
that store and process rich media, documents or any digital content.

In January 2001, the Company acquired 100% of Palarco, Inc. for $23.1 million in cash and
316,702 shares of the Company’s common stock with a value of $2.9 million at the date of acquisition and
$1.5 million which was dependent upon the achievement of certain performance targets. Palarco is a provider
of global information technology solutions.
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In August 2000, aligne, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, acquired 100% of K Consultants, Inc.
for $7.5 million in cash and an additional amount which was dependent upon achievement of certain
performance targets of K Consultants during the first 12 months after the acquisition. An additional amount of
$4.2 million was paid in 2001. K Consultants provides e-Business infrastructure consulting services, including
strategy, architecture, implementation and support.

These transactions were accounted for as purchases and, accordingly, the Consolidated Financial
Statements reflect the operations of these companies from the respective acquisition dates.

Acguisitions by Subsidiaries

During 2001, CompuCom consummated four business combinations (collectively, “the 2001 acquisi-
tions™). These business combinations are being accounted for as purchases and, accordingly, the Consolidated
Financial Statements reflect the operations of the acquired entitics since their acquisition dates. The aggregate
purchase price of the 2001 acquisitions, net of cash acquired, was approximately $121 million. CompuCom’s
allocation of the aggregate purchase price for the 2001 acquisitions consisted of approximately $93 million to
current assets, $1 million to non-current assets, $31 million to goodwill, $6 million to intangible assets with
definite useful lives and $10 million to current liabilities. CompuCom used available cash to finance the 2001
acquisitions. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, approximately
$1.3 million of negative goodwill associated with the 2001 MicroAge Technology Services, L.L.C. acquisition
was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the first quarter of 2002 as a cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle. The impact on the Company’s results, net of tax, was $0.4 million.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of
the Company as if the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented, after giving
effect to certain adjustments, including amortization of intangibles with definite useful lives, increased interest
and financing expense on debt related to the CompuCom acquisitions and related income tax effects. The pro
forma results of operations are not indicative of the actual results that would have occurred had the
acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of the period presented and are not intended to be a

projection of future results.
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001

(In thousands except per
share data)

Total TEVENUES . ..ottt e $1,774,349  $2,087,070
Nt L08S . oo $ (157,012) $(511,196)
Diluted loss pershare ............ i, $ (1.36) § (437

3. Trading Securities

The fair market value of trading securities consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)
Tellabs . o e e e e $§ — $175,728
VerticalNet L. 832 14,732
Palm . o e — 14,211
Other .o — 882

$832  §205,553
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4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Land, building and improvements .............. ... .. ... . . ..., $ 11,420 - $ 34,045
Machinery and equipment .......... ... ... i 122,823 110,305
134,243 144,350
Accumulated depreciation and amortization.......................... (95,633)  (85,030)

$ 38,610 $ 59,320

5. Ownership Interests in and Advances to Affiliates

The following summarizes the carrying value of the Company’s ownership interests in and advances to
affiliates accounted for under the equity method or cost method of accounting. The ownership interests are
classified according to applicable accounting methods at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

As of December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)

Equity Method

Public Companies . ...........o it e $23,181 § 32,178
Non-Public Companies . ...t i 5,057 23,923
Private Equity Funds. ......... ... 36,377 62,168

64615 118,269
Cost Method

Non-Public Companies . ..........cooiir i 6,420 7,950
Private Equity Funds . ....... ... . o 3,824 6,221
Advances to Affiliates — 500

$74,859  §$132,940

The market value of the Company’s public companies accounted for under the equity method was
$53 million at December 31, 2002 and $161 million at December 31, 2001. Of the total decline in market
value, $28 million relates to ChromaVision, which is not included in the equity ownership balance at
December 31, 2002, as it was consolidated effective in June 2002. A total of $35.6 million relates to a decline
in the value of our holdings in Sanchez Computer Associates. The remaining decline is due to an overall
decline in market valuations as a result of current economic conditions.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s carrying value in its companies accounted for under the
equity method exceeded its share of the underlying equity in the net assets of such companies by $6 million
and $39 million, respectively, which is included in Ownership Interests In and Advances to Affiliates on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During management’s ongoing review of the recoverability of recorded carrying values versus fair value, it
was determined that the carrying value of goodwill and certain other intangible assets were not fully
recoverable. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded impairment charges totaling $20.0 million,
$85.6 million and $129.0 million, respectively, for companies accounted for under the equity method. The

63



SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

amount of the impairment charge was determined by comparing the carrying value of the affiliate to fair value.
Impairment charges associated with equity method companies are included in Equity Loss on the Consoli-
dated Statements of Operations. Impairment charges related to cost method companies were $18.1 million,
$50.3 million and $19.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. These impairment
charges are included in Other Income (Loss), Net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The following unaudited summarized financial information for our companies accounted for under the
equity method at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 has been compiled from the unaudited financial
statements of our respective companies and reflects certain historical adjustments. Revenue and net income of
the company are excluded for periods prior to the year of acquisition.

As of December 31,
2002 2001
(En thousands)

Balance Sheets

CUITENE ASSES . . o vt vttt et e e et e e e $121,547  $226,631
NON-CUITENT ASSETS . . vttt ittt e e e e e e e e e et et 102,786 135,992
Total ASSEtS .ottt $224,333  $362,623
Current Habilities ... .. ..o $ 69,878  $106,052
Non-current labilities .. ... .. i i 21,890 16,617
Shareholders’ equity. ... ... o e 132,565 239,954
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ........................... $224,333  $362,623

Year Ended December 31,
2002 20601 2000
(In thousands)

Results of Operations

Revenue:

Public companies ........ ... .0t $166,624 $ 198,030 § 921,461

Non-public companies. ..............oviiiiiinann... 87,678 89,824 132,633
$254,302 $ 287,854  $1,054,094

Net Imcome (LOSS) ... .o vt i e $ 13,062 $(240,726) $ (500,308)

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, approximately $1.3 million of negative goodwill associated with a
CompuCom acquisition was written off as of January 1, 2002, The Company’s share of this adjustment, net of
income taxes, was $0.4 million and was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle during the year ended December 31, 2002.

Additionally, under SFAS No. 142 the Company was required to test all existing goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives for impairment as of January 1, 2002. The Company completed the required
testing during the second quarter of 2002. As a result, the Company reported a $21.8 million goodwill
impairment loss in the Business and IT services reporting unit (a component of the Company’s Strategic
Private Companies segment). The fair value of that reporting unit was determined by estimating the present
value of future cash flows and by reviewing the valuations of comparable public companies. In accordance
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Purchased in-process research and development (“IPR&D™) represents the value assigned in a purchase
business combination to research and development projects of the acquired business that had commenced but
had not yet been completed at the date of acquisition and which have no alternative future use. In accordance
with SFAS No. 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs”, as clarified by FASB Interpretation
No. 4, amounts assigned to IPR&D meeting the above criteria must be charged to expense as part of the
allocation of the purchase price of the business combination. For the year ended December 31, 2002,
$1.1 million was expensed.

Impact on Statements of Operations:

Net loss before change in accounting principle. . .............
Add back goodwill amortization — consolidated companies . . ..

— equity method companies ..
Adjusted net loss before change in accounting principle .......
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........

Adjusted net loss . ... e

Impact on Basic Loss Per Share:

Net loss before change in accounting principle...............
Add back goodwill amortization — consolidated companies . . ..
— equity method companies ..

Adjusted net loss before change in accounting principle .. ... ..
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........

Adjusted net loss ... ... ...

Impact on Fully Diluted Loss Per Share:

Net loss before change in accounting principle...............
Add back goodwill amortization — consolidated companies . . . ...
— equity method companies . . ..

Adjusted net loss before change in accounting principle .......
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........

Adjusted net 1oss .. ... i e
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with SFAS 142, this loss was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle during the year ended December 31, 2002.

Year Ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

(Im thousands except per share data)

$(129,093) $(499,100) $(212,404)

—_ 12,562 8,457
— 25,186 28,190
(129,093)  (461,352)  (175,757)
(21,390) — —
$(150,483) $(461,352) $(175,757)
$  (110) $§ (426) $ (1.86)
— 0.12 0.07

— 0.21 0.25
(1.10) (3.93) (1.54)
(0.18) — _

$  (1.28) $  (393) § (154
S (112) $ (427) $ (1.87)
— 0.11 0.07

— 0.21 0.25
(1.12) (3.95) (1.55)
(0.18) _ —

$  (130) $ (395 $ (1.59)
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The following is a summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment:

Cther Public
Strategic Private Companies
Private Companies (excluding Total
Companies and Funds CompuCoim) CompuCom Segments
(In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ... § 53,344  § 2,502 $ 1,415 $102,279  $159,540
Cumulative change in accounting
principle — negative goodwill .. —_ — — 1,253 1,253
Cumulative change in accounting
principle — impairment test ...  (21,815) — - — (21,815)
Additions . ................ ... 64,121 — 9,253 1,357 74,731
Deconsolidation................ — (2,173) — — (2,173)
Impairment charges ............ (4,392) (329) — — (4,721)
Balance at December 31,2002 ... $ 91,258 § — $10,668 $104,889  $206,815

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to
their estimated residual values. The following table provides a summary of the Company’s intangible assets
with definite useful lives:

December 31, 2002

Gross

Amortization Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Net
(In thousands)
Customer-related .. .......... ... .. ... . .... 6-11years $15,467 $ 9,107 $ 6,360
Contract-related . . ........ ... ... .. 2 -3 years 2,840 1,382 1,458
Technology-related. .................... ... 2 - 17 years 14,071 3,309 10,762
Total ... . e $32,378 $13,798 $18,580

December 31, 2001

Gross
Amortization Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Net
(In thousands)
Customer-related ......................... 6-11 years  $15,467 $6,690 $ 8,777
Contract-related ............. ... ... ...... 2 - 3 years 2,840 171 2,669
Technology-related . . ...................... 2 -17 years 373 149 224
Total ... ... $18,680 $7,010 $11,670

Amortization expense for consolidated companies related to intangible assets other than goodwill was
$6.8 million and $2.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The following
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table provides estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets (assuming there is not a
writedown or equity losses associated with these intangible assets causing an acceleration of expense):

Total
(In thousands)
2003 e $ 6,196
2004 . e 5,511
200 L e e e e e s 3,596
2006 . e 1,470
2007 and thereafter. ... ... .. 1,807
$18,580

7. Financial Instruments

In 1999, the Company entered into two forward sale contracts related to 3.4 million shares of its holdings
in Tellabs common stock. The Company pledged these shares to Tellabs under contracts that expired in
March and August 2002 and, in return, received approximately $139 million of cash. At maturity, the
Company was required to deliver cash or Tellabs stock with a value determined by the stock price of Tellabs at
maturity.

The forward sale contracts were considered derivative financial instruments that had been designated as
fair value hedging instruments under SFAS 133. The Company’s objective relative to the use of these hedging
instruments was to limit the Company’s exposure to and benefits from price fluctuations in the underlying
equity securities. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of its holdings in Tellabs and the value of the forward
sale contracts were included in the caption Trading Securities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
Company accounted for the forward sale arrangements as hedges and had determined that the hedges were
highly effective. Changes in the value of the hedge instrument were substantially offset by changes in the value
of the underlying securities. The hedging of the Tellabs common stock was part of the Company’s overall risk
management strategy, which includes the preservation of cash and the value of securities used to fund ongoing
operations and future acquisition opportunities. The Company does not hold or issue any derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes.

The net gain recognized during the year ended December 31, 2002 was $1.5 million. This amount reflects
a $23.3 million gain on the change in the fair value of the hedging contract, reduced by a $21.8 million loss on
the change in fair value of the Tellabs holdings. The net loss recognized during the year ended December 31,
2001 was $11.7 million. This amount reflects a $128.5 million gain on the change in the fair value of the
hedging contract, reduced by a $140.2 million loss on the change in fair value of the Tellabs holdings. These
gains (losses) are reflected in Other Income (Loss), Net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In March 2002, the Company settled $91 million of the liability entered into in connection with the first
hedge of its Tellabs holdings by delivering 2.0 million shares of Tellabs. In August 2002, the Company settled
the remaining liability of $87 million by delivering the remaining 1.4 million shares. These settlements
resulted in a reduction of Trading Securities and Other Current Liabilities of $178 million, and had no impact
on the Company’s cash balances.

8. Long-term Debt

In May 2002, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility providing for borrowings, issuances of
letters of credit and guarantees of up to $25 million. This credit facility matures in May 2003 and bears
interest at the prime rate (4.25% at December 31, 2002) for outstanding borrowings. The credit facility is
subject to an unused commitment fee of 0.125% which is subject to reduction based on deposits maintained at
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the bank. The facility requires cash collateral equal to two times any outstanding amounts under the facility.
This facility provides the Company additional flexibility to implement its strategy and support its companies.
At December 31, 2002, a standby letter of credit of $0.1 million was outstanding. As of December 31, 2002, a
guarantee totaling $5.0 million related to a company credit facility was outstanding.

In February 2003, the Company issued a guarantee in favor of a consolidated company in the amount of
$3 million. This reduces the availability under the Company’s $25 million revolving credit facility.

As discussed in Note 16, the Company sold its headquarters facility to a third party and utilized proceeds
to pay down $13 million in mortgage obligations.

Parent company and other recourse debt for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes primarily
mortgage obligations ($3.9 million), bank credit facilities ($5.9 million) and capital lease obligations
($0.4 million). These obligations bear interest at fixed rates between 4.25% to 9.0%, and variable rates of
prime plus 1%.

Parent company and other recourse debt for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes primarily
mortgage obligations ($17.3 million), bank credit facilities ($4.8 million) and capital lease obligations
($0.1 million). These obligations bear interest at fixed rates between 7.75% and 9.75%, and variable rates
consisting of 72% of the prime rate (4.75% at December 31, 2001) or LIBOR (2.5% at December 31, 2001)
plus 1.9%.

At December 31, 2002, CompuCom has a $25 million working capital facility and a $100 million
receivables securitization facility. Consistent with its financing requirements, during 2002 CompuCom
reduced the receivables securitization facility from $125 million to $100 million and reduced the working
capital facility from $50 million to $25 million. The working capital facility, which initially had a May 2002
maturity date but has been extended to a March 2003 maturity date, bears interest at LIBOR plus an agreed
upon spread and is secured by a lien on CompuCom’s assets. CompuCom expects to renew the working capital
facility no later than its expiration in March 2003. Availability under the facility is subject to a borrowing base
calculation. As of December 31, 2002, availability under the working capital facility was $25 million with no
outstanding amounts. The securitization facility’s pricing is based on a designated short-term interest rate plus
an agreed upon spread. The securitization aliows CompuCom to sell, on an ongoing basis, its trade accounts
receivable to a consolidated, wholly owned special purpose subsidiary (SPS). The SPS has sold and, subject
to certain conditions, may from time to time sell an undivided ownership interest in the pool of purchased
receivables to financial institutions. As collections reduce receivables balances sold, CompuCom may sell
interests in new receivables to bring the amount available up to the maximum allowed. CompuCom records
these transactions as sales of accounts receivable. These sales are reflected as reductions of accounts
receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are included in net cash provided by operating activities on
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Amounts outstanding as sold receivables as of December 31,
2002 consisted of two certificates totaling $60 million. Within the context of the securitization, each certificate
is issued from a separate facility, each facility set at $50 million. One $50 million facility, with an October
2003 maturity date, has one certificate issued for $50 million. The other $50 million facility, which initially
had an April 2002 maturity date, was renewed in October 2002 to a revised October 2005 maturity date and
has one certificate issued for $10 million. The amount outstanding as sold receivables as of December 31, 2001
consisted of two certificates totaling $74 million, one certificate for $24 million with an April 2002 maturity
date and one certificate for $50 million with an October 2003 maturity date. Both facilities are subject to
CompuCom’s compliance with selected financial covenants and ratios. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
CompuCom was in compliance with their covenants.

Subsidiary debt for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes bank credit facilities ($0.1 million), term
loans ($2.4 million) and capital lease obligations ($0.8 million) of our consolidated companies. These
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obligations bear interest at fixed rates ranging between 9.5% and 12.0% and variable rates consisting of the
prime rate plus 1%.

Subsidiary debt for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes bank credit facilities ($0.7 million), term
loans ($3.5 million) and capital lease obligations ($1.5 million) of our consolidated companies. These
obligations bear interest at fixed rates ranging between 7.5% and 12.0% and variable rates consisting of the
prime rate plus 1%.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt during future years are (in millions): $11.5 — 2003; $1.7 —
2004; $0.2 — 2005; $0.1 — 2006; and $0.0 — thereafter.

9. Convertible Subordinated Notes

In June 1999, the Company issued $200 million of 5% convertible subordinated notes due June 15, 2006.
Interest is payable semi-annually. The notes are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the Company
on or after June 18, 2002, for a maximum of 102.5% of face value depending on the date of redemption and
subject to certain restrictions. The notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock subject to
adjustment under certain conditions including rights offerings and Safeguard Subscription Programs to the
Company’s shareholders. Pursuant to the terms of the notes, the conversion rate of the notes at December 31,
2002 was $24.1135 of principal amount per share.

16. Accrued Expenses and Deferred Revenue

Accrued expenses and deferred revenue consisted of the following:
As of December 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes . ... $ 35,651 § 35,761
Accrued cost of software and licenses . .......... ... .. . ... i i, 21,942 35,412
Deferred revenue . ... ... . . e 18,292 14,324
Accrued restructuring charge .. .........o it 1,303 1,861
Other .. e 39,481 37,080

$116,669  $124,438

In the fourth quarter of 1998 and the first quarter of 2000, CompuCom effected restructuring plans
designed to reduce its cost structure. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, $1.3 million and $1.9 million related to
leases is included in Accrued Expenses and Deferred Revenue on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

11. Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock

In April 2000, the Company completed a follow-on public offering, selling 8.6 million shares of its
common stock, including exercise in full of the underwriters’ over-allotment option, at $50 per share. Net
proceeds to the Company were approximately $414 million (net of underwriters’ commission and offering
expenses of approximately $17 million). The Company also received $200 million in total proceeds from the
sale of its common stock to strategic investors.

The Company purchased $46 million of its common stock in the open market in 2000 at an average price
of $30.42.
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Preferrved Stock

Shares of preferred stock, par value $10 per share, are voting and are issuable in one or more series with
rights and preferences as to dividends, redemption, liquidation, sinking funds, and conversion determined by
the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were one million shares authorized and none
outstanding.

Shareholders’ Rights Plan

In February 2000, the Company adopted a shareholders’ rights plan. Under the plan, each shareholder of
record on March 24, 2000 received the right to purchase 1/1000 of a share of the Company’s Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock at the rate of one right for each share of the Company’s common stock then held
of record. Each 1/1000 of a share of the Company’s Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock is designed
to be equivalent in voting and dividend rights to one share of the Company’s common stock. The rights will be
exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of [5% or more of the Company’s common
stock or commences a tender or exchange offer that would result in such a person or group owning 15% or
more of the Company’s common stock. If the rights do become exercisable, the Company’s shareholders,
other than the shareholders that caused the rights to become exercisable, will be able to exercise each right at
an exercise price of $300 and receive shares of the Company’s common stock having a market value equal to
approximately twice the exercise price. As an alternative to paying the exercise price in cash, if the directors of
the Company so determine, shareholders may elect to exercise their rights and, without the payment of any
exercise price, receive half the number of shares of common stock that would have been received had the
exercise price been paid in cash.

12, Stock-Based Compensation

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved up to 4.2 million shares for issuance under the 2001
Associates Equity Compensation Plan to persons other than directors and executive officers of the Company.
In 2002, the number of shares approved under the plan was increased to 5.4 million. The Company’s 1999
Equity Compensation Plan provides for the grant of stock options, restricted stock awards, stock appreciation
rights, performance units and other stock-based awards to employees, directors and consultants, with
9.0 million shares reserved for issuance. In 1999, the Company granted 300,000 options outside of existing
option plans. Generally, outstanding options vest over four years after the date of grant and expire eight years
after the date of grant. To the extent allowable, all grants are incentive stock options. All options granted under
the plans to date have been at prices which have been equal to the fair market value at the date of grant. At
December 31, 2002, the Company reserved 14.1 million shares of common stock for possible future issuance
under its equity compensation plans. Several subsidiaries and most of our companies also maintain equity
compensation plans for their employees and directors.

In 2002, the Company made an offer to its employees to exchange stock options held by these employees
for restricted shares of the Company’s stock. Under the exchange program, each employee with an
outstanding stock option with an exercise price in excess of $15.00 per share was offered the opportunity to
exchange the options for shares of restricted stock. In order to participate in the exchange, a participant had to
exchange all efigible options held. The shares of restricted stock were issued on January 22, 2002, and vested
on the later of July 22, 2002, or the date on which the unvested eligible option exchanged for the restricted
shares would have vested. Vesting will be accelerated upon certain circumstances. Until the restricted stock
vests, the shares are generally subject to forfeiture in the event an employee leaves the Company for a reason
other than a termination without cause. As a result of the exchange, the Company issued 537,878 shares of
restricted stock in January 2002 in return for 2,038,071 stock options that were canceled.

Approximately $2.0 million of non-cash deferred compensation associated with this restricted stock is
being expensed as the restricted stock vests, and will be reduced to the extent that a participant forfeits his or
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her shares of restricted stock received in the exchange prior to vesting. The deferred compensation charge is

unaffected by future changes in the price of the common stock.

Option activity is summarized below:

Outstanding at January 1,2000......... ... ... L
Options granted . ........ ... . . .
Options exercised . ... ... ... .
Options canceled/forfeited ................ ... ... . L.

Outstanding at December 31, 2000............................
Options granted .. ... ..ot
Options exercised . ....... ... i
Options canceled/forfeited .. .. ... ... .. ... . ... ... ... ...

Qutstanding at December 31,2001 ... ... ... .. .. oL
Options granted .. .. ...
Options canceled — option exchange program...................
Other options canceled/forfeited .. ........... ... ..............

Outstanding at December 31,2002 ................ .. .. ... ....

Options exercisable at year-end .. .............iiiiii..
Shares available for future grant ..................... ... ......

Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise Price

(In thousands)

7,097

5,909
(567)
(410)

12,029
2,520

(186)

(1,891)

12,472
3,000
(2,038)
(2,030)

11,404

$19.28
18.22
6.60
2247

19.22
3.76
1.44

22.87

15.80

2.15
36.94
15.43

8.50

The following summarizes information about the Company’s stock options outstanding at December 31,

2002:
Options Cutstanding

Weighted Average Weighted

Number Remaining Average
Range of Qutstanding Contractual Life Exercise

Exercise Prices (In thousands) (In years) Price
$1.25-% 212 2,686 7.3 $1.70
2.17 - 4.9 2,364 6.7 3.66
528 - 7.00 2,666 5.9 5.35
7.10 - 14.84 2,621 35 11.14
20.00 - 3047 423 5.3 28.23
3098 - 50.98 644 4.5 44.07
$ 1.25 - $50.98 11,404 5.7 $ 8.50

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average

Exercisable Exercise

(In thousands) Price

274 $ 2.12
432 4.63
2,178 5.33
2,567 11.21
327 28.28
580 43.49
6,358 $12.18

In addition to restricted stock issued under the option exchange program, the Company issued shares of
restricted stock to employees in 2001 and 2002. During 2001 and 2002, the Company issued 0.4 million and
1.3 million shares of restricted stock to employees with a value on the date of grant of $2.1 million and
$4.5 million, respectively, which was recorded as deferred compensation. The restricted stock vests over
periods ranging from two to four years. Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
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vesting period and is reduced to the extent that a participant forfeits shares of restricted stock received prior to
vesting. The deferred compensation charge is unaffected by future changes in the price of the common stock.

Total compensation expense for restricted stock issuances was $3.4 million and $0.7 miilion for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Unamortized compensation expense related to restricted
stock issuances at December 31, 2002 is $3.5 million.

In additicn to the restricted stock grants discussed above, the Company issued 0.9 million of deferred
stock units to senior executives in December 2002. Deferred stock units are payable in stock, on a one-for-
one basis. Payments in respect of the deferred stock units are distributable not earlier than one year after the
vesting. The value of these deferred stock units was $1.6 million based on the fair value of the stock as of the
date of grant. The deferred stock units vest over four years. During the year ended December 31, 2002,
$0.1 million of expense was recorded related to the deferred stock units. The related liability of $0.1 million is
included in Other Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In 2001, the Company modified certain stock options as a result of severance agreements. Additionally,
included in options granted in 2001 are options granted to non-employee consultants. These options vested
immediately and have a term of four years. The fair value of these options was determined using the Black-
Scholes method assuming a volatility of 77%, a dividend yield of 0%, an average expected option life of four
years and a risk-free interest rate of 4.6%. The Company recorded $0.4 million general and administrative
expenses in 2001 related to these transactions.

In 2000, the Company modified certain stock options as a result of severance agreements. Additionally,
included in options granted in 2000 are 97,500 options granted to non-employee consultants. These options
vested immediately and have a term of four years. The fair value of these options was determined using the
Black-Scholes method assuming a volatility of 75%, a dividend yield of 0%, an average expected option life of
four years and a risk-free interest rate of 6.75%. The Company also granted 75,000 shares of its common stock
with a fair value on the date of grant of $48.21 per share. These shares vested immediately. The Company
recorded general and administrative expenses of $12.1 million in 2000 related to the above transactions.

The following range of assumptions were used by the Company, its subsidiaries and its companies
accounted for under the equity method to determine the fair value of stock options granted in 2002, 2001 and
2000 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Company
Dividend yield ............................. 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility .. ........................ 90-95% 90% 77%
Average expected option life .............. ... 5 Years 5 years 5 Years
Risk-free interest rate ....................... 26% to 5.0% 4.0% to5.1% 5.0% to 6.5%

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Subsidiaries and Equity Method Companies
Dividend yield ............................ 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility . ........................ 0% to 212% 0% to 183% 0% to 157%
Average expected option life ................ 4to 10 years 3 to 10 years 2 to 10 years
Risk-free interest rate ...................... 1.8% t0 5.68% 1.8% to 6.7%  5.0% to 6.8%
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13. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Current
Federal .. ... $6,410 $(43,410) $ 27,118
State ... e 592 386 750
Deferred, primarily federal ... ............... ... .. ... 416 36,182 (128,191)

$7,418 § (6,842) $(100,323)

Total income tax benefit differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax
rate of 35% to income before income taxes as a result of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2060
Statutory tax benefit .. ... .. (35.00% (35.0)% (35.0)%

Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

Non-deductible goodwill amortization ......................... — 0.5 0.6

Non-deductible compensation . ......... ... — — 0.5

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit............ ... ... ... ..., (0.1) — 0.2

Valuation allowance ............ ...t ... 409 32.7 —

...................................................... 0.3 0.4 1.6

6.1% (1.4)% (32.1)%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the non-current deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below:
As of December 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Subsidiary/investee carrying values ..............couiiiiiiiia.. $ 127,817 $ 249451

Accounts receivable and inventories, reserves and tax capitalized costs 4,194 3,632

Tax loss and credit carryforwards. . ...... ... .. ... ... .. ... 133,005 82,915

.14 175 O PP 12,954 4,224

Gross deferred tax assets. .. ... 277,970 340,222

Valuation allowance . ......... ... i i (256,844)  (212,651)
Deferred assets . . .ot e e 21,126 127,571

Deferred tax liabilities:

Subsidiary/investee carrying values ............ .. i, (4,664)  (112,600)
Accelerated depreciation .. ... ..o (785) (2,464)
Other comprehensive INCOME . ... vvv ittt i ee e, —_ (1,061)
Intangible @sSets ... ...t e (4,890) (2,010)
O her . (5,763) (4,799)
Deferred tax labilities . ... ... o (16,102)  (122,934)
Net deferred tax asset .. ..ottt e $ 5024 $ 4,637

The net deferred tax asset of $5.0 million and $4.6 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is included in
Deferred Income Taxes of $1.2 million and $3.2 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and in Prepaid
Expenses and Other Current Assets of $3.8 million and $1.4 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001 on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company has not recognized a deferred tax liability for the difference between the book basis and tax
basis of its holdings in the common stock of its consolidated subsidiaries (such difference relates primarily to
unremitted income of the subsidiaries), because it does not expect this basis difference to become subject to
tax at the parent level. The Company believes it can implement certain tax strategies to recover its basis in
these subsidiaries tax-free.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards and federal capital
loss carryforwards of approximately $105 million and $95 million, respectively. The net operating loss
carryforwards expire in various amounts from present year to 2022. The capital loss carryforwards begin to
expire in 2006. The Company also had, through its subsidiaries that are not consolidated for tax purposes,
additional loss carryforwards of $180.3 million, which expire in various amounts from 2003 to 2022.
Limitations on utilization of both the net operating loss carryforward and capital loss carryforward may apply.
Accordingly, valuation allowances have been provided to account for the potential limitations on utilization of
these tax benefits.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company has recognized that it
is more likely than not that certain future tax benefits may not be realized as a result of current and future
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income. Accordingly, the valuation allowance has been increased in the current year to reflect lower than

anticipated net deferred tax asset utilization.

14, Net Loss Per Share

The calculations of net loss per share were:

Basic:
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .............

Net 1088 .«

Average common shares outstanding ......... ... .. ... ...

Basic before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .............

Basic after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ..
Diluted:

Net loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Effect of public holdings ........ ... . .. i

Adjusted net loss. ... ... o
Average common shares outstanding ......... ... . ... ......

Diluted before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net loss after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. .
Effect of public holdings ............ ... ... .. i v,

Adjustednet loss. . ...

Average common shares outstanding ............... ... ...,

Diluted after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .

If a consolidated or equity method public company has dilutive options or securities outstanding, diluted
net loss per share is computed first by deducting from net loss the income attributable to the potential exercise
of the dilutive options or securities of the company. This impact is shown as an adjustment to net loss for

purposes of calculating diluted net loss per share.

The computation of average common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001 excludes 1.6 million and 0.4 million shares of non-vested restricted stock, which will be included in the

computation when they vest.

Approximately 0.2 million, 0.2 million and 2.6 million weighted average common stock equivalents
related to stock options were excluded from the denominator in the calculation of diluted loss per share for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 because their effect was anti-dilutive. Approximately
8.3 million shares representing the weighted average effect of assumed conversion of the convertible

75

Year Ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

(In thousands except per share data)

$(129,093) $(499,100) $(212,404)
(21,390) — —
$(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)
117,736 117,290 114,068
$  (1.10) $ (426) $ (1.86)

(0.18) — —
$ (128) $  (4.26) $  (1.86)
$(129,093) $(499,100) $(212,404)
(2,912) (1,433) (590)
$(132,005) $(500,533) $(212,994)
117,736 117,290 114,068
$ (112) § (421§ (187)
$(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)
(2,993) (1,433) (590)
$(153,476) $(500,533) $(212,994)
117,736 117,290 114,068
$  (130) $  (427) §  (1.87)
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subordinated notes were excluded in all periods presented from the denominator in the calculation of diluted
loss per share because their effect was anti-dilutive.

15. Related Party Transactions

The Company’s affiliates have transactions in the normal course of business with other affiliates. For
example, CompuCom recorded total revenues of approximately $0.2, $0.8 million, and $4.2 million in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, from the Company and its affiliates. Additionally, CompuCom incurred
consulting-related expenses of $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $1.1 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
for services provided by affiliates of the Company. Additionally, the Company leased space to certain affiliates.

In May 2001, the Company consummated a definitive agreement with our former Chairman and CEQO,
Mr. Musser, under which the Company loaned him $26.5 million. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of
7% and became payable on a limited basis on January 1, 2003. Safeguard sent Mr. Musser a demand notice
and, when no payment was received, a default notice. In conjunction with the original loan, Mr. Musser
granted the Company security interests in securities and real estate as collateral. As of December 31, 2002, the
value of the collateral pledged by Mr. Musser to secure the loan had an approximate value of $14.5 million
compared to the loan’s carrying value of $25.9 million and the Company concluded that the decline in the
collateral was other than temporary. Based on the information available to us, we also concluded that
Mr. Musser may not have sufficient personal assets to satisfy the outstanding balance due under the loan when
the loan becomes full recourse against Mr. Musser on April 30, 2006. At December 31, 2002, the Company
have impaired the loan by $11.4 million to the value of the collateral that we hold. The Company will continue
to evaluate the value of the collateral to the carrying value of the note on a quarterly basis.

CompuCom purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Excell in July 2001. Excell was a
subsidiary of Cambridge Technology Partners. At the time of the acquisition, the Company held a 16% equity
ownership interest in Cambridge.

In the normal course of business, the Company’s directors, officers and employees hold board positions of
companies in which the Company has a direct or indirect ownership interest.

The CEQ of Internet Capital Group, of which the Company owns a 13% voting interest, is a member of
the Company’s Board of Directors.

The Company’s Chairman is the President and CEO of TL Ventures. The Company has invested or
committed a total of $67 million in the seven TL Ventures and EnerTech Capital funds. The Company owns
less than 7% of the partnership interests of each of these funds.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation Arising Out Of The Initial Public Offering of Opus360 Corporation

Beginning in April 2001, the Company, CompuCom and a former officer of the Company who served as a
Director of Opus360 Corporation, were named in putative class actions filed in federal court in New York. The
plaintiffs alleged material misrepresentations and/or omissions in connection with the initial public offering of
Opus360 Corporation stock on April 7, 2000.

On October 2, 2002, the court granted the motion to dismiss filed by Safeguard and CompuCom with
respect to the claims under Section 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933. The court also granted the motion
to dismiss filed by all defendants due to the absence of any material misstatement or omission in the
prospectus and registration statement (without prejudice to repleading within 30 days). On October 30, 2002,
plaintiffs served their second amended consolidated class action complaint. The amended complaint does not
name Safeguard or CompuCom as defendants and thus there is no pending actions against Safeguard or
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CompuCom. It remains unclear whether plaintiffs will seek to appeal the dismissal of their claims against
Safeguard and CompuCom at the conclusion of the still-pending action against the remaining defendants.

Safeguard Scientifics Securities Litigation

On June 26, 2001, the Company and Warren V. Musser, the Company’s former Chairman, were named
as defendants in a putative class action filed in federal court in Philadelphia. Plaintiffs allege that defendants
failed to disclose that Mr. Musser had pledged some or all of his Safeguard stock as collateral to secure margin
trading in his personal brokerage accounts. Plaintiffs allege that defendants’ failure to disclose the pledge,
along with their failure to disclose several margin calls, a loan to Mr. Musser, the guarantee of certain margin
debt and the consequences thereof on Safeguard’s stock price, violated the federal securities laws. Plaintiffs
allege claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

On August 17, 2001, a second putative class action was filed against the Company and Mr. Musser
asserting claims similar to those brought in the first proceeding. In addition, plaintiffs in the second case allege
that the defendants failed to disclose possible or actual manipulative aftermarket trading in the securities of
Safeguard’s companies, the impact of competition on prospects for one or more of Safeguard’s companies and
the Company’s lack of a superior business plan.

These two cases have been consolidated for further proceedings under the name “In Re: Safeguard
Scientifics Securities Litigation” and the Court has approved the designation of a lead plaintiff and the
retention of lead plaintiffs’ counsel. The plaintiffs have filed a consolidated and amended complaint. On
May 23, 2002, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss the consolidated and amended complaint for failure to
state claim upon which relief may be granted. On October 24, 2002, the Court denied the defendants’ motions
to dismiss, holding that, based on the allegations of plaintiffs’ consolidated and amended complaint, dismissal
would be inappropriate at this juncture. While the outcome of this litigation is uncertain, the Company
believes that it has valid defenses to plaintiffs’ claims and intends to defend the lawsuit vigorously.

Other

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In October 2002, the Company sold its corporate campus, which included its corporate headquarters
building for approximately $6 million in net cash proceeds. The Company entered into a seven year operating
lease on the headquarters building. The gain on the headquarters transaction was deferred and is being
amortized over the term of the lease agreement.

The Company and its subsidiaries conduct a portion of their operations in leased facilities and lease
machinery and equipment under leases expiring at various dates to 2019. Total rental expenses under
operating leases was $15.3 million, $15.1 million and $14.4 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one
year or more at December 31, 2002, are (in millions): $14.6 — 2003, $11.0 — 2004, $7.9 — 2005, $6.6 —
2006; $6.4 — 2007 and $51.3 thereafter.

In connection with its ownership interests in certain affiliates, the Company has guarantees of $21 million
at December 31, 2002, of which $17 million relates to guarantees of our consolidated companies. A total of
$8 million of debt associated with its guarantees have been recorded on the consolidated companies’ Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2002. Additionally, we have committed capital of approximately $38 million,
including commitments made in prior years to various affiliates, to be funded over the next several years,
including approximately $11 million which is expected to be funded in the next year.
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The Company has received distributions as both a general partner and a limited partner from certain
private equity funds. Under certain circumstances, the Company may be required to return a portion or all the
distributions it received as a general partner to the fund for a further distribution to the fund’s limited partners
(the “clawback™). Assuming the Funds in which the Company is a general partner are liquidated or dissolved
on December 31, 2002 and the only value provided by the Funds is the carrying values represented on the
December 31, 2002 financial statements, the maximum clawback the Company would be required to return
for its general partner interests is $5.9 million. Management estimates its liability to be approximately
$5.5 million. This amount is reflected in Other Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company’s ownership in the general partner of the funds which have potential clawback liabilities
range from 19-30%. The clawback liability is joint and several, such that the Company may be required to
fund the clawback for other general partners should they default. The Funds have taken several steps to reduce
the potential liabilities should other general partners default, including withholding all general partner
distributions in escrow and adding rights of set-off among certain funds. The Company believes its liability
under the default of other general partners is remote.

The Company has entered into retention agreements with its six executive officers at December 31, 2002.
These agreements provide for severance payments to the executive officer in the event the officer is terminated
without cause or the officer terminates their employment for “good reason”. The amount of severance
payment is a multiple of the executive’s salary and bonus. The applicable multiple ranges from 1.5 to 3.0
depending upen the officer’s position, the officer’s tenure, and whether or not a “change of control” has
occurred. The agreement also provides for acceleration of vesting and extended exercise periods for certain
equity grants to the officer and certain other rights. The maximum aggregate exposure under the agreements is
$7.3 million at December 31, 2002.

17. Parent Company Financial Information

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all wholly owned subsidiaries, including
aligne, Lever8 Solutions and Alliance Consulting, which are accounted for under the consolidation method of
accounting.

Parent company financial information is provided to present the financial position and results of
operations of the Company as if the less than wholly owned consolidated companies were accounted for under
the equity method of accounting for all periods presented during which the Company owned its interest in
these companies. Parent company financial statements include the results of the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, including aligne, Lever8 Solutions and Alliance Consulting.

78




SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Parent Company Balance Sheets

As of Becember 31,

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ......... ... .. ... . ... . . . . $112,714  $171,531
Restricted cash ... ... 3,634 8,033
Short-term INVeStMENtS . .. oottt e e e e e 9,986 —
Trading SECUMtIeS . . ..ottt e e e 832 205,553
Income tax receivable ... ... —_ 62,647
Other CUMTENE @88 S . o . vt ottt e et e e e e e e e e e 27,520 18,299
Total CUITENTt ASSETS . . .\ vttt e it e e e e 154,686 466,063
Ownership interests in and advances to affiliates .......................... 230,910 274,389
Available-for-sale seCUrities ...t 4,548 4,822
Note receivable — related party ... ... .. ... . . 14,482 25,046
GoodWill, Net ... e e e 93,055 44,143
Intangible assets, NEt .. ...t e 10,115 —
O 111 1= GO 11,526 26,866
T0tal ASSEES & ottt et e $519,322  $841,329
Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity
Current liabilities . ... .. ... $ 32,608 § 23,632
Other current Habilities . .. ... o o i —_ 171,804
Total current liabilities ... ... . .. 32,608 195,436
Long-term debt ... ... e e 538 16,676
Other long-term liabilities.......... ... ... i 13,903 10,541
Convertible subordinated notes. ........ ...t e 200,000 200,000
Shareholders’ equity. . . ... it i e e 272,273 418,676
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ......... .. ... ... .o o it $519,322  $841,329

In connection with its ownership interests in certain affiliates, the Company has guarantees of $21 million

at December 31, 2002, of which $9 million relates to guarantees of our wholly owned subsidiaries. A total of
$7 million of debt associated with its guarantees have been recorded on the consolidated companies’ Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2002.

Debt for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes primarily mortgage obligations ($3.9 million), bank

credit facilities ($5.9 million), and capital lease obligations ($0.4 million). These obligations bear interest at
fixed rates between 4.25% to 9.0%, and variable rates consisting of the prime rate plus 1%.

Debt for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes primarily mortgage obligations ($17.4 million} and,

bank credit facilities ($4.8 miilion). These obligations bear interest at fixed rates between 7.75% to 9.75%, and
variable rates consisting of 72% of the prime rate (4.75% at December 31, 2001) or LIBOR (2.5% at
December 31, 2001) plus 1.9%.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt during future years are (in millions): $9.7 — 2003; $0.3 — 2004,

$0.2 — 2005; and $0.0 — thereafter.
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Parent Company Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2060
(In thousands)
Product sales ... $ 2% $§ 161§ —
Service sales ... .. e 28,251 43,882 15916
Other TeVenUe . ... i e e 24,069 27,063 22,543
Total ..o 52,579 71,106 38,459
Operating expenses:
Costofsales ....... ... i 21,520 31,517 8,858
Selling ... 2,309 1,747 384
General and administrative ........ ... .. ... ... ... 55,235 77,020 95,264
Depreciation and amortization. ....................... 4475 8,619 5,109
Total operating expenses .. ............c.covivnai... 83,539 118,903 109,615

(30,960) (47,797) (71,156)

Other income (loss), net ........... .. ... ... (16,867) (41,332) 92,115
Interest and financing expense, net.................. (11,353) (12,893) (7,046)
Income (loss) before income taxes, equity loss and

change in accounting principle ................... (59,180)  (102,024) 13,913
Income taxes benefit.............................. (15) 9,740 102,462
Equity loss ... (69,473) (406,816)  (328,779)
Net loss before change in accounting principle . ... .. .. (128,668)  (499,100)  (212,404)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. (21,815) — —
Net 0SS © ittt e $(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)

The Company’s share of income or losses of its less than wholly owned consolidated subsidiaries are
reflected in Equity Loss.

80




SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net 10SS .ot

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. .............. . ... . .......
Deferred income taxes ..........coviiiiiiiniianeeneonn.
Equity loss ... .o
Non-cash compensation charges ..........................
Tax benefit of stock option exercises ......................
Other (income) loss, net ... .. ..o
Impairment —related party. . ......... ... o oL
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .........

Cash provided by (used) by changes in working capital items:

Other receivables, net. ... ... ... .. .. . . . .
Income tax receivable. .. ... .. ...
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other ................

Net cash provided (used in) operating activities ............

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale and trading securities ..
Proceeds from sales of and distributions from affiliates .........
Advances to affiliates .......... .. o
Repayment of advances to affiliates .........................

Acquisitions of ownership interests in affiliates and subsidiaries,

net of cash acquired ......... ... ... ... .. il
Advances torelated party ...... ... i
Repayment of advances to related party .....................

Decrease (increase) in short-term investments and restricted

Year Ended December 31,

CaSh. L
Proceeds from sale of building ............. ... . ... ...
Capital expenditures . . ... e
Other, NEL. . oot e

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ............

Financing Activities

Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . .....................
Repayments on revolving credit facilities . ....................
Borrowings on long~term debt . ............ ... ... ... ...
Repayments on long-termdebt .. ... ... ... .. ... oL
Repurchase of Company common stock ........ ... .. ... ..
Issuance of Company common stock, net ....................

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..........

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents..........
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period...............

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period .. ..................
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2002 2001 2690
(In thousands)

$(150,483) $(499,100) $(212,404)
4,475 8,619 5,109
— 37,622 (127,505)
69,473 406,816 328,779
3,406 1,227 12,603
— (88) (4,099)
5,433 41,332 (92,115)
11,434 —_ —
21,815 — —_
3,186 (1,059) 4,270
62,647 (48,173) —
(1,000) 22,238 13,549
30,386 (30,566)  (71,813)
13,273 19,365 98,649
24,738 101,638 74,199
(5,697) (18,619) (32,293)
— 1,331 15,550
(118,703)  (77,736)  (478,729)
(618)  (26,630) —
1,556 2,694 —
(5,587) 81,695 (86,230)
17,672 — —
(1,546) (817) (5,136)
368 (1,359) 3,015
(74,544) 81,562  (410,979)
— — 100,000
(90) —_ {100,000)
— 4,029 55
(14,569) (1,537) (1,514)
— — (46,486)
— 269 614,971
(14,659) 2,761 567,026
(58,817) 53,757 84,238
171,531 117,774 33,536
$ 112,714 $ 171,531 $ 117,774
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18. Supplemental Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company exchanged all of its holdings in Cambridge
Technology Partners for shares of Novell. Also during the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company
exchanged all of its holdings in ThinAirApps and Atlas Commerce for shares of Palm and VerticalNet,
respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company converted $1.3 million,
$8.9 million and $30.8 million, respectively, of advances to affiliates into ownership interests in affiliates.

Interest paid in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $14.0 million, $20.4 million and $28.9 million, respectively, of
which $10.0 million in each year was related to the Company’s convertible subordinated notes.

Cash paid for taxes in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $11.1 million, $9.4 million
and $28.2 million, respectively.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company issued 0.3 million and 0.2 million shares of the Company’s
common stock in 2001 and 2000, respectively, to acquire interests in companies.

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company received stock distributions
from its interests in private equity funds with a fair value at the time of distribution of $0.1 million,
$7.2 million and $56.0 million, respectively.

In conjunction with the sale of its headquarters facility, the Company received a $2 million note.

19. Operating Segments

Our reportable segments include 1) Strategic Private Companies, which includes those companies that we
focus on with the goal of accelerating value creation; i) Public Companies (excluding CompuCom), which
includes the results of operations of our publicly-traded companies (excluding CompuCom); iii) CompuCom,
which represents the results of our subsidiary, CompuCom; and iv) Other Private Companies and Funds,
which represents other private companies and private equity funds in which we hold an equity interest.

In periods prior to 2002, our reportable segments were General Safeguard Operations, Partner Company
Operations and CompuCom Operations. All prior periods have been restated to conform to the current-year
presentation. The development of the current segments corresponds to the implementation of our shift in
strategic focus announced in early 2002, and represents management’s view of the Company’s operations.

The following tables reflect our consolidated operating data by reportable segments. Each segment
includes the results of the consolidated companies and records our share of income or losses for entities
accounted for under the equity method. Segment results also include impairment charges, gains or losses
related to the disposition of the companies and the mark to market of trading securities. All significant
intersegment activity has been eliminated. Accordingly, segment results reported exclude the effect of
transactions between us and our subsidiaries.

Other items, which include corporate expenses, results of operations of disposed companies, goodwill
amortization and income taxes, are reviewed by management independent of segment results.
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Year Ended December 31, 2002

Other Public
Strategic Private Companies
Private Companies  (Excluding Total Consolidated
Companies  and Funds  CompuCom) CompuCom Segments Other ltems Results
(In thousands)
Revenue
Product sales .............. $ 12587 § 2,764 $§ 4890 $1,269,112 $1,289,353 §$ —  $1,289,353
Service sales ............... 37,678 20,227 12,250 301,977 372,132 — 372,132
Other..................... 31 23,969 — — 24,000 69 24,069
Total revenue ................ 50,296 46,960 17,140 1,571,089 1,685,485 69 1,685,554
Operating Expenses
Cost of sales — product. ... .. 2,209 1,913 141 1,164,685 1,168,948 — 1,168,948
Cost of sales — service ... ... 25,846 13,645 1,657 200,002 241,150 — 241,150
Selling and service . ......... 27,048 3,376 13,253 87,631 131,308 — 131,308
General and administrative ... 15,991 27,601 4,536 69,435 117,563 23,938 141,501
Depreciation and amortization 2,940 3,075 4,688 18,232 28,935 3,947 32,882
Total operating expenses ... .... 74,034 49,610 24,275 1,539,985 1,687,904 27,885 1,715,789
(23,738) (2,650) (7,135) 31,104 (2,419) (27,816) (30,235)
Other income (loss), net ....  (4,377) 7,319 (15,096) — (12,154) 430 (11,724)
Impairment — related party . . — — —_ — — (11,434) (11,434)
Interest and financing
expense, net ............. (411) (767) (3,379) (477) (5,034)  (10,791) (15,825)
Income (loss) before income
taxes, minority interest and
change in accounting principle (28,526) 3,902 (25,610) 30,627 (19,607)  (49,611) (69,218)
Income taxes expense ....... — — — — — (7,418) (7,418)
Minority interest ........... 5,499 262 4411 (11,625) (1,453) —_— (1,453)
Equityloss ................ (1,957) (43,044) (5,583) — (50,584) (420) (51,004)
Net income (loss) before
change in accounting principle (24,984) (38,880)  (26,782) 19,002 (71,644)  (57,449) (129,093)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle......... (21,815) — — 425 (21,390) — (21,390)
Net Income (Loss) ........... $(46,799) $(38,880) $(26,782) $§ 19,427 $ (93,034) $(57,449) $ (150,483)
Total Assets ................. $146,841 $ 64,105 § 49,348 $ 458,562 $ 718,856 $149810 $ 868,666
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Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenue

Productsales............

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses
Cost of sales — product. ..
Cost of sales -— service . ..

Selling and service

General and administrative

Depreciation and
amortization

Total operating expenses

Other loss, net ..........

Interest and financing
expense, net ..........
Income (loss) before income
taxes, minority interest and
equity loss,

Income taxes benefit

Minority interest. ........

Equity loss

Net Income (Loss)

Total Assets

Other Public
Strategic Private Companies

Private Companies (Excluding Total Consolidated

Companies and Funds CompuCom) CompuCom  Segments  Gther ltems Results

(In thousands)

$ 9280 5 2522 % 7,630 $1,533,567 $1,552,999 § —  $1,552,999
45,582 10,794 7,308 281,922 345,606 — 345,606
— 26,772 — — 26,772 291 27,063
54,862 40,088 14938 1,815,489 1,925,377 291 1,925,668
2,449 901 78 1,389,417 1,392,845 — 1,392,845
33,576 7,124 1,766 182,090 224,556 — 224,556
11,988 2,820 9,510 119,729 144,047 — 144,047
11,926 27,806 2,337 86,657 128,726 42,280 171,006
3,437 1,621 3,334 22,729 31,121 9,627 40,748
63,376 40,272 17,025 1,800,622 1,921,295 51,907 1,973,202
(8,514) (184) (2,087) 14,867 4,082 (51,616) (47,534)
— (18,874) (22,458) — (41,332) — (41,332)
47 (89) (212) (3,308) (3,562) (14,233) (17,795)
(8,467) (19,147) (24,757) 11,559 (40,812) (65,849) (106,661)
— — — —_ — 6,842 6,842
745 (188) — (3,891) (3,334) — (3,334)
(3,390) (119,423) (167,915) — (290,728) (105,219) (395,947)
$ (11,112) $(138,758) $ (192,672) § 7,668 $ (334,874) $(164,226) $ (499,100)
$ 89,715 $ 113,422 § 255982 $ 446,615 $ 905,734 §$ 286,529  $1,192,263
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Other Public
Strategic Private Companies
Private Companies  (excluding Total Consolidated
Companies and Funds CompuCom) CompuCom Segments  Other Items Results
(In thousands)
Revenue
Productsales ................... $11,400 § — § 7,066 $2,439,106 $2,457,572 § — $2,457,572
Service sales ................... 13,293 — 6,531 271,531 291,355 — 291,355
Other .......... ... ... ..... — 22,207 — — 22,207 92 22,299
Total revenue..................... 24,693 22,207 13,597 2,710,637 2,771,134 92 2,771,226
Operating expenses
Cost of sales — product .......... 2,622 —_ 1,793 2,253,209 2,257,624 — 2,257,624
Cost of sales —service ........... 9,816 — 2,115 172,287 184,218 — 184,218
Selling and service .............. 8,004 —_ 7,033 134,182 149,219 1,132 150,351
General and administrative ....... 6,963 17,689 3,678 99,040 127,370 72,681 200,051
Depreciation and amortization. . . .. 1,734 266 2,606 21,863 26,469 6,993 33,462
Restructuring . . ................. — — — 5,417 5,417 — 5,417
Total operating expenses ......... 29,139 17,955 17,225 2,685,998 2,750,317 80,806 2,831,123
(4,446) 4,252 (3,628) 24,639 20,817 (80,714)  (59,897)
Other income, net. .............. — 58,548 33,567 990 93,105 — 93,105
Interest and financing expense, net (724} 160 (199)  (15,278)  (16,041) (7,759)  (23,800)
Income (loss) before income taxes,
minority interest and equity income
(loss) .ot (5,170) 62,960 29,740 10,351 97,881 (88,473) 9,408
Income taxes benefit............. — — — — —_ 100,323 100,323
Minority interest . ............... 973 — — (3,186) (2,213) — (2,213)
Equity income (loss) ............ — 24,143 (128,316) —  (104,173) (215,749) (319,922)
Net Income (Loss) ............... $(4,197) $87,103 $ (98,576)$% 7,165 $ (8,505) $(203,899) $ (212,404)
Other Items
As of December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Corporate Operations. ...........ouiieeinii $(50,031) $ (60,624) $ (80,174)
Results of operations — dispositions .. .................. — (77,818)  (190,963)
Goodwill amortization .......... ... ... ... ... . .. ... ... — (32,626) (33,085)
Income tax (expense) benefit .. .. ................... .. (7,418) 6,842 100,323
$(57,449) $(164,226) $(203,899)




SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFECS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

20. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended,
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
(In thousands except per share data)

2002
Revenue ...... ..ot $ 350,804 § 452,852 $443,056 $438,842
Total operating eXpenses. . ............oevuennnnn 359,700 459,922 450,003 446,164
(8,896) (7,070) (6,947) (7,322)
Other income (loss), net ....................... (5,531) (3,397) (4,476) 1,680
Impairment — related party (Note 1) ............ — — — (11,434)
Interest expense, net .............oivininenn.. (5,445) (3,251) (5,635) (1,494)
Net loss before income taxes, minority interest,
equity loss and change in accounting principle ... (19,872) (13,718) (17,058) (18,570)
Incometaxes ......... ... ... . i i, (1,118) (1,944) (2,168) (2,188)
Minority interest ...t (841) (608) 667 (671)
Equity loss ... {18,907) (17,639) (4,691) (9,767)
Net loss before change in accounting principle ... .. (40,738) {33,909) (23,250) (31,196)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (21,390) — — —
Net 10SS. v vt $ (62,128) $ (33,909)  $(23,250) $(31,196)
Basic Loss Per Share(a):
Prior to cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ........ . ... $ (035 $ (029) $ (0.20) $ (0.26)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ........ ... (0.18) — — —

$ (0.53) $  (029) § (0.20) $  (0.26)

Diluted Loss Per Share:
Prior to cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle ...... .. ... .. $ (035) $§ (029) $ (0.20) $ (©0.27)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ....... ... .. (0.18) — — —
$ (053) $ (029 § (0.20) $ (0.27)
2001
Revenue ........ ... . . i $ 576,975 $ 515,024 $432,564 $401,105
Total operating exXpenses. ........oovveneneenn.n. 586,904 523,605 446,139 416,554
(9,929) (8,581) (13,575) (15,449)
Other income (loss), net ....................... (9,275) (28,300) (12,860) 9,103
Interest expense, net ........ ... .. .. L, (4,747) (3,755) (4,624) (4,669)
Net loss before income taxes, minority interest and
CQUILY OS5 . v (23,951) (40,636) (31,059) (11,015)
Income taxes ... 9,257 (3,071) 587 69
Minority interest .. ... ... i i il (1,050) (1,248) (671) (365)
Equity 1oss ... (233,999) (65,517) (44,940) (51,491)
Net oSS, oo e $(249,743) $(110,472)  $(76,083) $(62,802)
Net loss per share (a)
Basic .. e $ (213) § (054) % (0.65) $ (0.34)
Diluted ..o $§ (213) $§ (095 § (0.65 $ (0.54)

(a) Per share amounts for the quarters have each been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly amounts
may not add to the annual amounts because of differences in the average common shares outstanding
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SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Centinued)

during each period. Additionally, in regard to diluted per share amounts only, quarterly amounts may not
add to the annual amounts because of the inclusion of the effect of potentially dilutive securities only in
the periods in which such effect would have been dilutive, and because of the adjustments to net income
for the dilutive effect of public holdings common stock equivalents and convertible securities.

21. Trade and Vendor Accounts Receivable

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

Balance, January 1, 2000. ..

Charged to costs and €Xpenses .. ......vvereirrniinenennnnn

Charge-offs ............
Other .................

Balance, December 31, 2000

Charged to costs and €Xpenses . ...........oviniinnninnn.

Charge-offs ............
Other .................

Balance, December 31, 2001

Charged to costs and €Xpenses ..........covurieiiineiean.

Charge-offs
Other .................

Balance, December 31, 2002

22. Subsequent Events

From January 1, 2003 through March 12, 2003 the Company funded $2 million of commitments made
prior to December 31, 2002. Additionally, from January 1, 2003 through March 12, 2003, the Company
committed $11 million and funded $10 million to acquire ownership interests in or make advances to new and

existing affiliates.

On February 13, 2003, the Company issued a guarantee in favor of a consolidated company in the amount
of $3 million. This reduces the availability under the Company’s $25 million revolving credit facility.
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$ 5,604

300

3,266

832
(1,165)

590

$ 3,523
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None.
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PART IX

Item 20. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Director,
Executive
Officer or Key
Name Age Position(s) Employee Since
Executive Officers:
Anthony L. Craig ............... 57  President, Chief Executive Officer 2001
and Director
Michael F. Cola ................ 43  Managing Director, Corporate 2002
Operations
Christopher J. Davis ............. 50  Managing Director and Chief 2001
Financial Officer
Anthony A. Ibargiien ............ 43 Managing Director, Business & 2002
IT Services
N. Jeffrey Klauder .............. 50  Managing Director and General 2000
Counsel
Directors:
Robert E. Keith, Jr. ............. 61  Chairman of the Board 1996
Vincent G. Bell, Jr. ............. 77  Director 1956
Walter W. Buckley, IIT .......... 43 Director 2000
Julie A. Dobson. ................ 46  Director 2003
Robert A, Fox .................. 73 Director 1981
George MacKenzie .............. 54  Director 2003
Jack L. Messman ............... 63  Director 1994
Russell E. Palmer ............... 68  Director 1989
John W. Poduska, Sr. ........... 65 Director 1987
JohnJ Roberts . ................ 58  Director 2003

Mr. Craig became president and chief executive officer of Safeguard in October 2001. Before joining
Safeguard, Mr. Craig was chief executive officer from December 1999 to QOctober 2001, and remains
chairman, of Arbinet-thexchange, a leading online trading exchange for the telecommunications industry.
Before Arbinet, he served as president and chief executive officer of Global Knowledge Network, a premier
provider of technology learning services, from January 1997 to December 1999. Mr. Craig has also served as
corporate vice president for Digital Equipment Corporation, senior vice president for Oracle Systems
Corporation, and president and chief executive officer of Prime Computer. Mr. Craig has also held the
positions of vice president of General Electric Company and president and chief executive officer of
GE Information Services, as well as a series of executive assignments internationally at IBM Corporation.
Mr. Craig is a director of CompuCom Systems, Inc.

Mr. Cola joined Safeguard as vice president of operations and management services in February 2000 and
became managing director, corporate operations in January 2002. Prior to joining Safeguard, Mr. Cola spent
eight years as vice president, Global Clinical Operations, at AstraZeneca, where he was responsible for global
clinical and U.S. product development operations and technology solutions integration. Prior to joining
AstraZeneca, Mr. Cola was responsible for re-engineering processes and systems in manufacturing and
product development at Campbell Soup Company. Mr. Cola is a director of ChromaVision Medical
Systems, Inc.

Mr. Davis joined Safeguard as vice president, strategic development in March 2000 and became
executive vice president and chief financial officer in August 2001 and managing director and chief financial
officer in January 2002. Prior to joining Safeguard, Mr. Davis served for three years as president and chief
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executive officer of LFC Financial Corporation, a privately held financial services company engaged in
complex financing transactions, and as chief financial officer for the preceding nine years. Mr. Davis began his
career at Coopers & Lybrand as a certified public accountant and has also been an independent consultant for
early stage, technology-oriented companies. Mr. Davis is a director of eMerge Interactive, Inc. and Tangram
Enterprise Solutions, Inc.

Mr. Ibarglien joined Safeguard’s executive team in January 2002. Prior to joining Safeguard,
Mr. Ibargiien was managing director and president of professional services with Internet Capital Group, which
he joined in December 1999, and president and chief operating officer of Tech Data Corporation from
September 1996 to December 1999. Previously, he was co-founder and executive vice president of Entex
Information Services, a privately held $2 billion systems integrator subsequently acquired by Siemens
Business Services. Mr. Ibargiien started his career at IBM where he held a variety of sales, marketing and
management positions. Mr. Ibargiien is a director of Smartdisk Corporation.

Mr. Klauder joined Safeguard as senior vice president in April 2000 and became executive vice president
and general counsel in December 2000 and managing director and general counsel in January 2002. Prior to
joining Safeguard, Mr. Klauder was a partner in Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP, a law firm, since 1986, where
he was co-chair of the firm’s Mergers & Acquisitions Group and a member of the firm’s Advisory Board.

Mr. Keith was appointed chairman of the Board of Safeguard in October 2001, prior to which he served
as vice chairman since February 1999. Mr. Keith also served as a member of the office of the chief executive
of Safeguard from April 2001 to October 2001. Mr. Keith has been a managing director of TL Ventures and
its predecessor funds since 1988. He has served as president since 1991, and as chief executive officer since
February 1996, of Technology Leaders Management, Inc., a private equity capital management company.
Mr. Keith is also a senior adviser to, and co-founder of, EnerTech Capital Partners, a venture capital fund that
targets technology companies that benefit from deregulation of the utility industry. Mr. Keith is a director of
Internet Capital Group, Inc.

Mr. Bell is president of Verus Corporation, a management investment firm he formed in 1987. From
April 2001 to October 2001, Mr. Bell served as acting chief executive officer of Safeguard and as a member of
the office of the chief executive. Before 1987, Mr. Bell was chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
of Safeguard Business Systems, Inc., an information systems company.

Mr. Buckley is a co-founder and director of, and has served as chief executive officer of, Internet Capital
Group, Inc., an Internet company actively engaged in business-to-business e-commerce through a network of
partner companies, since March 1996 and as chairman since December 2001. Mr. Buckley also served as
president of Internet Capital Group until December 2001. Prior to co-founding Internet Capital Group,
Mr. Buckley worked for Safeguard as vice president of acquisitions from 1991 to February 1996. Mr. Buckley
is a director of VerticalNet, Inc.

Ms. Dobson served as chief operating officer, from 1998 until February 2002, of TeleCorp PCS, a
wireless/mobile phone company which was acquired by AT&T Wireless in late 2001. From 1997 to 1998,
Ms. Dobson was president of Bell Atlantic’s New York/New Jersey Metro Region mobile phone operations.
Prior to that time, Ms. Dobson served in a number of executive positions during her 18-year career with Bell
Atlantic, including sales, operations, and strategic planning and development in the CEO’s office. Ms. Dobson
is a director of PNM Corp.

Mr. Fox has been chairman and chief executive officer of R.A.F. Industries, Inc., a private investment
company that acquires and manages a diversified group of operating companies and venture capital
investments, since 1979. Mr. Fox is a trustec of the University of Pennsylvania and the Wistar Institute.

Mr. MacKenzie served from September 2001 until June 2002 as executive vice president and chief
financial officer of Glatfelter Co., a paper manufacturer. Prior to that time, Mr. MacKenzie had retired in
June 2001 as vice chairman and chief financial officer of Hercules, Incorporated, a global manufacturer of
chemical specialties. Mr. MacKenzie’s 22-year career with Hercules culminated in his role as vice chairman
and chief financial officer, the latter position which he held since 1995. Mr. MacKenzie is a director of
C&D Technologies, Inc. and Central Vermont Public Service Corporation.
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Mr. Messman is chairman of the Board, president and chief executive officer of Novell, Inc., a leading
provider of Net business solutions. Mr. Messman previously served as chief executive officer and president of
Cambridge Technology Partners (Massachusetts), Inc., an e-business systems integration company, from
August 1999 until its acquisition by Novell in July 2001. From April 1991 until August 1999, Mr. Messman
was chairman and chief executive officer of Union Pacific Resources Group Inc., an independent oil and gas
exploration and production company. From May 1988 to April 1991, Mr. Messman was chairman and chief
executive officer of USPCI, Inc., Union Pacific’s environmental services company. Mr. Messman is a director
of RadioShack Corporation and USDATA Corporation.

Mr. Palmer is chairman and chief executive officer of The Palmer Group, a corporate investment firm he
organized in 1990. From 1983 to June 1990, Mr. Palmer was dean of The Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania. From 1972 to 1983, he was managing partner and chief executive officer of Touche Ross & Co.
(now Deloitte & Touche). Mr. Palmer is a director of Verizon Communications, Honeywell Interna-
tional, Inc. and The May Department Stores Company.

Dr. Poduska is an independent business consultant. From January 1992 until December 2001, he served
as chairman of Advanced Visual Systems, Inc., a provider of visualization software and solutions. Before 1992,
Dr. Poduska was president and chief executive officer of Stardent Computer, Inc, a computer manufacturer,
from December 1989 to December 1991. From December 1985 to December 1989, Dr. Poduska was founder,
chairman and chief executive officer of Stellar Computer, Inc., a computer manufacturer and the predecessor
of Stardent Computer, Inc. Dr. Poduska is a director of Novell, Inc., and Anadarko Petroleum Corporation.

Mr. Roberts retired in June 2002 as a global managing partner and a member of the Leadership Team of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, completing a 35-year career with the professional services firm. Mr. Roberts is a
C.P.A. and served in a variety of client service and operating positions during his career. He is a director of
SICOR, Inc. and a trustee of Drexel University.

The information concerning compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 required
by this Item is incorporated by reference to the portion of the Definitive Proxy Statement entitled
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

Item i1. Executive Compensation
Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Definitive Proxy Statement entitied “Executive
Compensation & Other Arrangements.”
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Definitive Proxy Statement entitled “Stock Ownership of
Directors and Officers.”
Equity Compensation Plans
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Our equity compensation plans provide a broad-based program designed to attract and retain talent while
creating alignment with the interests of our shareholders. Employees at all levels participate in our equity
compensation plans. In addition, members of our Board of Directors receive stock options for their service on
our Board.

Our Board of Directors is authorized to administer our equity compensation plans, adopt, amend and
repeal the administrative rules relating to the plans, and interpret the provisions of the plans. Our Board of
Directors has delegated to the Compensation Committee authority to administer our equity compensation
plans.

Cur Compensation Committee has the authority to select the recipients of grants under our equity
compensation plans and determine the terms and conditions of the grants, including but not limited to (i) the
number of shares of common stock covered by such grants, (ii) the type of grant, (iii) the dates upon which
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such grants vest (which is typically 25% on the first anniversary of the grant date and in 36 equal monthly
installments thereafter), (iv) the exercise price of options (which is typically equal to the fair market value of
the shares on the grant date) or the consideration to be paid in connection with restricted stock or other stock-
based grants (which may be no consideration), and (iv) the term of the grant.

During 2001, our Board of Directors adopted the 2001 Associates Equity Compensation Plan, which
provides for the grant of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance
units, and other stock-based awards to employees, consultants or advisors of Safeguard and its subsidiaries,
provided that no grants can be made under this plan to executive officers and directors of Safeguard. This plan
is administered by the Compensation Committee which, as described above, has the authority to issue equity
grants thereunder and to establish the terms and conditions of such grants. Except for the persons eligible to
participate in the plan the terms of the 2001 plan are the same as the 1999 plan.

A total of 5,400,000 shares of our common stock are authorized for issuance under the 2001 Plan. At
December 31, 2002, 3,273,027 shares were subject to outstanding options, 772,463 shares were available for
future issuance, and 1,354,510 shares have been issued under the 2001 Plan. If any option granted under the
2001 Plan expires or is terminated, surrendered, canceled or forfeited, or if any shares of Restricted Stock,
Performance Units or Other Stock-Based Grants are forfeited, the unused shares of common stock covered by
such grants will again be available for grant under the 2001 Plan.

Our Board of Directors is required to make appropriate adjustments in connection with the 2001 Plan to
reflect any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, liquidation, spin-off or other similar event. The 2001
Plan also contains provisions addressing the consequences of any Reorganization Event or Change in Control
(as such terms are defined in the respective plan).

If a Reorganization or Change of Control Event occurs, unless the Compensation Committee determines
otherwise, all outstanding options and SARs that are not exercised shall be assumed by, or replaced with
comparable options or rights by, the surviving corporation (or a parent of the surviving corporation), and other
outstanding grants shall be converted to similar grants of the surviving corporation or a parent of the surviving
corporation). Notwithstanding that provision, the Compensation Committee has the authority to take one or
both of the following actions: (i) require that grantees surrender their outstanding options and SARs in
exchange for a payment by the Company, in cash or company stock as determined by the Compensation
Committee, in an amount equal to the amount by which the then fair market value of the shares of company
stock subject to the unexercised Options and SARs exceeds the exercise price of the options or the base
amount of the SARs, as applicable, or (ii) after giving grantees an opportunity to exercise their outstanding
options and SARs or otherwise realize the value of all of their other grants, terminate any or all unexercised
options, SARs and grants at such time as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate.

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 about the securities authorized for
issuance under our equity compensation plans. Additionally, this table contains information about an
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individual arrangement entered into outside of the equity plans with a former officer providing for the award of
an option to purchase shares of our common stock.

Eguity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

Number of Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted-average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding
Qutstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in Column(a))
Plan Category (2) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders(1) 8,775,714 $9.6266 1,946,272
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders(2) 3,573,027 $3.4949 772,463
Total ........ .. ... . ... 12,348,741 $7.8525 2,718,735

(1) Includes awards granted under the 1990 Stock Option Plan, the 1999 Equity Compensation Plan and the
Non-Employee Directors Plan. Includes 945,000 deferred stock units which have been issued under the
Plan. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-X.

(2) Includes awards granted under the 2001 Plan and the non-plan option granted to Harry Wallaesa in
March 1999 to purchase 300,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $12.3542 per share.
The shares subject to this non-plan option were fully vested in accordance with Mr. Wallaesa’s separation
agreement and will remain exercisable until October 12, 2004.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Definitive Proxy Statement entitled “Relationships and
Related Transactions with Management and Others.”

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness
of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(c) and
15-d-14(c)) as of a date within 90 days of filing date of the annual report (the “Evaluation Date”), have
concluded that as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were adequate
and effective to ensure that material information relating to the Company would be made known to them by
others within the Company, particularly during the period in which this annual report was being prepared.

(b) Changes in internal controls

There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect the Company’s internal controls and procedures subsequent to the Evaluation Date, nor any
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in such internal controls and procedures requiring corrective
actions.
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PART IV

Ttem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules

Incorporated by reference to Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K.

() Repovts on Form 8§-K
On November 21, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form §8-K announcing by press release
the $55 million cash acquisition of 100% of Alliance Consulting.
{c) Exhibits
The exhibits required to be filed as part of this Report are listed in the exhibit index below.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules
Separate financial Statements of Subsidiaries Not Consolidated
The consolidated financial statements of Internet Capital Group, Inc., for the three-year period ended

December 31, 2002, required to be included in this report pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X, are filed
as Exhibit 99.3.

Exhibits

The following is a list of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K filed as part of this Report.
Where so indicated by footnote, exhibits that were previously filed are incorporated by reference. For exhibits
incorporated by reference, the location of the exhibit in the previous filing is indicated in parentheses.

Exhibit No. Exhibit

2.1 Purchase Agreement dated as of December 22, 2000, by and between CompuCom
Systems, Inc., MicroAge Technology Services, L.L.C. and MicroAge, Inc.(13)
(Exhibit 2.1)

31 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Safeguard(4) (Exhibit 3.1)

3.2 By-laws of Safeguard, as amended(14)

4. 1*** 1990 Stock Option Plan, as amended(4) (Exhibit 4.3)

4.2%%* Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors(2) (Exhibit 4.8)

I Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. 1999 Equity Compensation Plan, as amended({16) (Exhibit 4.3)

4.3.1*%*/***  Group Stock Unit Award Program, Group Deferred Stock Unit Program for Officers, Group
Deferred Stock Unit Program for Directors pursuant to the Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. 1999
Equity Compensation Plan

4 4%%% Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. 2001 Associates Equity Compensation Plan(17)

4.4 1**/¥**  Amendment No. 1 to the Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. 2001 Associates Equity Compensation
Plan

4.5 Indenture, dated as of June 9, 1999, between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and Chase

Manhattan Trust Company, National Association, as trustee, including the form of
5.0% Convertible Subordinated Note due 2006(9) (Exhibit 4.2)

4.6 Purchase Agreement of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. to issue and sell to Credit Suisse First
Boston Corporation Convertible Subordinated Notes due June 15, 2006 (exhibits
omitted) (6) (Exhibit 4.3)

4.7 Registration Rights Agreement between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and Credit Suisse First
Boston Corporation(7) (Exhibit 4.4)
4.8 Rights Agreement dated as of March 1, 2000 between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and

ChaseMellon Shareholder Services LLC, as Rights Agent(8) (Exhibit 4)

94




Exhibit No.

4.9
10.1***

10.2%*x
10.3

10.4

10.5

1C.6

10.7%%*

10.8%**

10.9%**

10.10%**

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.13.1

10.14

10.15

10.16%% fxkx

10,17%%/***

10.18***

10.19

10.20

Exhibit
Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Shares(9) (Exhibit 4.11)

Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective
June 15, 1994(3) (Exhibit 10.6)

Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan(1) (Exhibit 10.12)

Sails Mandatorily Exchangeable Securities Contract dated as of March 25, 1999 among
Safeguard Scientifics, Inc., Safeguard Scientifics (Delaware), Inc., Credit Suisse Financial
Products and CSFP Capital Inc. as Agent(10) (Exhibit 10.40)

Sails Pledge Agreement dated as of March 25, 1999 among Safeguard Scientifics
(Delaware), Inc, Credit Suisse Financial Products, and Credit Suisse First Boston,
New York, as Collateral Agent (exhibits omitted) (10) (Exhibit 10.41)

Sails Mandatorily Exchangeable Securities Contract dated as of August 30, 1999 among
Safeguard Scientifics, Inc., Safeguard Scientifics (Delaware), Inc., Credit Suisse Financial
Products and CSFP Capital, Inc. as Agent(10) (Exhibit 10.42)

Sails Pledge Agreement dated as of August 30, 1999 among Safeguard Scientifics
(Delaware), Inc, Credit Suisse Financial Products, and Credit Suisse First Boston,
New York, as Collateral Agent (exhibits omitted) {(10) (Exhibit 10.43)

Form of Promissory Notes dated February 3, 2000 given by certain executives for advances
by Safeguard of income tax withholdings on restricted stock grants(9) (Exhibit 10.37)

Form of Promissory Notes dated April 6, 2000 given by certain executives for advances by
Safeguard of income tax withholdings on restricted stock grants(11) (Exhibit 10.3)

Stock Option Grant by Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. to Harry Wallaesa dated March 1,
1999(9) (Exhibit 10.38)

Term note dated April 13, 2000 from a certain executive to Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.(11)
(Exhibit 10.2)

Consulting Agreement dated July 3, 2001 between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and Vincent G.
Bell, Jr.(15) (Exhibit 10.3)

Amended and Restated Demand Note dated May 18, 2001 given by Warren V. Musser for
advances by Bonfield Insurance, LTD(15) (Exhibit 10.4)

Agreement to Restructure by and among Warren V. Musser and Hillary Grinker Musser and
Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and Bonfield Insurance, LTD, dated as of April 16,
2001 (15) (Exhibit 10.5)

Amendment to Agreement to Restructure by and among Warren V. Musser and Hillary
Grinker Musser and Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and Bonfield Insurance, LTD, dated May 18,
2001 (15) (Exhibit 10.6)

Employment Agreement dated as of October 15, 2001 between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.
and Warren V. Musser(21) (Exhibit 10.14)

Employment Agreement dated July 10, 2001 between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and
Jerry L. Johnson (16) (Exhibit 10.9)

Form of Letter Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and
the following Managing Directors: Michael F. Cola, Christopher J. Davis and N. Jeffrey
Klauder

Letter Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and
Anthony L. Craig

Letter Agreement, dated January 2, 2001, between Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. and
Anthony A. [bargien(21) (Exhibit 10.21)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of November 21, 2001, between Comerica Bank —
California and Safeguard Delaware, Inc. (schedules omitted) (21) (Exhibit 10.22)

Loan Agreement dated May 10, 2002 by and among Comerica Bank — California,
Safeguard Delaware, Inc. and Safeguard Scientifics (Delaware), Inc. (exhibits
omitted) (18) (Exhibit 10.1)
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Exhibit No.

10.21

10.21.1

10.21.2

10.22

10.22.1

10.22.2

10.22.3

10.22.4

10.22.5

10.23

10.23.1

10.23.2

10.23.3

Exhibit

CompuCom Receivables MasterTrust 1 Pooling and Servicing Agreement, dated as of
May 7, 1999, as amended and restated as of August 20, 1999, between Norwest Bank
Minnesota National Association, CompuCom Systems, Inc., and CSI Funding, Inc.(19)
(Exhibit 10(J))

CompuCom Receivables MasterTrust I Pooling and Servicing Agreement Series 1999-1
Supplement, dated as of May 7, 1999, a amended and restated as of August 20, 1999, among
PNC Bank, National Association, Market Street Capital Corporation, Norwest Bank
Minnesota, National Association, CompuCom Systems, Inc., and CSI Funding, Inc.(19)
(Exhibit 10(K))

Receivables Contribution and Sale Agreement dated May 7, 1999 between CompuCom
Systems, Inc. and CSI Funding, Inc.(6) (Exhibit 10.8)

Series 2000-1 Supplement, among CSI Funding, Inc., as the Transferor, CompuCom
Systems, Inc., as Servicer, Lloyds TSB Bank PLC, as Initial Series 2000-1 Certificateholder,
and Wells Fargo, as Trustee on behalf of the Certificatcholders, dated as of October 2,
2000(12) (Exhibit 10(zz))

Amendment Number 1, dated as of May 17, 2001 to the Series 2000-1 Supplement, dated as
of October 2, 2000, by and among CSI Funding, Inc., CompuCom Systems, Inc., Lloyds
TSB Bank PLC and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association (f/k/a Norwest
Bank Minnesota, National Association).(15) (Exhibit 10.1)

Amendment Number 2, dated as of May 17, 2001 to the Series 1999-1 Supplement, dated as
of May 7, 1999, as amended and restated as of August 20, 1999 and as amended by
Amendment Number 1, dated as of October 2, 2000, by and among CSI Funding, Inc.,
CompuCom Systems, Inc.,, PNC Bank, National Association, Market Street Funding
Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association (f/k/a Norwest Bank
Minnesota, National Association).(15) (Exhibit 10.2)

Amendment Number 3, dated as of March 7, 2002 and effective as of December 31, 2001 to
the Series 1999-1 Supplement, dated as of May 7, 1999, as amended and restated as of
August 20, 1999, as further amended by Amendment Number 1 to the Series 1999-1
Supplement, dated as of October 2, 2000, and as further amended by Amendment Number 2
to the Series 1999-1 Supplement, dated as of May 17, 2001, by and among CSI
Funding, Inc., CompuCom Systems, Inc., PNC Bank, National Association, Market Street
Funding Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association (f/k/a
Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association) (20) (Exhibit 10(pp))

Amendment Number 4, dated as of October 11, 2002 to the Series 1999-1 Supplement,
dated as of May 7, 1999, as amended and restated as of August 20, 1999, as further amended,
by and among CSI Funding, Inc., CompuCom Systems, Inc., PNC Bank, National
Association, Market Street Funding Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National
Association (f/k/a Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association) (20) (Exhibit 10(qq))

Amendment Number 5, dated as of October 31, 2002 to the Series 1999-1 Supplement,
dated as of May 7, 1999, as amended and restated as of August 20, 1999, as further amended,
by and among CSI Funding, Inc., CompuCom Systems, Inc., PNC Bank, National
Association, Market Street Funding Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National
Association (f/k/a Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association) (20) (Exhibit 10(rr))
Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement, dated as of May 11, 1999, between
IBM Credit Corporation and CompuCom Systems, Inc. (6) (Exhibit 10.6)

Attachment A to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated May 11,
1999(6) (Exhibit 10.7)

First Amendment to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated as of
July 28, 1999 by and between CompuCom Systems, Inc. and IBM Credit Corporation(12)
(Exhibit 10(ab))
Second Amendment to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated as of
July 1, 2000 by and between CompuCom Systems, Inc. and IBM Credit Corporation(15)
(Exhibit (10(ac))
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Exhibit No. Exhibit

10.23.4 Third Amendment to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated as of

October 31, 2000 by and between CompuCom Systems, Inc. and IBM Credit
Corporation(15) (Exhibit 10(ad))

10.23.5 Fourth Amendment to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated as of

January 10, 2001 by and between CompuCom Systems, Inc. and IBM Credit
Corporation(15) (Exhibit 10(ae))

10.23.6 Fifth Amendment to Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement dated as of

11

21**

September 30, 2001 by and between CompuCom Systems, Inc. and IBM Credit Corporation
(20) (Exhibit 10(ah))

Statement regarding Computation of Per Share Income (included herein at Note 1 —
“Significant Accounting Policies” in the subsection “Net Income (loss) Per Share” and in
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

List of Subsidiaries

23.1%* Consent of KPMG LLP
23.2% Consent of KPMG LLP*
99.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

99.2* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

99.3

* %

*kk

(1)
(2)
3)
(4)
)
(6)

(7)
(®)
(%)

(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Consolidated Financial Statements of Internet Capital Group, Inc.(22)

Filed on March 31, 2003 as an exhibit to the Form 10K/A.
Filed on March 21, 2003 as an exhibit to the Form 10K.

These exhibits relate to management contracts or compensatory plans, contracts or arrangements in
which directors and/or executive officers of the registrant may participate.

Filed on March 30, 1987 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on March 30, 1994 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on March 30, 1995 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on March 31, 1997 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on May 10, 1999 as an exhibit to Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on August 16, 1999 as an exhibit to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 and
incorporated herein by such reference.

Filed on September 2, 1999 as an exhibit to Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 and
incorporated herein by such reference.

Filed on February 29, 2000 as an exhibit to Form 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on March 22, 2000 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed on April 18, 2000 as an exhibit to Form 10-K/A 2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on May 15, 2000 as an exhibit to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibits filed by CompuCom Systems, Inc. (SEC File
No. 000-14371) under Part IV, Item 14(c) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000.

Filed on January 24, 2001 as an exhibit to Form 8-K filed by CompuCom Systems, Inc. and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on May 15, 2001 as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.
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(15)
(16)

(17)
(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)
(22)

Filed on August 14, 2001 as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on November 14, 2001 as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001
and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on November 14, 2001 as an exhibit to Form S-8 and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on November 14, 2002 as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed on November 14, 2002 as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 000-14371) filed
by CompuCom Systems, Inc. and incorporated herein by reference.

Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibits filed by CompuCom Systems, Inc. (SEC File
No. 000-14371) under Part IV, Item 14(c) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Filed on March 31, 2002 as an exhibit to Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Incorporated by reference to Part 11, Ttem 8 of the Annual Report of Form 10-X for the year-ended
December 31, 2002, filed by Internet Capital Group, Inc. (SEC file No. 001-16249).
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CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony L. Craig, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have indicated in this annual report whether or not there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.

/s/  ANTHONY L. CRAIG

Anthony L. Craig
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 21, 2003
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CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher J. Davis, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there
| were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

| SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.

/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. DAvIs

‘ Christopher J. Davis
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 21, 2003
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SAFEGUARD SCIENTIFICS, INC.

By: /s/  ANTHONY L. CRAIG

Anthony L. Craig
Chief Executive Officer and President

Dated: March 21, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  ANTHONY L. CRrRAIG Chief Executive Officer and Dated: March 21, 2003
Anthony L. Craig President, and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. DAvVIS Managing Director and Chief Dated: March 21, 2003
Christopher J. Davis Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting
Officer)
Director Dated:

Vincent G. Bell, Jr.

/s/  WALTER W. BUCKLEY, 111 Director Dated: March 17, 2003
Walter W. Buckley, 111

/s/  JULIE A. DOBSON Director Dated: March 18, 2003
Julie A. Dobson

/s/ ROBERT A. Fox Director Dated: March 18, 2003
Robert A. Fox
/s/ ROBERT E. KEITH, JR. Chairman of the Dated: March 17, 2003
Robert E. Keith, Jr. Board of Directors
/s/ GEORGE MACKENZIE Director Dated: March 18, 2003

George MacKenzie

/s!/  Jack L. MESSMAN Director Dated: March 20, 2003
Jack L. Messman
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Signature Title Date

/s/ RUSSELL E. PALMER Director Dated: March 19, 2003
| Russell E. Palmer

/s/  JOHN W, PODUSKA SR. Director Dated: March 18, 2003
John W. Poduska Sr.

/s/  JOHN J. ROBERTS Director Dated: March 19, 2003
John J. Roberts
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